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MISSION STATEMENT
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Perennial International Limited is dedicated to maintain the EHEEERATDHNIRMELER - BIREE
high quality of its products, manufacturing processes and service ~ EiB12 - MEFETUR ARG - BEDH
to customers and to forge a worldwide reputation as a business &3 - EEEBLRIE ZEH2 k-

demanding excellence in all of its operations.

&



The Perennial Group, founded in 1989, manufactures and trades
quality power cord, power cord sets, cables and solid wire, wire
harnesses and plastic resins. The Group’s primary markets are
America, Europe, Australia, Mainland China, Japan and Southeast
Asia where it sells to prominent multi-national producers of
electrical and electronic products.

Headquartered in Hong Kong, as at 31st December 2020,
the Group employed 997 full time staff worldwide involved in
management, sales and marketing, shipping, procurement, financial
and accounting, engineering, production and manufacturing. The
Group considers its employees to be its most important asset
while its key values are quality, prudence and integrity.
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Perennial International Limited B #B % E & R A A

CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
ETRBE

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”)
of Perennial International Limited (the “Company”), | am pleased
to announce the audited consolidated financial results of the
Company, together with its subsidiaries (the “Group”) for the year
ended 31st December 2020.

The Group's revenue was HK$282,342,000 (2019:
HK$301,357,000). Loss for the year was HK$19,231,000 compared
to HK$13,198,000 in 2019. Loss per share was HK$0.097 (2019:
HK$0.066).

Final Dividend

The Board does not recommend the final dividend for the year
ended 31st December 2020. The Group did not pay any dividend
for the year ended 31st December 2019.

The forthcoming annual general meeting will be held on Tuesday,
18th May 2021 (2021 AGM").

The register of members of the Company will be closed during the
period from Thursday, 13th May 2021 to Tuesday, 18th May 2021,
both days inclusive and during which period no share transfer
will be effected, for the purpose of ascertaining shareholders’
eligibility to attend and vote at the 2021 AGM. In order to be
eligible to attend and vote at the 2021 AGM, all transfer documents
accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged for
registration with the Company's branch share registrar, Hong Kong
Registrars Limited at 17M Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen'’s
Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong not later than 4:30 p.m. on
Wednesday, 12th May 2021.

Business Review

The Group's revenue decreased by 6.3% to HK$282.3 million in
this financial year. The decrease in revenue was mainly due to the
outbreak of COVID-19 pandemic. The Group quickly adopted a
series of proactive measures to respond to the pandemic.

Sales in power cords and plastic resins accounted for 65% of the
Group’s revenue, and cables, wires and wire harness accounted for
35% of the Group's revenue.

The gross margin increased slightly from 18.5% in 2019 to 18.7%
in 2020. It has been an achievement of the Group to maintain
operational efficiency while facing all the mounting uncertainties in
the pandemic period.
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The Group recorded a negative net profit margin of 6.8% in 2020
compared to negative net profit margin 4.4% in 2019. The net
loss was mainly due to a decrease in fair value of investment
property, land and buildings in Hong Kong and Vietnam of
approximately HK$4.4 million; and impairment of trade receivables
of approximately HK$15.7 million occurred in the year ended 31st
December 2020.

The factory in Quang Ngai, Vietnam is operating very smoothly. As
to the factory construction in Quang Ngai, Vietnam, the third phase
construction, which consists of the construction of two factory
buildings for cable manufacturing and one auxiliary warehouse. The
construction was completed in February 2021 but certain internal
renovation and electrical installations works are ongoing. The cable
manufacturing factory is expected to come into operations in June
2021.

Regarding the Group's ESG performance, please refer to the
Group's ESG report on page 11 to 37.

Events after the Reporting Period
No significant events have taken place after the year ended 31st
December 2020 to the date of this report.

Future Prospect

Although there are still many uncertainties in the road of global
economic recovery, the Group is very positive that, with the
recent development in vaccines, the adverse impact of COVID-19
pandemic will eventually come to an end and the global economy
will recover in the coming years. The Group, with enlarged
production capabilities in Vietnam and the launch of newly
developed products, has attracted orders from new renowned
customers. This has helped to ensure considerable amounts of
sales orders in 2021 and the increase in sales will occur in the
second half year of 2021.

The Group remains optimistic and confident in the future
development of the Group and will continue to work closely with
our customers to achieve future business opportunities. At the
same time, the Group will remain cautious to maintain a proactive
and conservative approach in cost controlling and financial strategy
to improve the financial position and sustainable business growth.
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Chairman’s Statement (Continued)
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Chairman’s Statement (Continued)

TREHmE (&)

Corporate Governance

The Group is committed to safeguarding shareholders’ rights and
enhancing corporate governance standard. As a result, the Group
has established the Compliance Committee, Audit Committee,
Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee to adhere to
the best practice.

Social Responsibility

The Group's factories are regularly subject to factory audit by
multinational enterprises. The factory audit served as a catalyst to
enhance the Group’s standard on corporate social responsibility.

Moreover, the Group holds a strong belief in corporate social
responsibility. So the Group continues to participate in and support
community activities in both Hong Kong and Mainland China.

Vote of Thanks

On behalf of the Board, my sincere thanks to our loyal
shareholders, partners and customers for their continuous support
and to our staff for their dedication.

By Order of the Board
Koo Di An, Louise
Chairman

Hong Kong, 23rd March 2021
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Liquidity and Financial Resources

As at 31st December 2020, the consolidated short-term borrowings
of the Group was approximately HK$45,727,000. The borrowings
are mainly denominated in Hong Kong dollars. The bank balances
and cash amounted to approximately HK$22,370,000.

As at 31st December 2020, the Group's trade and bill receivables
balance was approximately HK$58,642,000, representing 20.8% of
the year's revenue of approximately HK$282,342,000. The Group
adopted a stringent credit policy to minimize credit risk.

As at 31st December 2020, the Group's gearing ratio, which is
calculated by dividing total borrowings to total equity was 8.3%
(2019: 12.2%).

The Group's average cost of borrowings was 2.88% for the year
ended 31st December 2020 (2019: 3.68%).

Capital Structure

As at 31st December 2020, the consolidated shareholders’ equity
of the Group was approximately HK$549,280,000, representing a
decrease of 2.4% over that of the previous year. The debt to equity
ratio, which is calculated by dividing total liabilities to shareholders’
equity, was approximately 24.9%.

Capital Expenditure and Material

Acquisitions
During the year under review, capital expenditure approximate to
HK$16,868,000.

Pledge of Assets

As at 31st December 2020, the Group’s trade and loan finance
facilities amounted to approximately 173,040,000, which were
secured by legal charges over certain land and buildings and
investment properties of the Group with a total carrying value of
HK$126,250,000.

Segment Information

During the year under review, Hong Kong, America and Mainland
China continued to be the Group's major markets, accounting
for approximately 28%, 56% and 14% of the Group’s total sales
respectively. The remaining 2% of sales were generated from
customers located in Europe and other countries.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

B E R k(&)

Employees’ Remuneration Policy

As at 31st December 2020, the Group employed 997 full time
management, administrative and production staff worldwide.
The Group follows market practice on remuneration packages.
Employee’s remuneration is reviewed and determined by senior
management annually depending on the employee’s performance,
experience and industry practice. The total amount of employee’s
remuneration was set out in note 12 to the consolidated financial
statements in this report. The Group invests in its human capital. In
addition to on-job training, the Group adopts policies of continuous
professional training programs.

Foreign Exchange Exposure
All foreseeable foreign exchange risks of the Group are
appropriately managed and hedged, if necessary.

Contingent Liabilities
As at 31st December 2020, the Group did not have any material
contingent liabilities.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

About this Report

This report is prepared with reference to the ESG Reporting Guide
published by the Hong Kong Stock Exchange. The report covers
all business departments in Hong Kong, Shenzhen, Heyuan and
Vietnam. Unless otherwise specified, the period involving the
figures and content of the report would be 1st January 2020 to
31st December, 2020.

The figures and contents of this report mainly come from the
statistical reports and internal communication documents of
the Company. The Board of the Company undertakes that there
are no misrepresentations or misleading statements contained
in this report, and assumes responsibilities for the authenticity,
accuracy and completeness of its content. Upon confirmation by
the management, the report was approved by the Board on 23rd
March 2021.

For any enquiry on the report, please email to
info@perennialcable.com.

The Group’s Environmental, Social and

Governance Practice

The Group engages in the manufacturing and trading of high-quality
power cord sets, cables and solid wires, wire harnesses and plastic
resins as well as the selling of these products to multinational
electrical appliances and electronic product manufacturers. While
committed to the pursuit of profit, the Group also strives to reduce
negative impacts on the environment, its workforce, business
partners, and the community. Through the establishment of
management systems and implementation of various measures
in terms of environmental protection, protection of workers’ rights
and interests, product quality and social welfare, we aim to create
values for all.

The Group upholds corporate responsibility and integrates
environmental, social and governance elements in all aspects
of the Group. The Board of Directors is responsible for regular
reviews of environmental, social and governance related risks and
performance, ensuring that material issues are managed according
to their priorities, and approving relevant information for disclosure
by the Group. The Group's operating sites and departments
coordinate and implement appropriate policies and measures to
achieve the Group's objectives and strategies for environmental,
social and governance management. Regular social responsibility
assessment are arranged by the major customers. As a part of
its commitment to the corporate social responsibility, the Group
continuously improves its internal management on the basis of the
recommendations of these assessments.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)
RIE - mwERERHRE(E)

Stakeholder Communication

The Group's business operation may affect its shareholders,
employees, customers, suppliers, and the government, and in
turn, they may have expectations and opinions on the Group's
operations and strategies. To maintain effective communication
with our stakeholders and for the incorporation of their demands
in a balanced manner for the enhancement of our operations, we
have formulated communication plans for different stakeholders
by adopting appropriate communication channels to ensure
information can be delivered in a timely and effective manner.
The Group’s communication channels to engage our stakeholder
groups are specified as follows:

Stakeholder Group Means of Communication

Shareholders — Regular announcements

— Annual general meetings

— Appointments

— Formulating a work appraisal system

— Setting up suggestion boxes

— Direct email communications with the
management staff

— Customer satisfaction surveys

— Regular communications (by means
of telephone, site visits and business
dinners)

— After-sales service

— Continuous follow-up and evaluation of
suppliers

— Regular communications (by means of
telephone, site visits, business dinners)

— Active contact

Government
Employees

Customers

Suppliers

Charity Partners

KhERE
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)

Material Issues on Environmental, Social and
Governance

In 2016, an independent consultant was engaged to solicit
opinions and suggestions from our stakeholders such as our staff,
customers and suppliers in accordance with the Environmental,
Social and Governance Reporting Guide to facilitate the materiality
assessment to identify environmental, social and governance issues
that are relevant and important to Perennial, thus formulating
corresponding strategies and objectives. As there was no
significant change in the overall operations and business in the year
compared to that in 2016, upon careful consideration, the Board
decides to adopt the list of material issues prepared in the previous
years. The material issues and their relevance to the Group are
summarized as follows:

Environmental

RBRE @ hEaBs(E)

EENRE  HERERRE

BERBEEERHMCRE - HEMERREES])
ANENX R E-AFHERTBELER AT
BAMET - 5P  HEASHEHEREER
feMmETEARMERHE - SR EHHER A ERMIR
% e EEIAEE - UHIRIAERARES IR -
HRARAFHRBEZENEFE T —NFRL
WEBEANE  EFRSHLFAEER  REEE L
AERFEMIUNERHBEE - EEAEHE
HEE 2 RS T

Employment

RiB &%
Issue Relevance to the Group Issue Relevance to the Group
4 BRiEH SR ZEBE M E BRiEH SR ZEE M
Energy The Group consumes energy in Occupational health The production personnel face certain

conservation
production.

SEELEBET 2EMERATRS
He2s MARAA o

Waste disposal During the production process, the
Group produces various wastes.
Some of which are hazardous and

require proper handling.

SEELERRETEELRERER
MOBEEERY  FEHZRE -

REEYIRRIE

Water resources
management

The Group utilizes municipal water in
some of its production phases.

IKETREIE SEERSLERBPEERTBUK °

machine operation and lighting during and safety

BxEmEze

Labor and human
rights regulations

BB N ARER

Employee training

=l

health and safety risks when they are
working on the production lines. The
Company is responsible for the work
safety of its staff members.
SEANBEAER T TERGEmEE
FRERZZRER - AEEETRE
BITEZR -

The Group's operations must comply
with local laws and regulations. We
particularly stress the provision of
statutory protection and rights for our
staff.
SENEENARTEEMANERE

B BMLCEERAZITRIEETR
P& SR R o

Our employee training helps enhance
product quality and production
efficiency.
REIRMEIIERAEREER
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)

RE  HERERY

Issue

B
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Environmental

Employment

=]

Relevance to the Group

EL1EERSE M 2 AE R 1E

Material recycling

YIRHRIR(E

Packaging
materials

BEMH

Environmental
regulations and
impacts

REARLTE

RIE
Relevance to the Group Issue
BB AR SR B 2 AR R ARE
Since the Group produces various Employment
wastes during the production relationship
process, the reuse of wasted
materials can reduce land pollution.
SEELEREPSEESEEL - EEEE

BRERBER RS 58 -

As the Group must use packaging
materials to deliver products, such
materials may become wastes after
delivery.
SETEEXERRVEFRBEEM
o WEBRRMEEHERENREE
BB FEEL

The Group's operations must comply
with local laws and regulations.

We particularly stress the possible
environmental impacts of our
production bases.
FENEENAEREEHAERE
o BT E B EEEM AR EIR
BRI E

Various business development plans
of the Company are closely linked to
recruiting and retaining staff. Building
good employment relationships

and positive employer image are
conducive to hiring and retaining
talents.
NEIBERBERABIOHEITEAS
BRI R B EAER - BYRIFH
EBREAR EYRTEFNER A
BhIREE MR AT -
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)

Operation
giE
Relevance to the Group Issue
ERfEEEE 2 AR 1 HE

RBRE @ hEaBs(E)

Community
HE
Relevance to the Group

SLE RS M 2 AHRA 1E

Product quality

R
S0
\
s

flo

Customer
relationship

EPR%E

Anti-corruption

RER

Supply chain
management

HERERE

Customers expect to purchase quality Community
and safe products. Product quality investment
and safety are the foundations for

keeping the faith of our customers.

BEMERBEEEALLENER - E HEREA
mEERZEERERBEELOZE
A e

Maintaining good customer relations
brings stable income streams and
corporate development for Perennial.
HEFNEPHBARIEAHERAR
BERWATR DR

The Group's operations must
comply with local laws and
regulations. Business ethics stands
as the foundation for the Company's
reputation.
FENEENAREBHAERE
B BEEREERAREECEA -

As our suppliers’ operations may
affect the environment, Perennial

is responsible for supporting the
suppliers with better environmental
performance.

g 2 E R o IR IR
2 [EHFEEFRREBERED
HLER o

Committed to serving as a company
of integrity, the Group sustains

its participation in and support of
community activities in Hong Kong
and China.
REBEBRFMROBENED - FIA
BIFHFE2 BB REE -
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)

RE  #HEahEaRE(E)

Environment

Environmental Management Procedures

The Group optimized its environmental management and actively
ensured that environmental management was performed well in
its operations in order to respond to the expectations of various
stakeholders. The Group complied with the relevant environmental
laws and regulations such as the Environmental Protection Law of
the People’s Republic of China (China), the Air Pollution Prevention
Law of China, the Water Pollution Prevention Law of China,
and Vietnam’s Law on Environmental Protection, the National
Technical Regulation on Ambiant and Air Quality, the National
Technical Regulation on Industrial Emission of Inorganic Substance
and Dust, the Decree on Management of Waste and Discarded
Materials and the Decree on the Drainage and Treatment of Waste
Water. There was not any case of violation of the above laws and
regulations during the year. Each production base of the Group has
developed corresponding Environmental Procedures to provide
clear guidelines for various departments on energy conservation,
efficient utilization of resources, proper waste disposal and
prevention and control of environmental pollution. The procedures
also clearly define the responsibilities of the Group's personnel so
that it can be effectively implemented. We also regularly review
and evaluate the implementations of environmental management
plans and procedures, environmental goals and targets, and
promptly take corrective and preventive measures against doubtful
areas.

In addition, according to the “Provisions of Carbon Emissions
Management of the Shenzhen Special Economic Zone" and
“Interim Measures of Shenzhen Municipality for the Administration
of Carbon Emission Permits Trading”, our production base in
Shenzhen has joined the Shenzhen carbon emission trading
market.

55
RREERERF

BEEREERAENETS - BN EERE
BRFEETE  UEESFHOHENDRE - SEE
BPEARKEMBECGRRREEL)  (RRFRE
B OKFRPIAE) - REEECERRREE) -
(ARBREREERMRT) - (AREERD T
EBTEHREMRE) - (BEYMBEZMEIRES)
RMCRBEKBEMARIE A )EMBOIRTER - A
FRORBEMER DGz @R - EEBERLE
it - HAIEHIEIHEENCGRERT) - BEEFIE
HEBEHORR - BABREANG - ZERIERE
BYRIRRIR S RETIERNIES] o ZI2FF IREAME
REBHERMABNBE  RIEFEAFTUET -
BTG T SR LAHERRE RS RNEF - &
BRRARNERNERIERN - K aFERE
BT EH AL IE MBI TIER R e o

I WAIRRRIN £ EE 1 ERBORINEH
R i BE e 2 A TR ) RCORYIMIRBERER 5
EREITHOE) - MARYIFREEER 55 o
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)

Energy Conservation

Purchased electricity is the major energy source to power our
production machinery and provide energy for our dormitories. A
small amount of LPG is used for the staff canteen. The Group also
consumes diesel and gasoline to power forklift trucks and motor
vehicles. The Group strives to increase energy efficiency in general
and reduce our dependence on direct and indirect energy. For such
purposes, we conserve energy in respect of indoor temperature
adjustment, lighting and heating, as follows:

- The Group's factories in China was built on the principle
of “north-south orientation” so that air is circulated in the
factory, thus reducing the demand for indoor air conditioning.

- Natural ventilation was adopted during the construction of the
factory in Vietnam for air circulation. Currently, electric fans
are mostly used instead of air conditioning.

- Energy-saving lamps are used for indoor lighting in the
factories in China, while 100W LED lamps are used for
outdoor lighting. Lamps on the fencing wall in Heyuan factory
are powered with solar energy, saving about 8,340 kilowatt-
hours of electricity per year.

- LED lamps are also used in the factory in Vietnam to reduce
electricity consumption.

- Windows are installed at the production area of the Vietnam
factory to bring more natural light, reducing the demand for
lamps.

- Factories in China utilize residual heat from air compressors
to supply hot water for dormitories.

- During the construction of Vietnam factory, priority was given
to latest equipment with higher energy efficiency in order to
reduce unnecessary energy consumption in the production
process.

RBRE @ hEaBs(E)

B BETR
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)
RIE - mwERERHRE(E)

The following tables outline the Company's energy consumption F&RSFIARE-Z—N\FE2 T - TFHSHEE
and greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions performance from 2018 to  JRAVEFEE MEEREEHENERIR ¢

2020:
Consumption BE
Energy Consumption Indicators Units 2020 2019 2018 HRERER Efy CRIRE ZBR-NE BN
Total energy consumption MWh 7,651 8,316 8,262 BRRHEE KR 7,661 8316 8262
Direct energy consumption MWh 760 800 653 BRgRERE AR 760 800 653
Indirect energy consumption MWh 6,891 7516 7,609 iEe el . 97 6,891 7516 7,609
Energy consumed per tonne of output'  k\Wh/tonne 757 734 715 BHERHEEE TRN/LH 7571 734 715
Emissions #HE

GHG Emission Indicators Units 2020 2019 2018 BERBHRKE Ef C3IEE ZE-NE B0
GHG emission? (0 4006 4383 4188 BERRAHNE  Wos(EEd 406 43 4

Direct GHG Emission (Scope 1) €0 ERRZRBHN W-ElEs
201 210 173 (8E-) 0 210 17

Indirect GHG Emission (Scope 2) 10 BRBEREHN BoEfhEs
3,905 4173 4,010 (8E=) 3905 4173 4010

GHG emission per tonne of output’ kgCO,gftonne SEESWENE OT-afnEs/

406 387 362 LEEE 406 387 362

BELRBN BF  BERERGMEBEESENE

! This includes the output of plastic pellets, wires, socket wires and !

extension cords.

Scope 1 Greenhouse gas emission refers to the direct emissions
from fuel combustion of fixed and mobile sources, which, in relation
to the Group, are the greenhouse gas emissions directly from the
use of diesel, gasoline and liquefied petroleum gas. The estimation
method and emission coefficients are adopted from the Guidelines
for Accounting Methods and Reporting of Greenhouse Gas Emissions
from Enterprises in Other Industries (Trial) issued by the National
Development and Reform Commission of the People’'s Republic
of China and the 2006 IPCC (Intergovernmental Panel on Climate
Change) Guidelines for National Greenhouse Gas Inventories.

Scope 2 Greenhouse gas emissions are, in relation the Group,
indirect emissions derived from the purchase of electricity. The
emission factors are taken from the data released by CLP Power
Hong Kong Limited, the Average Carbon Dioxide Emission Factors
of Regional Power Grids in China for 2011 and 2012 (20114 %12012
FrpE R E AT A PERE T )), and from the Emission
Factors of Vietnam's Power Grid for 2017 (20174 #if = AIHE A 1)
released by Ministry of Climate Change of Vietnam. Greenhouse gas
emissions for 2017 and 2018 have been restated due to the adoption
of an alternative emission factor for the South China power grid. The
Group will continue to use these emission factors until the relevant
authorities issue updated and appropriate factors.

=
E-°

408 1)8 = R 8 B S B R R BB g R AR
MEEBIN  UAEBEZBERME @ BIRERR
TR ARREERERARERES o &
BERERFHABESI AT EARAMBEERER
M EZE M TEEMITELFRETRE
B E 7 R A E R (117)) &(2006 IPCC
(BRHEREZECEMEZEG)BEZTREREETE
MRt

HEAERECHREAEENBERAMSANAEE
BAMTEMNREZEER - BERREEEHREE S
ARATAHEHER - (2011 FEF2012F T R
BRFH S EERET) - U RBEREE L
EEEA 2 2017 F MR BREBEME T 2 2017542018
FEAERAEHNERANA T EDREANTER
EFmEs - AEBARDSEEF AL SHER
ArEIBEHEREMAIEANET AL -
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)

Waste Disposal

Solid waste produced by the Company from production sites,
warehouses and offices are stored and disposed of according
to categories of “recyclable”, “non-recyclable” and “hazardous
waste”. The above categories of waste are disposed of by
authorized waste disposal agencies except for some waste which
will be reused in the production plant. The table below shows the
amount of waste generated and processed by the Company from
2018 to 2020:

HERERHRE(E)

IRIB

E‘&ﬁ%ﬁﬂ

naEjgl AR - AR B R T ek Féuuj’”ﬁT
HERBELTERS 8-  MAZPEEMERR

EEY) - BEOBEERMENEEREANEMI -

J:E%EE’UJ%%%%B?&EE%%E@ﬂﬂ’ﬂ@ﬁ%&%ﬁ%%
EITHEREREY - TREIIARE—F—/\F
E-T_THFHEEMEENERNEE

Amount Collected and Processed flEREREE
Types of Wastes?® Units 2020 2019 2018 RENEE Ef CECEFE ZE-pF CE-NE
\Waste paper Tonne 28.7 28.2 31.0 Bl A 287 282 310
Reusable plastic Tonne 1035 1224 150.2 IHRZEE N 1035 124 1502
Scrap copper Tonne 183 19.0 247 B DB 183 190 247
Waste wire Tonne 70.1 904 1241 EE& N 701 904 1241
Hazardous waste Tonne 2.1 139 19 RER N 21 139 19

Reducing Resource Wastage

The major raw material consumption includes copper wire, rubber
and plastic, packaging materials and water for production. Without
compromising our products compliance to strict international
quality standards, we strive to improve the efficiency of resource
consumption. For example, we break up the used plastic resins for
wires for recycling and reuse them in certain products with lower
quality requirements (such as plug socket covers). We also crush
and reuse the used PVC during the injection molding process in
our Vietnam factory. Moreover, we reuse the waste plastic pellets
generated in the injection molding process to ensure the efficient
use of raw materials.

8 The amount of waste lead bars, tin residues and non-recyclable
plastic are insignificant, hence we do not make such disclosure in
this report.

BALERREE
\E%B)‘EAiFIEEFHE’JE}EHﬁH%? R KR
EREME BB EMBAK - HPETFEE
DEI':?‘/J{E\IET&.W REZEMATRET © BUITRAER
AR /\°1§|JQDEP.W1@VL%ATEJEHLE'J 5 4R B
MBS TR —EREEEERITSHNERT
(Ln3HSEPT A Hﬁﬂﬁ)ﬁu\@ﬁﬁ MEMEREE
?EFH}@E@E?%Z,)@E PVC) 2RI )X 2B RTIEF &

NEINE TR BRPELENEBNER @ #
f%ﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁxﬁl SISLARS °

3 BiERESERTADAEBHERL  TF
W o
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)
RIE - mwERERHRE(E)

In addition, in order to reduce waste, the Group also recycles and
reuses some packaging materials such as wooden cardboard
and paper boxes. For non-reusable materials, we engage third-
party disposal service providers to collect them to ensure proper
waste disposal. Factories in China are also equipped with water
re-utilization basin to collect and reuse the production water from
the workshops, saving approximately 10,000 cubic meters of water
throughout the year. Meanwhile, recycled water is used for the
required cooling process at the factory in Vietnam to reduce water
consumption for production. We also continuously inspect and
repair water pipes, so as to reduce unnecessary waste of water
resources caused by pipe breakage and equipment damage. The
table below sets forth the Company’s use of various resources
from 2018 to 2020:

I RBLRE - BEIE DK REREN BK
WL PIINARRIR MRS - B MERAFE
ZERGI )\ RIS R - g AR ERYE - TfIE
RRF - RERETRS  BREERVESALS
B3R o BRitb 24N - REIAMRE 2B BRI - W
SERMEERKLERNE - 2F KOS
SJ7K o R ARAEEMBAK - BERE
MABERAIETARSAIR - IEFEREM
MEEKE  ORERE BRRMRBBREmR D A%
ZHRERRE - TREIIRRE—FT—/\FEZ
T_EFHASRERNERE -

Consumption il
Resources Usage Indicators Units 2020 2019 2018 ERFEREE Bfi “ECEF ZE-AF ZE-N\EF
Water consumption me 91,924 88,235 77,882 ke AR 91924 882%B  T78%
Water intensity per tonne of output' m¥ftonne 9.1 78 6.7 BRESFAER URR/DHEE 91 78 67
Packaging material - consumption of Tonne 2820 2125 2493 PENE-BRRERE OW 282.0 2125 2493
paper hoxes
Packaging material - plastic consumption* ~ Tonne 317 36.0 50.2 ARMH-ZPHEE LB 317 36.0 502

Pollution Prevention

In order to reduce our direct impact on the environment during our
operation, the Group has implemented the Environmental Pollution
Prevention and Control Procedures and the Occupational Health,
Safety and Environmental Policy in China and Vietnam respectively
to control wastewater, exhaust gases, noise and waste generated
during our operations. This can ensure that our environmental
performance is in compliance with the environmental protection
regulations of China and Vietnam. The environmental management
systems of operating sites both in China and Vietnam have been
certified in accordance with ISO14001.

4 Starting from 2018, the statistics cover the usage of plastic bags and
other plastic packaging materials.

SRBE A

PRV EBPEYRBEERERTE - BIETE
M N BE ) BE B T CGRIFIS A ARSI F) &
(BERFELZZHRIRYER) - UEHEERETE
HERIREK BB - RS MEERY) - EARRIRIRR
ARAPBERUERBERAMTE o HERM NG
MEEHNREEERZSCERISO14001R:E °

¢ “E-N\FREGAHREBEBREMAE LA ME
BREMEHER
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)

Our production process does not produce wastewater. Domestic
wastewater mainly comes from canteens and dormitories. The
Group has formulated a series of measures to monitor and reduce
the sewage discharge to ensure the sewage discharge meets the
local discharge requirement. In China, the Group has appointed a
qualified engineering company to conduct wastewater treatment
projects in accordance with the first-class standard of Guangdong
Province's Discharge Limits of Water Pollutants to meet discharge
standards. Toilet sewage will be treated first in the septic tank, then
discharged to the municipal sewage network. WWe monitor every
step of the regular cleaning of the septic tank performed by the
contractor to prevent secondary pollution caused by the sewage.
The results of each sewage inspections of factories in China met
the requirements of the Emission Standards for Pollutants from
Urban Sewage Treatment Plants. The Group has arranged four
sewage inspections for the factory in Vietnam. In view of the fact
that some indicators failed to meet the requirements in two of
the inspections, the Company has proactively established various
sewage treatment measures to control the sewage discharge. We
have installed solid filters in the existing canteen sewage treatment
system to reduce the oil content in the sewage. For domestic
wastewater, it will be first treated by a septic tank and chlorine
is applied to reduce E. Coli content in the sewage. In addition, in
response to the increase in the number of employees in Vietham
factory, the Group started to build a wastewater treatment system
to the factory this year to properly treat domestic sewage and
ensure compliance to the local discharge standards. The system is
expected to start operations in the first quarter of 2021.

Our operations do not involve the discharge of a large amount of air
pollutants. The exhaust gases generated include the oily fume and
smoke from canteen, plastic workshop dust and a small amount of
harmful gases. After treatment, the exhaust gas has reached the
emission standards required by the national laws and regulations
of China and Vietnam based on the air emission tests conducted
by third parties. In order to prevent the release of ozone-depleting
gases after decomposition in the production process, we regularly
examine incoming plastics, rubber and materials containing organic
elements. If the materials are nonconforming, we would make
improvement to meet the requirements of the relevant regulations.

RBRE @ hEaBs(E)
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)
RIE - mwERERHRE(E)

Some machines in the Group’s factories make noise. In order to
protect the health of employees, the Group instructs employees
who perform noise-related processes to wear earplugs to mitigate
the impact of noise on the human body. We regularly check the
noise level of major sites in the Chinese factories according to the
Emission Standard for Industrial Enterprises Noise at Boundary
of China. The current noise level is within regulation requirement
and cause any negative impact on the communities in the vicinity
of the factory. The Vietnam factory is located in an industrial area
and does not cause any negative impact on the communities. Only
some processes in Vietnam factory produce noise. The overall
noise level of the factory is within the local standards.

Employees

The Group believes that employees are valuable assets for its
future development and success. As we prioritize the safety and
health of employees, we are committed to improving occupational
safety and health management in order to provide a safe working
environment for employees. The Group formulates a people-
oriented human resource management policy to protect the
benefits of employees and provide them with fair promotion and
training opportunities. At the same time, the Group improves
cohesiveness of employees and understands their opinions through
various communication channels so as to facilitate our long-term
development. As at 31st December 2020, the Group employed
997 employees primarily responsible for management, sales
and marketing, shipping, procurement, finance and accounting,
engineering and production.

SEBmEANETHFGELRE - BRERIHA
BHTE QNREKEERBESINRETIFNET
VAEMBHEE  ARESEINSBER - hER
MRS RIBE A TR B EBRRBIFENET -
E BRI E BIS TR RS KT o R RAHRRES
IKFRBHARE  EMEMINTRERTE -
BEmMELN TXRE - REHHEAERALHRE
2 MARABNIFELRE  BEREIKIH

AR EHIRE -

8T

BEBEE TRYRAIRRERMEINMEHNES
BE -BFREINZE2MERAEEEZE - /1K
TEBELTEIREEESE  AEIRME—MEZE
R TVEIRSE - EEBIEUABENANERERER
% REEIMNERN  BETRHATNEA &IE
HEE#E - [ SEEASEBEEREREE
TITREMETNER  UHBARNERER - ©
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)

Occupational Safety and Health

The safety and health of employees are crucial to a productive
workplace. Therefore, we have formulated policies, objectives,
management systems and operating procedures regarding safety.
We are committed to providing a safe working environment for
employees in compliance with the relevant laws and regulations
such as the Law of the People’s Republic of China on Work Safety,
the Regulations of Guangdong Province on Production Safety, and
the Occupational Safety and Health Law of Vietnam. The Group
have formulated relevant rules and regulations on production safety
management, which have clearly stated the responsibilities of the
safety production committees, departments at various levels and
safety production management personnel of factories in China and
Vietnam. Furthermore, the Group has set up a work safety and
health management team under the responsibility system for safe
production, consisting of employees with relevant qualifications
and experience from various departments. The team is responsible
for supervising the work environment and health conditions in
the production sites and the safety compliance of staff. In order
to maintain a sound safety production accountability system, we
regularly conduct safety production accountability assessments in
our production sites and provide comprehensive safety training for
our employees during quarterly safety production meetings.

Under the impact of the COVID-19 outbreak, the Group is
committed to protecting the health and safety of the employees.
We have implemented a series of precautionary and control
measures to provide a hygienic and safe working environment. We
have prepared our employees with epidemic prevention supplies
such as thermometers, face masks and sanitizers. We also require
employees going to and from high-risk areas or abroad to conduct
internal health declaration and quarantine to reduce the risk of
transmission within the factory. We have set up an epidemic
prevention team in China and developed a documentation system
to effectively and comprehensively monitor the epidemic situation.
To minimize the risk of contracting and spreading COVID-19 in
our workplace, our Vietnam operation has conducted thorough
disinfection in factory and sterilized the containers from abroad.

We implement management procedures for hazardous chemicals
and oil products to prevent adverse effects on people and the
environment during the procurement, transportation, storage, use,
and disposal processes. In addition, the employee responsible for
the handling of hazardous chemicals must receive training to obtain
general knowledge of managing storage of hazardous substances,
and must be accompanied by safety management personnel when
he/she is handling hazardous chemicals.

RBRE @ hEaBs(E)
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)

RE  #HEahEaRE(E)

We have established a series of measures to deal with and control
emergencies, including contingency plans for accidents such as
fire, typhoon and rainstorm, and leakage of hazardous substances.
Under the safe production responsibility system, the Group
establishes different emergency response teams including fire
services team to respond to any accident immediately in order to
keep our employees safe and minimize the impacts on operations.
At the same time, the Group regularly provides trainings such as
firefighting training, first aid and rescue training, chemical accident
response training to relevant teams to ensure they have sufficient
skills to deal with emergencies. In addition, we provide emergency
training and drills annually to enhance employees’ safety
awareness and incident handling capabilities, as well as promoting
important safety issues to employees through bulletin boards, thus
reducing the chance and impacts of accidents.

During the reporting year, we did not record any work-related
fatalities, and the number of working days lost due to work-related
injuries was 67 days (2019: 360 days). We will continue to monitor
and review the level of work-related injuries, carry out regular
inspections and rectification of potential safety threats to ensure
the safety of our employees in the workplace. In Vietnam, we
arrange annual medical check-ups for all employees.

Employment Policy

To facilitate a more effective and systematic management of our
human resources, the Group has formulated an employment policy
that adheres to the Labour Law and the Labour Contract Law
of China and Vietnam’s Labor Law and Child Protection Law as
well as other relevant regulations and takes into account practical
circumstances, to serve as a framework for setting employees’
remuneration and benefits. The wages of production line personnel
are calculated on piece-rate basis who can earn more from extra
work. We pay social insurance premiums for our staff members
and offer benefits such as bonuses, annual leave, meal, lunch
subsidies, accommodation and workwear. Those who work
overtime on working days, weekends and statutory holidays can
earn 1.5 to 3 times of the basic hourly wage rate. The Group pays
its employees on the basis of a standard wage not lower than the
minimum wage specified in local regulations and standards at the
operation sites, and the wages are subject to adjustment from time
to time on the basis of the wage regulations, corporate profits and
personal performance.

BAITRHIRT T — FR5I B R A% | B B A HE e
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)

As the Group adheres to the principle of equal opportunity, we
hire people based on merits with zero tolerance of any differential
treatment based on gender, age and race. In order to avoid the
employment of forced labor and child labor®, the Group has
formulated the Policy on Preventing Child Labor and the Policy
on Preventing Forced Labor. We ascertain the identity and age
of the applicants during the recruitment process. The group will
not employ applicants younger than the legal working age in the
locality. In addition, the Group does not tolerate occurrence of any
forced labor and encourages employees to report related violations.
The Group has established the procedures for handling and
following up the relevant complaints.

There is not any non-compliance case in the employment and
labour related laws and regulations mentioned above during the
year.

HERERHRE(E)

IRIB

ERIRETFERENEE - HABAKES - BHH
SRXABTBDEMENER - F8RERNERIFF
B o RN KEBIE TCHIERETHER) %
BREBR)IEREARESE T RETS - £ HE
BTRBEET  BAUBERERBENSHNFE

e FREREMESETIEFRNEREZ—ET
@%&ﬁ’zﬂy Z%T&,%e PAKEEAEN®RASTH

BN EERAERTEEMEERERE - I
HE?ZEJJEI%%&*H%@E%%\%%

ETEH&&LAL%LZEE%E{J%&%I

Number of Staff 2020 2019 2018 BI¥H —E-EFE ZE-hE —ZEBE-N\E
By gender RIS
Male 366 362 379 S 366 352 379
Female 631 763 551 z 631 763 551
By employment category RERSEES
Senior management 9 8 9 ISEN 9 8 9
Middle management 138 147 156 iR 138 147 156
Junior 850 960 765 IE 850 960 765
By age RERED
<30 328 413 180 <30 328 413 180
30-50 608 652 700 30-50 608 652 700
>50 61 50 50 >50 61 50 50
Development and Training Opportunities BRERIZIIHE
The Group provides training opportunities for employees, and AR B THEER K - EEETFEASILRE I
formulates corresponding annual training plans in light of the HZERZEHIFIA %:E’Jiri FIETE - HPURAA
development needs of each department every year to improve ABEBEZEMN - FIUALATIE€EBES TIETHEE -
the professional skills of employees. We also regularly review 7 Hi# ZEEEAIE’JIT’E7}<¥ BARBEREMNBE TR

the performance of employees through the employee evaluation
system to provide promotion opportunities for outstanding
employees so as to help employees develop and give full play
to their abilities and retain talents for the Group. We hope to
continuously improve the performance of employees and facilitate
our long-term development.

5 This refers to any individual under the age of 16 years in China and
18 years in Vietnam.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)
RIE - mwERERHRE(E)

We offer internal and external training opportunities for our
employees. To facilitate new employees to understand the
Group's background, rules and regulations, job duties, product
identification, quality policy, restriction of hazardous substances
(RoHS) and occupational safety, etc., they are required to receive
induction training. In addition to induction training, the Group
has formulated annual training plans for various departments, in
which the corresponding training items are defined for employees,
in order to ensure that employees have sufficient skills for
fulfilling responsibilities of their jobs, and also to enhance their
awareness of the Group's code of conduct and job-related risks.
For example, qualified organizations are invited to provide training
to production operators on production expertise of power cords
and wire harness, as well as other ancillary work knowledge such
as storage, maintenance, technology and quality management, to
further enhance the professional skills of employees. The Group
also provides courses covering topics of basic ISO knowledge,
site management, firefighting and first aid to satisfy the functional
and technical needs of various departments. Effectiveness of
training implemented by various departments is evaluated by the
Administration Department.

SEGTETIARRIINENEIIKE - FOPIEE
THELPIBEERABMIREE - AEFTABNET
W ABBARIEI - NEREEEES - REH
B~ BISPR) TERI - Bmahs - BEHOR -
BEUMERBIES (RoHS) BELZ2EANR -
R THREABIEIION - KRETRRAFIBSRIESF
EAER R SNE A IERIETE] - DA E T YRR A0
B RREA B TH&E R LA TFmiRE R
HAEE - fINEEEHFAERNEERERE
ERESETERENT BRFEEZTEMEAIG
Al ARFEE THMEBB TEMBNAEE - #
& Bl MEEEE  E—PRSBTNHEER
Bt - REITT S LHMISOER M - TIHEIE - H
B3 M s oI SE ARAZ - DA B BHEERFI TR A9 Bk e
M EMFE - ZEFIE BRI AIRATT
BERE - femiad RS IET & -

Average Number of Training EBE¥

Hours for Employees® 2020 2019 2018 Z o Ee —BCEE ZT-hE —B-N\EFE

By gender BRI &S

Male 13.5 25.5 32.0 S 13.5 25.5 32.0

Female 13.5 16.0 34.2 gl 13.5 16.0 34.2

By employment category RERSEES

Senior management 30 1.0 14.0 [SE 30 1.0 14.0

Middle management 8.7 26.4 41.9 R 8.7 26.4 41.9

Junior 14.1 18.0 33.2 LIRS 14.1 18.0 33.2
Communication with and Caring of Employees ETEBERBE

We encourage our employees to put forward suggestions and ideas
that are beneficial to the Group’s development. Through existing
communication channels and mechanisms (such as suggestion
box), employees are welcomed to express their opinions on various
business aspects and daily works. If an employee’s proposal or
suggestion is considered constructive by the Group or adopted
by relevant department, the employee will be commended and
rewarded. The Group has established a representative labour union
in Vietnam to discuss with the management on matters relating to
employee benefits.

6 The figures represent the total number of training hours by
employment category divided by the number of employees who
received training and were still employed by Perennial as at 31st
December of the reporting year.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)

We regularly organize events to promote unity among our
employees, boost morale and the sense of belonging towards the
Group. For example, we present mooncakes to our employees to
celebrate the Mid-Autumn Festival together and thank employees
for their contributions to the Group. We also present the Annual
Outstanding Employee Award to recognize the outstanding
contributions of the award-winning employees on our gala. To
show our care for our employees, we also provide appropriate
assistance to those in need. In Vietham, we provided financial
assistance to the families of our employees who were severely
affected by Typhoon Molave.

Operation

As a manufacturer, we are committed to establishing and
maintaining good long-term collaboration with customers and
suppliers. We value opinions of our customers, and we strive to
continuously improve the quality of our products and conduct our
business in a responsible manner.

Product Quality

The Group is committed to delivering top quality and safe products
to our customers, all raw materials are required to meet product
safety and environmental requirements (e.g. RoHS). The Group has
obtained the ISO9001 Quality Management System Certification
for the factories in China and Vietnam. The Group has formulated
strict internal quality control procedures to monitor the quality of
raw materials, production process and products. The quality of
our products has been recognized by our customers in different
countries. The Group uses wires that contain at least 99.96% of
copper, which allow our products to have high energy efficiency.
The quality control procedures of the Group also require to ensure
the product consistency, and prevent and correct non-conforming
products. The Group conducts comprehensive quality inspections
of all products, and only the products that pass the inspection can
enter the next process.

In addition to product quality, we also run safety test on our
products. The Group carries out high-voltage safety test on the
wires and power cord products, and we require a 100% passing
rate. The testing centre of the Group also conducts reliability test
on samples and finished products every three months, including
plastic aging and tensile testing. The Group's “Safety and Reliability
Policy” guarantees that our products meet the requirements of the
safety certification body and ensure our users are provided with user
manual and safety guideline. During the reporting year there was
not any report on sold or delivered products that had to be recalled
for safety and health reasons.

RBRE @ hEaBs(E)
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)
RIE - mwERERHRE(E)

The Group has formulated the Control Procedures for Non-
conforming Products to supervise and follow up all non-conforming
products. As stipulated by the Group, the relevant department shall,
within 24 hours after it found any non-conforming product, carry out
preliminary correction, and if such non-conformity involves several
departments, the main responsible department shall organize
cross-department quality meetings with the relevant departments
to discuss and formulate solutions. The non-conforming products
can only enter the next process after passing the inspection.
If the products are still not up to standard after such handling,
we will dispose the products and consider revising the ancillary
quality system. However, if any product is found with major non-
conformance or fails to meet the standards repetitively during
the manufacturing process, the on-site person-in-charge from the
Quality Control Department is allowed to suspend the relevant
production process, analyze the causes of the problem together
with the Production Department, Engineering Department and other
relevant departments, formulate solutions, and resume production
only after the quality problem is controlled or solved.

Customer Relationship

We value the relationship with our customers and actively listen to
and follow up their opinions and demands. We have established
a sound complaint handling procedure. The head of the Quality
Control Department shall, within 24 hours upon receipt of
complaint information, analyze and follow up the received customer
complaints, identify the root cause of the problem within 3 working
days, formulate corrective actions within 7 working days, submit
the solutions and results to relevant personnel, and then determine
the solution with the customer. In addition to solving the problems
raised by the customer, we also conduct follow-up checks on 3
batches of similar types of products, in order to prevent recurrence
of the same problem. We distribute satisfaction survey forms to
our customers in the fourth quarter each year, to collect their views
on the Group’s products in respect of quality, service, delivery
time, etc. Notwithstanding small number of complaints regarding
product appearance (12 cases in total) (2019: 15 cases), all of
them were properly handled according to the customer complaint
handling procedures.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)

Confidential Information of Customers and Intellectual
Property

In day-to-day operations, the Group might access to confidential
and non-public technical information of customers. We understand
the importance of strict protection of customers’ confidential
information to the reputation and evaluation of the Group. Hence,
the Group has established a strict confidentiality system to
protect the information security of customers. We also require our
employees to comply with the relevant regulations of the Group
and perform the duty of confidentiality relating to their work. Any
employee who is found to violate the confidentiality system will be
punished in accordance with relevant local laws and regulation at
the operation location.

At the same time, the Group also values the protection of
intellectual property. We have the right to apply for corresponding
patents for all inventions, technological innovations, products or
formulas created and developed by employees during their service.
We are committed not to infringing upon the intellectual property
of any other enterprise. Any employee who conducts any such
infringement is subject to severe punishment.

Ethics

The Group attaches great importance to the ethics of its employees
and is committed to establishing a clean corporate culture. Each
employee is required to comply with the Code of Ethics. Through
reward and punishment measures, we convey the message
of adherence to business ethics to our employees. To prevent
conflicts of interest, we require employees responsible for sales
and procurement to disclose whether they have any relationship
other than business relationship with any existing supplier or
customer. The Group also regularly engages professional third-party
consultant to assist in evaluating the effectiveness of its internal
control measures in order to ensure the management measures
are effectively implemented, thus safeguarding the Group's
requirements for ethics. Our operations are in compliance with the
laws and regulations including China’s Criminal Law, Anti-Money
Laundering Law and Vietnam’s Anti-Corruption Law and Anti-
Money Laundering Law on prevention of bribery in the operating
areas. During the reporting year, we did not have any corruption
case.

RBRE @ hEaBs(E)
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RIE - mwERERHRE(E)

Supply Chain Management

The Group regulates the procurement process through the
formulation of the Procurement Procedures to ensure that the
selected suppliers continuously provide conforming materials
to meet our production needs. In addition to evaluating the
production capacity of suppliers, we also evaluate and select new
suppliers based on their history, product quality, price, and quality
and environment management system. The Group also requires
suppliers to complete trade safety investigations as required by the
local customs. We conduct monthly assessment for our existing
suppliers, and require the suppliers receiving a poor evaluation
result to make improvements. The general manager of the Group
decides whether to re-evaluate or disqualify the suppliers with poor
performance and of no signs of improvement.

Apart from compliance, material quality and service quality of
the suppliers, we also attach importance to their environmental
performance. In order to monitor the environmental performance
of the Group's supply chain, we require suppliers to strictly comply
with our environmental protection requirements, and carry out
investigation or assessment on the environmental management of
designated suppliers in accordance with ISO14001 Environmental
Management System. We have the following environmental
requirements for suppliers:

- Provision of environmentally-friendly products which cause
no adverse impact to the environment

- Proper handling of all types of gases, liquid and solid waste
produced during production

- Application of clean production technology

- Minimal application of dangerous raw materials during
production

- Minimal use of packaging materials

- Minimal exhaust emission and noise pollution by vehicles or
during production

- Compliance with relevant requirements of the Group

HEEEE
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)

In order to monitor the compliance of suppliers, we conduct
environmental audits on designated suppliers. If the supplier fails
to meet our environmental requirements, we would instruct such
supplier to make rectification, and if necessary, we will arrange
meeting with the management of suppliers for follow-up actions.
The supplier will be disqualified if the cases are considered to be
serious.

RBRE @ hEaBs(E)

BT EBHERNARYE - RIFEHEE RS
BEES o DHEHTHARMNEHRESE -
RSB ESN - RRERERHES 2R
ABEHEEE  WEREBER - RIUSZHRERE
f o

Number of Suppliers 2020 2019 2018 HEEEHE —EEFE —T-hE —ZEB-NE

By region Rt EE D

Hong Kong 70 70 68 BA 70 70 68

Mainland China 190 185 180 R A 190 185 180

Vietnam 3 4 N/A i) 3 4 TNEA

Other areas 15 15 15 H ittt 15 15 15
Charitable Activities DEH

In addition to business development, we are also committed to
participating in the charity-related activities and paying attention to
communities in need in the society through donations to charity and
volunteer bodies. The Group is concerned about the development
and growth of children and made donations to a number of
educational institutions and funds in Hong Kong and Mainland
China during the year. The Group donated money to Guizhou
Cultural Heritage and Rural Development Foundation to support
the promotion of local rural education and training, develop cultural
and historical projects, improve medical and public health projects,
with an aim at improving local livelihood and life quality. The Group
also donated to the Correctional Services Children’s Education
Trust and Sowers Action, in the hope that those recipients will
have more learning opportunities and will make contributions to
the society in future. Apart from supporting education projects,
the Group also showed its care for the underprivileged by making
donations to Po Leung Kuk and the HKSH Villiage Volunteers during
the year. During the reporting year, we made donations of totally
HK$905,000 (2019: HK$1,465,000).
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RE  #HEahEaRE(E)

Content Index of the Environmental, Social
and Governance Reporting Guide of Hong
Kong Stock Exchange

ERBIA(RRE  HERER

EHESDRERS

Chapter(s)
General Containing 85
Disclosure Relevant —REER HEER
and KPIs Description Information Remarks BRENEE #Ha HEH i
Environmental BE
Aspect A1: Emissions EEAT: S
General Disclosure: — M5
Information on the policies and compliance with ~ Environment FBEEARBREREHN  MKRE BE
relevant laws and regulations that have a significant WEHE BERBERENNES
impact on the issuer relating to air and greenhouse MR - RETHETABERY
gas emissions, discharges into water and land, and SNEBEERAIINER -
generation of hazardous and non-hazardous waste.
KPI A1.1 The types of emissions and ~ / As the Group’s business BREN BrEEREE FEEEBTY
respective emissions data does not involve the EIEAL BEE RAREERGEY)
emission of air pollutants in MOBER - SLEET
large amounts, such figures THE -
are not disclosed herein.
KPI A1.2 Greenhouse gas emissions  Environment BREY BERBGHNE BE
in total and intensity ~ Energy Conservation BEA12 LEE — BRI
KPI A1.3 Total hazardous waste Environment BREY FMEAREREEN B5
produced and intensity ~ Pollution Prevention BEA3 BERTE it i)
and Treatment
KPI A1.4 Total non-hazardous waste ~ Environment BREN FEERZEEY B3R
produced (intonnes) and, - Pollution Prevention IBIEA1 4 BE(AMHE) R —52mE
where appropriate, intensity  and Treatment (WER)EE
KPIA15 Description of measures ~ Environment The Group's business does BER FUREENEN 'R AEEZEBTS
tomitigate emissionsand - Pollution Prevention ot involve the emission BIEA15 EREAENE ke RAEERSENM
results achieved and Treatment of air pollutants in large HOHERR o

amounts.
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IRIB

HERERHRE(E)

Chapter(s)
General Containing 85
Disclosure Relevant —REER HEER
and KPls Description Information Remarks BEEREE i HEE i
KPI A1.6 Description of how Environment BREN FIEEAERE B3R
hazardous and non- ~ Pollution Prevention IBIZA16 ERENNAE . —5RR
hazardous wastes are and Treatment REEEENET
handled, reduction initiatives REBRE
and results achieved
Aspect A2: Use of Resources EEA2: ERER
General Disclosure: —REE:
Policies on the efficient use of resources. Environment BRERERNER o B3
KPI A2.1 Direct and/or indirect energy  Environment BREN RERENNER BE
consumption by type (e.g. - Energy Conservation 1BIEA2.1 L/ SrsER(m — 1R
electricity, gas or ol in total B Rk EfE
{kWh in'000s) and intensity (AFMEF R
BREE
KPI A2.2 Water consumption in total ~ Environment BREN ERKERER  BR
and intensity - Reducing Resource BIEA2.2 —HOER
Wastage RE
KPI A23 Description of energy use ~ Environment BREY HlgRERNE BB
efficiency initiativesand - Energy Conservation EEA23 FEIRFTGKE  -ERR
results achieved
KPI A2.4 Description of whether there  Environment BREY BISKRERNKE B
is any issue in sourcing - Reducing Resource EEA24 TABENEE . -ROER
water that is fit for purpose, ~ Wastage NEREABKIZ  RE
water efficiency initiatives HEVGIGEES
and results achieved
KPI A2.5 Total packaging material ~ Environment BREY HEmmReEy ®5
used for finished products - Reducing Resource EIEA25 HOAs (g —FPER
(in tonnes) and, if applicable, ~ Wastage BR(ER)SE RE
with reference to per unit EBfhE
produced
Aspect A3: The Environment and Natural Resources BEA3 : BERXRAER
General Disclosure: Policies on minimizing the / As the Group's business —RBE  RERTAUBERRR AEEZEBAT
issuer's significant impact on the environment and does not pose a significant BREREATENHE o B RS EEERIR
natural resources. impact on its surrounding BRRAERAH
ecological environment [EERERTE -
KPI A3.1 Description of the significant / and the supply of natural BRED FlEREDERE HMERS ©
impacts of activities on the resources, no such 1RIZA3.1 BRRAERRNE
environment and natural disclosure is made herein. AYERBERE
resources and the actions BEBETENTE

taken to manage them
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RE  #HEahEaRE(E)

Chapter(s)

General Containing E]

Disclosure Relevant —REER HEER

and KPls Description Information Remarks BEEREE i HEE i

Social e

Employment and Labor Practices ERERBIER

Aspect B1: Employment BB : EfE

General Disclosure: Information on the policies Staff —WBE  AEEHRRE BER EI

and compliance with relevant laws and regulations - Employment B Tfe - BE - FEHE . -EEEE

that have a significant impact on the issuer relating Policy Sl - REGUREAFBRERN

to compensation and dismissal, recruitment and MBER  RETHETABEAYE

promotion, working hours, rest periods, equal MEBEEERADINER

opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination, and other

benefits and welfare.

KPIB1.1 Total workforce by gender, ~ Staff BiEN iR ERE BT
employment type, age — Employment 1EIEB1.1 B FRERRE  —ERIE
group and geographical Policy EEHNEBEH
region

KPIB1.2 Employee tumoverrate~ / The figures are considered BREN &R FERAR IIEEE AR
by gender, age group and sensitive and not disclosed 15EB1.2 RBEANES B BTTRE -
geographical region herein. AL E

Aspect B2: Health and Safety [EfEB2 : #EHRE2

General Disclosure: Information on the policies and ~ Staff —REER FEREZ2TIERER BT

compliance with relevant laws and regulations that - Occupational Safety REEEEFBEUAENICE B -BERER

have a significant impact on the issuer relating to and Health THETARERYZMERLER  BE
providing a safe working environment and protecting RBIMER -

employees from occupational hazards.

KPI B2.1 Number and rate of work- ~ Staff BiREn ATfEEmEE BT
related fatalities - Occupational Safety 151ZB2.1 MAB L% -BEZ2R

and Health [ER

KPI B2.2 Lost days due to work injury ~ Staff BREY RIGEXIER BT

- Occupational Safety 15iZB2.2 # “BEZ2R
and Health (553

KPIB2.3 Description of occupational  Staff BEN HOARANEE BI
health and safety measures - Occupational Safety 518823 BEEAZ2ER . -BER2R
adopted, how they are and Health NREERTRE BER
implemented and monitored Bhk
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Chapter(s)
General Containing ]
Disclosure Relevant —REER HEER
and KPls Description Information Remarks BEEREE i HEE i
Aspect B3: Development and Training EEB3 : #ERE
General Disclosure: Policies on improving Staff —MEE BHRAEERETIER BT
employees’ knowledge and skills for discharging - Development and EMABR AR - ElRIE BRI
duties at work. Description of training activities. Training opportunities o ke
KPI B3.1 The percentage of / The percentage of male BREY RURIREERER SFURLEET
employees trained by and female employees 15IEB3. EPmTHIEEE A EL B
gender and employee trained were 96% and 97% alsd 96597% °
category respectively.
KPIB3.2 The average training hours ~ Staff BREY ZHRIRESER BT
completed per employee - Development and 15IZB3.2 25 54EEBR —EELE
by gender and employee Training opportunities KEIMTHEEE  4eg
category
Aspect B4: Labor Standards [EMB4 - HTEA
General Disclosure: Information on the policies and ~ Staff —MEE: BENLETSANST BT
compliance with relevant laws and regulations that  — Employment Policy B RETHETARENYE —ERIE
have a significant impact on the issuer relating to BB ERRADINER -
preventing child and forced labor.
KPI B4.1 Description of measures ~ Staff BHEN HlRAEEEN BT
to review employment - Employment Policy 151ZBA.1 MERABSET -EBEX
practices to avoid child and REEST
forced labor
KPI B4.2 Description of steps taken  Staff BREY HOTERERE BI
to eliminate such practices - Employment Policy i51ER42 REERBEER —ERIE

when discovered

FRERERA S5
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RE  #HEahEaRE(E)

Chapter(s)
General Containing E]
Disclosure Relevant —REER HEER
and KPls Description Information Remarks BEEREE i HEE i
Operating Practices BEE
Aspect B5: Supply Chain Management [BMEBS : fEEEE
General Disclosure: Policies on managing Operation The Group has no policy on —REE EERERORERME 28 SEVRERHE
environmental and social risks of the supply chain. - Supply Chain managing the social risks of ~ EURER ° —HERER BHEERME
Management supply chains. %o
KPI B5.1 Number of suppliers by Operation BREN RwEENNEE 2
geographical region ~ Supply Chain 151Z85.1 BEE —HERER
Management
KPI B5.2 Description of practices Operation BREY FlEEEREE =8
relating to engaging - Supply Chain 151ZB5.2 BMED - mEY —HEREER
suppliers, number of Management TEBEN N
suppliers where the HYE  ARER
practices are being EhIMBRTRER
implemented, how they are babis
implemented and monitored
Aspect B6: Product Responsibility EBEB6 : ERERT
General Disclosure: Information on the policies and ~ Operation —WEE - AEARMERNREN £E
compliance with relevant laws and regulations that - Product Quality fgrERs EE5 - EERLESZE -EREZR
have a significant impact on the issuer relating to URBRAENLRE - RETHET
health and safety, advertising, labeling and privacy ANBEAFEZRIABEERADINE
matters relating to products and services provided o
and methods of redress.
KPI B6.1 Percentage of total products  Operation HHEN BERCERER =28
sold or shipped subjectto - Product Quality 151%B6.1 szl -EREX
recalls for safety and health Easl=hivalis
reasons Bt
KPI B6.2 Number of products -and ~ Operation BREY BEEREGRR =28
service-related complaints  ~ Product Quality 15IZB6.2 BRRFHENR -EREZR
received and how they are B %
dealt with
KPI B6.3 Description of practices Operation BREN BlEEERRE &8
relating to observingand - Confidential 1FIZB6.3 AHEREENE -BExHzE
protecting intellectual Information of I KMAagE
property rights Customers and 1
Intellectual Property
KPI B6.4 Description of quality Operation BREN HIEERTRE 28
assurance process and ~ Product Quality i5IZB6.4 REREKEF -EmEx
recall procedures
KPI B6.5 Description of consumer ~ Operation BREY FEBEERR &8
data protection and privacy - Confidential J51ZB6.5 BRABES A -BEEERE
policies, how they are Information of REBHIRER  ENAHE
implemented and monitored ~ Customers and A 7

Intellectual Property
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Chapter(s)
General Containing 85
Disclosure Relevant —REER HEER
and KPls Description Information Remarks BEEREE i HEE i
Aspect B7: Anti-corruption BHEB7 : R&S
General Disclosure: Information on the policies and ~ Operation —MEE: BELER BR R HE
compliance with relevant laws and regulations that - Ethics FRABBHHRRETHRTAR —BEET
have a significant impact on the issuer relating to EAVERNREAELAGINER -
bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering.
KPI B7.1 Number of concluded legal ~ Operation BREN RESENHET ZE
cases regarding corrupt - Ethics 151ZB7.1 AREEERLY —EEBT
practices brought against BELHESHE
the issuer or its employees RIEREE R
during the reporting period R
and the outcomes of the
cases
KPIB7.2 Description of preventive  Operation HiEN HuEERRE =E
measures and - Ethics 1RIZB7.2 WER - ARIEE - EERT
whistleblowing procedures, HITRERR %
how they are implemented
and monitored
Community HE
Aspect B8: Community Investment [EMBS : HERE
General Disclosure: Policies on community Charitable Activities —BEE - BEOHE2ERERE AHED
engagement to understand the needs of the EMENERENRREEREDE
communities where the issuer operates and to ensure ZEHBENGRNBE
its activities take into consideration the communities’
interests.
KPI B8.1 Focus areas of contribution  Charitable Activities BREY EINEREE  AREY
1RI%BS.1
KPI BS.2 Resources contributedto  Charitable Activities AREE

the focus area

BsREN EXTERMDA
112882 AR
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

TRERBMSE

The Company is firmly committed to statutory and regulatory
corporate governance standards with emphasis on transparency,
independence, accountability, responsibility and fairness.

The Corporate Governance Code

The Directors confirm that the Company has fully complied with
the code provisions set out in the Corporate Governance Code (the
“Code") attached to the Listing Rules as Appendix 14, and adopted
recommended best practices set out in the Code whenever
appropriate. During the year, Ms. Koo Di An, Louise, Chairman,
was unable to hold a meeting with the Independent Non-Executive
Directors without the presence of the Executive Directors due to
other prior business engagements.

The Board

The Board’'s primary role is to protect and enhance long-term
shareholder value. It sets the overall strategy for the Group and
supervises executive management to whom the responsibility of
managing the day-to-day operation of the Group is delegated. In
the course of discharging its duties, the Board acts in integrity, due
diligence and care, and in the best interests of the Company and its
shareholders.

The Board oversees the Company in a responsible and effective
manner. It has adopted formal terms of reference which details
its functions and responsibilities. Its main responsibilities include,
but not limited to, ensuring competent management, approving
objectives, strategies and business plans, ensuring prudent
conduct of operations within laws and approved policies, ensuring
and monitoring integrity in the Company’s conduct of affairs. Day-
to-day management of the Group is delegated to the Executive
Directors or the officer in charge of each division who are given
clear directions as to his/her powers and are required to report back
to the Board. Functions reserved to the Board and delegated to the
management are reviewed periodically. The Directors, as members
of the Board, jointly share responsibility for the proper direction
of the Company. The Company has formal service contract with
each Director setting out the key terms and conditions of his/her
appointment.
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The Board (Continued)

The Board currently consists of eight (8) members whose details
are set out on pages 53 to 56 of this report. It meets quarterly and
holds specific meetings as and when they are deemed necessary.
The Board held four (4) meetings during the year ended 31st
December 2020. Notices of Board meetings were given to the
Directors at least 14 days prior to the date of the meetings with
the agenda and any accompanying Board papers sent at least
three days before the date of the meetings. All Directors are given
the opportunity to include matters for discussion in the agenda.
Minutes of the Board meetings and committee meetings, recording
in sufficient detail the matters considered and decisions reached,
are kept by the Company Secretary and sent to the Directors or
the committee members (as appropriate) for their comment and
records within reasonable time after the meeting is held. They are
also available for inspection by the Directors at any reasonable time
on reasonable notice by any Director. A record of the Directors’
attendance at Board meetings is set out on page 49 of this report.

The Group provides extensive background information about its
history, mission and businesses to the Directors. The Directors are
also provided with the opportunity to visit the Group’s operational
facilities and meet with the management to gain a better
understanding of its business operations.

All Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous
professional development to develop and refresh their knowledge
and skills. The Company updates Directors on the latest
developments regarding the Listing Rules and other applicable
regulatory requirements from time to time, to ensure compliance
and enhance their awareness of good corporate governance
practices.

During the year, all Directors, namely, Messrs Mon Chung Hung,
Siu Yuk Shing, Marco, Mon Wai Ki, Vicky, Mon Tiffany, Koo Di An,
Louise, Lau Chun Kay, Lee Chung Nai, Jones and Chung Kit Ying,
received regular briefings and updates on the Group’s business,
operations, risk management and corporate governance matters.
Materials on new or changes to salient laws and regulations
applicable to the Group were provided to the Directors. They also
attended regulatory update sessions and seminars on relevant
topics. All Directors are requested to provide the Company with
their respective training record pursuant to the Code.

The Board has separate and independent access to the senior
management and the Company Secretary at all times. The Board
and each Board Committee also has access to independent
professional advice where appropriate.
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The Board (Continued)

The Company has arranged for appropriate liability insurance
for the Directors and the senior management of the Group for
indemnifying their liabilities arising out of corporate activities. The
insurance coverage is reviewed on an annual basis.

In order to reinforce independence, accountability and area of
responsibility, the role of the Chairman is separate from that of the
Chief Executive Officer. Ms. Koo Di An, Louise is the chairman
of the Company and Mr. Mon Chung Hung is the chief executive
officer of the Company. Their respective responsibilities are clearly
established and set out in writing. The Chairman manages the
Board and is responsible for ensuring that adequate information is
provided to the Directors in a timely manner and all Directors are
properly briefed on issues arising at Board meetings, while the
Chief Executive Officer is responsible for implementing strategies,
policies, and for conducting the Group's businesses.

Pursuant to the Bye-laws of the Company, one-third of the
Directors that have served longest on the Board must retire at each
annual general meeting, and may offer themselves for re-election.
Notwithstanding that the Non-Executive Directors are appointed
for a specific term of one to three years, they are also subject to
retirement by rotation at least once every three years as other
Directors do. To enhance accountability, any further re-appointment
of an Independent Non-Executive Director, who has served the
Board for more than nine years, is subject to a separate resolution
to be passed by the shareholders. In addition, Directors who are
appointed to fill a casual vacancy should be subject to election
by shareholders at the first general meeting after appointment
according to the Company’s Bye-laws.

Pursuant to the requirement of the Listing Rules, the Company
confirms receipt of a written confirmation from each of the
Independent Non-Executive Directors for confirmation of his
independence to the Company. The Company considers all its
Independent Non-Executive Directors to be independent.

Responsibilities of the Directors for the

Consolidated Financial Statements

The Board should present a balanced, clear and comprehensible
assessment of the Company’s and the Group’'s performance,
position and prospects. The Directors should prepare the
consolidated financial statements on a going concern basis, with
supporting assumptions or qualifications as necessary. The Board’s
responsibility to present a balanced, clear and understandable
assessment extends to annual and interim reports, other price-
sensitive announcements and other financial disclosures required
under the Listing Rules, and reports to regulators as well as
to information required to be disclosed pursuant to statutory
requirements.
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Board Committees

The Board has established four (4) committees, each of them
having specific terms of reference, to consider matters relating to
specialized areas and to advise the Board or, where appropriate,
to decide on behalf of the Board on such matters. Details of these
committees and their principal terms of reference are as follows:

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee was established on 1st April 2003. Its current
members include three (3) Independent Non-Executive Directors
and one (1) Non-Executive Director, who are:

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. LAU Chun Kay (Chairman)

Mr. LEE Chung Nai, Jones

Ms. CHUNG Kit Ying

Non-Executive Director
Ms. KOO Di An, Louise

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are available on the
Company's website at http://perennial.todayir.com and the Stock
Exchange’s website.

The Audit Committee is mainly responsible for reviewing
the Group's financial and accounting policies and practices,
making recommendation to the Board on the appointment, re-
appointment and removal of the external auditors and any
question of resignation or dismissal, their audit fees, matters
relating to the independence of the external auditors; meeting
with the external auditors to discuss the nature and scope of the
audit, and matters of concern when requested to do so by the
external auditors; reviewing the interim financial report and annual
consolidated financial statements before they are submitted to
the Board; discussing problems and reservations arising from the
interim review and final audit, and any other matters the external
auditors may wish to discuss, and reviewing the external auditors’
letter to the management and the management’'s response;
considering any major investigation findings on internal control
and risk management systems matters as delegated by the Board
or on its own initiative and the management’s response to these
findings and reviewing arrangements which employees may use,
in confidence, to raise concerns about possible improprieties in
financial reporting, internal control, risk management systems or
other matters.

The Audit Committee meets at least twice a year with the external
auditors. The Audit Committee held two (2) meetings during the
year ended 31st December 2020. An attendance record of its
members at the Audit Committee meetings is set out on page 49
of this report.
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Audit Committee (Continued)

The Audit Committee has reviewed the interim financial report
and the audited financial results of the Group for the year ended
31st December 2020 and the accounting principles and practices
adopted by the Group. The Audit Committee also reviewed the
adequacy and effectiveness of the Company’s internal control
and risk management systems and made recommendations to
the Board. The Board has engaged an outsourced consultant to
perform internal control review services for the Group.

The Audit Committee has full and direct access to the outsourced
internal audit consultant, reviews the reports on all audits
performed and monitors the audit performance. The Audit
Committee also reviews the adequacy of the scope, functions,
competency and resources of the outsourced internal audit
functions.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee was established on 21st November
2005. Its current members include three (3) Independent Non-
Executive Directors and one (1) Non-Executive Director, who are:

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. LAU Chun Kay (Chairman)

Mr. LEE Chung Nai, Jones

Ms. CHUNG Kit Ying

Non-Executive Director
Ms. KOO Di An, Louise

The Remuneration Committee is mainly responsible for
reviewing the Group's remuneration policies, determining the
specific remuneration packages for Executive Directors and
senior management, including terms of salary, discretionary
bonus scheme, benefits in kind, pension rights, compensation
payments and other long-term incentive schemes, and making
recommendations to the Board on remuneration of the Non-
Executive Directors and senior management. The terms of
reference of the Remuneration Committee setting out its authority
and responsibilities are available on the Company’s website at
http://perennial.todayir.com and the Stock Exchange's website.

The Remuneration Committee met once (1) in the year of 2020.
During the meeting, the committee members discussed the
policy for the remuneration of the Executive Directors and senior
management, assessed the performance of the Executive
Directors and approved the remuneration packages of the
Executive Directors. An attendance record of its members at the
Remuneration Committee meeting is set out on page 49 of this
report.
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Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee was established on 21st November
2005. Its current members include three (3) Independent Non-
Executive Directors and one (1) Non-Executive Director, who are:

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. LAU Chun Kay (Chairman)

Mr. LEE Chung Nai, Jones

Ms. CHUNG Kit Ying

Non-Executive Director
Ms. KOO Di An, Louise

The Board adopts a board diversity policy (the “Board Diversity
Policy”) which sets out its approach to achieve and maintain
its diversity through consideration of a number of measurable
objectives including skills, professional experience, cultural and
educational background, gender, age, as well as other attributes
and strengths that are required for the Company’s business from
time to time. Board appointments are made on a merit basis and
candidates are considered against objective selection criteria, with
due regard for the benefits of diversity on the Board.

The Nomination Committee is mainly responsible for reviewing
the structure, size, composition and diversity (including, without
limitation, gender, age, cultural and educational backgrounds,
skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board on a regular
basis, reviewing the candidates’ qualification and competence
and the Board Diversity Policy, assessing the independence
of the Independent Non-Executive Directors and making
recommendations to the Board on appointment and re-
appointment of Directors and the requirement on board diversity,
S0 as to ensure that all nominations are fair and transparent. Having
taken into account the above objective criteria, the Nomination
Committee was of the view that the Company has a diverse Board.
The revised terms of reference of the Nomination Committee
setting out its authority and responsibilities are available on the
Company’s website at http://perennial.todayir.com and the Stock
Exchange's website.

The Nomination Committee met once (1) in the year of 2020.
During the meeting, the committee members discussed the
procedures and criteria which should be adopted by them in
nominating candidates for directorship and agreed that such
criteria should include the candidates’ professional background,
their financial and commercial experience and their past track
record with other listed companies (if any). Candidates who satisfy
the relevant criteria are then short-listed by the chairman of the
Nomination Committee before their nominations are proposed
to the Nomination Committee. The Nomination Committee
subsequently meets to select the final candidates and submit its
recommendation to the Board for its final approval. An attendance
record of its members at the Nomination Committee meeting is
set out on page 49 of this report.
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Compliance Committee

The Compliance Committee was established on 25th November
2005. Its current members include four (4) Executive Directors,
one (1) Non-Executive Director and three (3) Independent Non-
Executive Directors, who are:

Executive Directors
Mr. MON Chung Hung
Mr. SIU Yuk Shing, Marco
Ms. MON Wai Ki, Vicky
Ms. MON Tiffany

Non-Executive Director
Ms. KOO Di An, Louise (Chairman)

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. LAU Chun Kay

Mr. LEE Chung Nai, Jones

Ms. CHUNG Kit Ying

The Compliance Committee is mainly responsible for (i) reviewing
corporate communication issued by the Company so as to ensure
compliance in every respect with the listing requirements contained
in the Listing Rules; and (ii) reviewing transactions entered into by
the Company so as to ensure compliance with the relevant laws
and regulations applicable to the Company whether of Hong Kong
or elsewhere. To enhance corporate governance, the Compliance
Committee was also delegated with the responsibilities of (i)
developing and reviewing the Company’s policies and practices
on corporate governance and making recommendations to the
Board; (ii) reviewing and monitoring the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior management;
(iii) developing, reviewing and monitoring the code of conduct
applicable to employees and Directors; and (iv) reviewing the
Company’s compliance with the Code and disclosure in the
corporate governance report. Where necessary, the Compliance
Committee would seek professional advice in respect of the
requirements of the Listing Rules and other applicable laws and
regulations so as to improve the existing compliance procedures of
the Company.

The Compliance Committee held one (1) meeting during the year
ended 31st December 2020. During the meeting, the committee
members discussed the recent amendments to the Listing Rules
relating to corporate governance and resolved that more resources
should be allocated for meeting the increasingly stringent
requirements of the regulatory authorities. It was also suggested
all future amendments to the Listing Rules should be circulated to
members of the senior management so that they all understand
and can help the Company to comply with its obligations under the
Listing Rules and seminars on Listing Rules updates and corporate
governance practices should be arranged for members of the
senior management and other interested Directors. An attendance
record of its members at the Compliance Committee meeting is
set out on page 49 of this report.
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Internal Control

The Board is responsible for internal control of the Group and
for reviewing its effectiveness. Procedures have been designed
for safeguarding assets against unauthorized use or disposition,
ensuring the maintenance of proper accounting records for the
provision of reliable financial information for internal use or for
publication, and ensuring compliance with applicable laws, rules
and regulations. The procedures provide reasonable but not
absolute assurance against material errors, losses or fraud.

The Board has engaged an outsourced internal audit consultant to
perform independent internal control review services. Thereafter,
the outsourced consultant has assisted the Group to perform a
review of the effectiveness of internal control system for certain
selected processes. The assessment results and proposed
improvement recommendations were reported to the Audit
Committee.

The Board, through the Audit Committee, has reviewed annually
the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control system covering
all material controls, including financial, operational and compliance
controls and risk management functions and, in particular, consider
the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and experience,
training programmes and budget of the Group’s accounting and
financial reporting function for the year ended 31st December
2020. Based on the findings of the outsourced internal audit
consultant and the comments of the Audit Committee, the Board
considers that the Group's internal control system is effective
and adequate. Areas for improvement identified and appropriate
measures taken so as to provide assurance that key business and
operational risks are identified and managed.

The key procedures that the Board has established to provide
effective internal control are as follows:

(@) a comprehensive monthly management reporting system
is in place providing financial and operational performance
indicators to the management, and the relevant financial
information for reporting and disclosure purpose;

(b)  management structure with defined roles, responsibilities
and reporting lines are established. Delegated authorities are
documented and communicated; and

(c) system and procedures are in place to identify, measure,
manage and control risks including liquidity, credit, market,
business, regulatory, operational and reputational risks that
may have an impact on the Group.
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Risk Management Function

The Group has established a robust risk management framework,
which consists of the Board, the Audit Committee and Senior
Management of the Group. The Board determines the nature and
extent of risks that shall be taken in achieving the Group's strategic
objectives, and has the overall responsibility for monitoring the
overall effectiveness of risk management. The Group identifies
key risks that would adversely affect the achievement of the
Group's objectives, and assesses and prioritizes the identified
risks according to a set of standard criteria. Risk mitigation plans
are then established by the risk owners to manage the risks to
acceptable level.

The Board, through the Audit Committee, has reviewed annually
the effectiveness of the Group’s risk management system for the
year ended 31st December 2020. Based on the findings and the
comments of the Audit Committee, the Board considers that the
Group's risk management system is effective and adequate.

External Auditors

The Audit Committee is responsible for considering the
appointment, re-appointment and removal of external auditors
subject to endorsement by the Board and final approval and
authorization by shareholders of the Company in general meeting.
The Audit Committee assesses the external auditors, taking into
account factors such as the performance and quality of the audit
and the objectivity and independence of auditors. The existing
auditors of the Company are PricewaterhouseCoopers who were
first appointed in 1997.

External Auditors’ Remuneration

The Group was charged HK$1,436,000 and HK$1,121,000 by
PricewaterhouseCoopers for auditing and non-auditing services
respectively for the year ended 31st December 2020. The non-
auditing services mainly consist of taxation services.

Financial Reporting

The Board, supported by the accounts department, is responsible
for the preparation of the consolidated financial statements of the
Company and the Group. In preparing the consolidated financial
statements, the Board has adopted generally accepted accounting
standards in Hong Kong and complied with accounting standards
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Appropriate accounting policies have also been used and applied
consistently.

The reporting responsibilities of the external auditors are set out in
the Independent Auditor's Report on pages 61 to 69 of this annual
report.
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Model Code for Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding Directors’
and employees’ securities transactions on terms no less exacting
than the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of
Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 to the
Listing Rules. Having made specific enquiry of all Directors, they
had complied with the required standards of the said code during
the year.

Shareholders’ Rights

The Board and management shall ensure shareholders’ rights
and all shareholders are treated equitably and fairly. Pursuant to
the Company’s Bye-laws, any shareholder entitled to attend and
vote at a general meeting of the Company is entitled to appoint
another person as his proxy to attend and vote instead of him. In
addition, shareholders who hold not less than one-tenth of the
paid up capital of the Company shall have the right, by written
requisition to the Board or the Company Secretary of the Company,
to require a special general meeting to be called by the Board for
the transaction of any business specified in such requisition. The
requisition must state the purposes of the meeting, and must be
signed by the requisitionists and deposited at the registered office
of the Company, and may consist of several documents in like
form each signed by one or more requisitionists. If the Directors do
not within 21 days from the date of the deposit of the requisition
proceed duly to convene a meeting, the requisitionists, or any of
them representing more than one half of the total voting rights of
all of them, may themselves convene a meeting, but any meeting
so convened shall not be held after the expiration of three (3)
months from the said date.

Moreover, shareholders who hold not less than one-twentieth
of the paid up capital of the Company or not less than 100
shareholders shall have the right, by written requisition to the
Board or the Company Secretary of the Company, to put forward
a resolution which may properly be moved and is intended to
be moved at an annual general meeting. The Company shall not
be bound to give notice of the proposed resolution or circulate a
statement with respect to the matter referred to in the proposed
resolution to shareholders unless (a) a copy of the requisition
signed by the requisitionists, or two or more copies which between
them contain the signatures of all the requisitionists, is deposited
at the registered office of the Company not less than six (6) weeks
before the meeting in the case of a requisition requiring notice of
a resolution and not less than one (1) week before the meeting
in the case of any other requisition and (b) there is deposited or
tendered with the requisition a sum reasonably sufficient to meet
the Company’s expenses in giving effect thereto. If, however,
after a copy of the requisition requiring notice of a resolution has
been deposited at the registered office of the Company, an annual
general meeting is called for a date six (6) weeks or less after the
copy has been deposited, the copy though not deposited within the
time required as referred to above shall be deemed to have been
properly deposited for the purposes thereof.
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Shareholders’ Rights (Continued)

Chairmen of the various Board committees, or failing the Chairmen,
any member from the respective committees, must attend the
annual general meetings of the Company to address shareholders’
queries. External auditors shall also be invited to attend the
Company's annual general meetings and are available to assist
the Directors in addressing queries from shareholders relating to
the conduct of the audit and the preparation and content of their
auditors’ report.

For each substantially separate issue at a general meeting, a
separate resolution would be proposed. Resolutions put to the
vote at any general meeting (other than those on procedural and
administrative matters) are taken by poll. Procedures regarding
the conduct of the poll are explained to the shareholders at the
commencement of each general meeting, and questions (if any)
from shareholders regarding the voting procedures would be
answered.

Investor Relations

The Company believes in regular and timely communication with
shareholders as part of its efforts to help shareholders understand
its business better and the way the Company operates.

To promote effective communication with the public at large,
the Company maintains a website on which comprehensive
information about the Company, its major businesses, financial
information and particulars of Directors are posted. The Company'’s
publications, including press releases, announcements, annual and
interim reports, shareholders circulars are being made available on
this website (http://perennial.todayir.com).

In addition, shareholders who have any enquiries regarding the
Company may send their enquiries in writing to the principal place
of business of the Company in Hong Kong for the attention of
the Company Secretary who will then forward the same to the
Board and/or the relevant Board committees for response (where
appropriate). The above policy will be reviewed on a regular basis
to ensure effective communication with the shareholders.

Company Secretary

Mr. Lai Wing Hong is the company secretary of the Company. He
has complied with Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules and has taken
no less than 15 hours of relevant professional training during the
financial year ended 31st December 2020.
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Directors’ Attendance at Board, Audit EENEEE  EEXZEET - HE
ZES  REZES  EEXZFET
Nomination Committee, Compliance RERFRAEzHETHE

Committee, Remuneration Committee,

Committee and General Meetings

Audit Remuneration  Nomination ~ Compliance
Board Committee Committee Committee Committee General
Meetings Meetings Meetings Meetings Meetings Meetings
Ezg EVZEE yizEe REZEE ERZEE
L 6 L 6 EE BRAE
Total number of meetings held (25 C°%F
during the year ended +-A=t-H
31st December 2020 EERE(TZ
EEZ 4 2 1 1 1 1
Number of meetings attended: LELERE
Executive Directors HTES
Mr. MON Chung Hung ARIERE
(Chief Executive Officer & (7TREH R
Deputy Chairman) 2 4 N/A NEF N/A TEf NA NEF 1 1
Mr. SIU Yuk Shing, Marco Bigits 4 N/A T8 N/A T N/A T 1 1
Ms. MON Wai Ki, Vicky REBIT 4 N/A TER N/A T N/A TiEF 1 1
Ms. MON Tiffany RERTT 4 NA TEE N/A TiEF N/A TiE 1 1
Non-Executive Director FHTES
Ms. KOO Di An, Louise BHRLT(£E)
(Chairman) 4 2 1 1 1 1
Independent Non-Executive BUFHTES
Directors
Mr. LAU Chun Kay SIRELS 4 2 1 1 1 1
Mr. LEE Chung Nai, Jones FRERE 4 2 1 1 1 1
Ms. CHUNG Kit Ying EZent 4 2 1 1 1 1
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The Board submits their report together with the audited
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31st
December 2020.

Principal Activities and Geographical

Analysis of Operations

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. Its
subsidiaries are principally engaged in the manufacturing and
trading of electric cable and wire products. The activities of the
subsidiaries are set out in note 28 to the consolidated financial
statements.

An analysis of the Group's performance for the year by
geographical segment is set out in note 5 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Five Year Financial Summary
A summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group for the
last five financial years is set out below:

EXEeRNREEEREREE_T_TF+ A
=T RUEFEZ EEZGEMBRE

FTEXBREBEZHED

ARBZ EBEBR/IRERR - BB AR EEZWK
SHENBEERRERERER - WBARIZE
BEN AR A IS MAM 28

AEFZRTRMRE D 2 ARBEBRADTHER
ARA MBS MAR MRS -

LEMBEHRE
TEBIIAREEBETEM K2 545 - A%
RARHE -

2020 2019 2018 2017 2016

—E-EF —T-hEF ZE-NF E—tF E—RF

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FHT T T T T T

Revenue Was 282,342 301,357 355,744 364,401 359,035

(Loss)/profit for the year 24 (J&18), % F| (19,231) (13,198) (1,760) 19,283 14,622

Total assets WBEE 685,978 714,879 732,950 692,770 637,266

Total liabilities walk 136,698 (152,355) (154,865) (130,353) (132,796)

Total equity B 549,280 562,524 578,085 562,417 504,470
Analysis of the Group’s Performance REBZERRRIW

An analysis of the Group's performance is set forth in the
Chairman’s Statement on pages 6 to 8 of this report.

Major Suppliers and Customers

The percentages of purchases and sales for the year attributable to
the Group's major suppliers and customers respectively, classified
by individual entity, are as follows:

AEBZEZBRANDMERAREF6E8AZE
B

TEHREERER
AEENARE EBHREBRES - AR
DRZEBLEEAOLLARIIT

Purchases ®EE

— the largest supplier - RAMERY

— five largest suppliers combined - AREEREE
Sales HE

— the largest customer -WmARF

— five largest customers combined - AREFA

24%
63%

27%
67%




Major Suppliers and Customers (Continued)
None of the directors, their close associates (as defined in the
Listing Rules) or any shareholder (which to the knowledge of the
directors owns more than 5% of the Company's share capital) had
an interest in the major suppliers or customers noted above.

Dividend Policy

Pursuant to the Dividend Policy, the Board shall also take into
account the following factors of the Company and its subsidiaries
when considering the declaration and payment of dividends:

) operating and financial results;

) cash flow situation;

) business conditions and strategies;

) future operations and earnings;

) taxation considerations;

capital requirements and expenditure plans;

interests of shareholders;

) restrictions under the Bermuda Laws and the Company’s
memorandum if association and the bye-laws of the
Company; and

(i) any other factors that the Board may consider relevant.
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Results and Appropriations
The results of the Group for the year are set out in the consolidated
income statement on page 70 of this report.

The Board does not recommend the payment of a final dividend.

Principal Properties

Details of the principal properties held for the Group’s main
operations are set out in note 14 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Details of the principal properties held for investment purposes are
set out in note 15 to the consolidated financial statements.

Share issued in the year

No new shares were issued during the year. Details of shares
issued as at 31st December 2020 are set out in note 20 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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Distributable Reserves

As at 31st December 2020, the Company’s reserves available for
distribution, calculated in accordance with the laws of Bermuda,
amounted to HK$22,608,000. In addition, the Company's
contributed surplus, amounting to HK$62,548,000 as at 31st
December 2020, is available for distribution. However, the
Company cannot declare or pay a dividend, or make a distribution
out of the contributed surplus if (i) it is, or would after the payment
be, unable to pay its liabilities as they become due; or (ii) the
net realisable value of its assets would thereby be less than the
aggregate of its liabilities and its share capital and share premium
account. The Company’s share premium account with a balance of
HK$15,885,000 as at 31st December 2020 is distributable in the
form of fully-paid bonus shares.

Donations
Charitable donations made by the Group during the year amounted
to approximately HK$905,000.

Pre-Emptive Rights

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company's
Bye-laws and there is no restriction against such rights under the
laws of Bermuda, which would oblige the Company to offer new
shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

Purchase, Sale and Redemption of the

Company'’s Listed Securities

The Company has not redeemed any of its shares during the year.
Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased,
redeemed or sold any of the Company’s shares during the year.

Public Float

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, more than 25% of the
Company'’s issued shares was held by the public as at 23rd March
2021, being the latest practicable date prior to the issue of this
annual report, in accordance with Rule 8.08 of the Listing Rules.
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Analysis of Bank Loans and Other

Borrowings

The Group’s bank loans and other borrowings as at 31st December
2020, in accordance with the repayment schedule (without taking
into account any repayment on demand clause), are repayable over
the following periods:
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RITERREMBER DT

AEER-_Z-_TF+-A=+—HZRTERK
HtE5k - RIFERSRER L ZEE IR BRKEERE
&R - AR THIHRERE

Trust receipt

Bank loans loans Total
IRITER ERWEER WEE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FBT FBT FiBT
Within 1 year 15K 37,200 8,527 45,727
37,200 8,527 45,727
Directors BE
The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of WAFEEARARBEEAREBEHARAATIZESHT ¢
this report were:
Executive Directors HITESE
Mr. MON Chung Hung BIRIE S A
(Chief Executive Officer & Deputy Chairman) (TTIECABE R BT /%)
Mr. SIU Yuk Shing, Marco BB E
Ms. MON Wai Ki, Vicky BRERZ L
Ms. MON Tiffany LERLL
Non-Executive Director FEHITES
Ms. KOO Di An, Louise (Chairman) BTz (FE)
Independent Non-Executive Directors BFHITES
Mr. LAU Chun Kay DR S
Mr. LEE Chung Nai, Jones TREEE
Ms. CHUNG Kit Ying ERE LT

Mr. SIU Yuk Shing, Ms. MON Wai Ki, Vicky and Mr. LAU Chun Kay
will retire in accordance with clause 111 of the Company’s Bye-
laws at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting of the Company.
All of them, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

The term of office of each non-executive and independent non-
executive director is not more than three years and subject to
retirement by rotation in accordance with the Company’s Bye-
laws.

BB LS. - AEBL T RBIRBIEAGREBAR
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EEHE(E)

Biographical Details of Directors and Senior

Management
The biographical details of the directors and senior management
of the Company are set out as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Mon Chung Hung, aged 70, is the founder of the Group,
the Chief Executive Officer, the Deputy Chairman, an Executive
Director, Authorised Representative and a member of the
compliance committee of the Board. Mr. Mon has over 42 years of
experience in the electric cable and wire industry. He is responsible
for the Group’s overall strategic planning and policy making. Mr.
Mon is a director of Spector Holdings Limited, the controlling
shareholder of the Company. He is also the husband of Ms. Koo Di
An, Louise and the father of Ms. Mon Wai Ki, Vicky and Ms. Mon
Tiffany.

Executive Directors (Continued)

Mr. Siu Yuk Shing, Marco, aged 61, is an Executive Director,
Authorised Representative and a member of the compliance
committee of the Board. He joined the Group in 1989. Mr. Siu has
over 32 years of experience in the electric cable and wire industry.
Mr. Siu is also the Sales Director of the Group and is responsible
for sales of the Group's products and product development.

Ms. Mon Wai Ki, Vicky, aged 486, is an Executive Director and a
member of the compliance committee of the Board. She graduated
from the Central Queensland University in Australia with a Bachelor
of Communications degree. She joined the Group in 2004. As the
Marketing Executive, she participates in developing marketing
strategies. She is the daughter of Mr. Mon Chung Hung and Ms.
Koo Di An, Louise, and the elder sister of Ms. Mon Tiffany.

Ms. Mon Tiffany, aged 40, is an Executive Director and a member
of the compliance committee of the Board. She holds a bachelor’s
double major degree in economics and management from the
University of Sydney, Australia, Diploma in Company Direction from
Hong Kong Institute of Directors, and “RSSGB" certification from
Six Sigma Institute. She joined the Group in 2002. As the Marketing
Communications Manager, she coordinates marketing strategies
and is also responsible for the information system of the Company.
She is the daughter of Mr. Mon Chung Hung and Ms. Koo Di An,
Louise, and the younger sister of Ms. Mon Wai Ki, Vicky.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior

Management (Continued)

Non-Executive Director

Ms. Koo Di An, Louise, aged 69, is the Chairman, a Non- Executive
Director, the chairman of the compliance committee and a
member of the audit, remuneration and nomination committees
of the Board. She joined the Group in 1989. Ms. Koo is a director
of Spector Holdings Limited, the controlling shareholder of the
Company. She is also the wife of Mr. Mon Chung Hung and the
mother of Ms. Mon Wai Ki, Vicky and Ms. Mon Tiffany.

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Lau Chun Kay, B.Sc., MBA, M.A., aged 72, is an Independent
Non-Executive Director, the chairman of the audit, remuneration
and nomination committees and a member of the compliance
committee of the Board. He joined the Group in 1996. Mr. Lau is
a registered professional engineer and holds a master’s degree
in business administration and a bachelor’'s degree in electrical
engineering from the University of Hong Kong, and a master
degree in history and a master degree of in Philosophy from the
Chinese University of Hong Kong. Mr. Lau is a Life President of the
Hong Kong Electrical Contractors Association, and a past President
and current Secretary General of The Federation of Asian and
Pacific Electrical Contractors Associations. He is also the Executive
Director of the Hong Kong Federation of Electrical and Mechanical
Contractors. He has over 49 years of experience in management
and engineering.

Mr. Lee Chung Nai, Jones, aged 72, is an Independent Non-
Executive Director and a member of the audit, remuneration,
nomination and compliance committees of the Board. He joined
the Group in 2010. Mr. Lee has over 38 years of experience in
international trade in toys, among which Mr. Lee had also operated
a toys factory with 2,000 workers in China for 10 years. Mr. Lee
had also operated a subsidiary company in Hong Kong for a listed
company in Australia. Mr. Lee has his own toy company.

Ms. Chung Kit Ying, aged 46, is an Independent Non-Executive
Director and a member of the audit, remuneration, nomination
and compliance committee of the Board. She joined the Group
in December 2017. Ms. Chung obtained a degree of Bachelor of
Business Administration and a degree of Master of Science in
Finance from the Chinese University of Hong Kong in 1997 and
2007, respectively. Ms. Chung has worked in an international firm
of certified public accountants and the finance department of a
listed group, and has over 22 years of experience in accounting
and auditing. Ms. Chung is a member of Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior

Management (Continued)

Senior Management

Mr. Seto Sai Cheong Paul, aged 59, is the Chief Financial Officer of
the Company. He is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants, a fellow member of the Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants, and a fellow member of
The Taxation Institute of Hong Kong (“TIHK"). Mr. Seto is also a
Certified Tax Advisor (“CTA") of TIHK. Mr. Seto is responsible for
financial and accounting management, corporate governance and
administration of the Company. He joined the Group in September
2018. Mr. Seto has over 31 years of experience in accounting
and taxation including senior financial executives of three main
board listed companies in Hong Kong and chief financial officer of
multinational corporation.

Mr. Chan Chun Yiu, aged 49, is the Group’s Assistant
Manufacturing Manager and is responsible for sales and marketing
activities. He joined the Group in 1997, holds a Bachelor degree
and Master degree in Mechanical Engineering and has over 24
years of experience in the electric cable and wire industry.

Mr. Lai Wing Hong, aged 43, is the Finance Manager and Company
Secretary of the Company. He is a fellow member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a fellow member
of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants. He holds
a Bachelor (Honours) Degree in Accountancy from the Hong
Kong Polytechnic University and a Master Degree in Business
Administration from the Holmes Institute. Mr. Lai joined the Group
on 1st March 2019 and is responsible for finance functions and the
Company Secretary work. He has over 19 years of experience in
auditing and accounting including being the company secretary and
the senior financial executive of a company listed on GEM of the
Stock Exchange.

Directors’ Service Contracts

None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting has a service contract with the Company
which is not determinable within one year without payment of
compensation, other than statutory compensation.
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Directors’ Material Interests in
Transactions, Arrangements and Contracts
that are Significant in Relation to the

Group’s Business

No transactions, arrangements and contracts of significance in
relation to the Group’s business to which its holding company or
the Company’s subsidiaries was a party, and in which a director
of the Company and the directors’ connected party had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the
year or at any time during the year.

Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests
and Short Positions in the Shares,

Underlying Shares and Debentures

As at 31st December 2020, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and the chief executives of the Company in the Shares,
underlying Shares and debentures of the Company or its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities
and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong)
("SFQ™)), which were required (i) to be notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of
the SFO (including interests and short positions which they were
taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO), or (ii)
pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register
referred to therein or (iii) pursuant to the Model Code, to be notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange, were as follows:

Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each in the Company
(the “Shares”)
Long Positions in Shares
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Total
interests
Number of shares as % of the
R EE relevant
Personal Family Corporate Total issued share
Name interests interests interests interests capital
BERIEEER
EBITRA
®A BAER RikfEsm EE R BmRER A=l
MON Chung Hung - - 146,802,000 146,802,000 73.79%
TR (note 1)
(B&ET)
KOO Di An, Louise - 146,802,000 - 146,802,000 73.79%
FEIE % (note 2)
(M5E2)
LAU Chun Kay 138,000 - - 138,000 0.07%

SR
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Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests
and Short Positions in the Shares,
Underlying Shares and Debentures

(Continued)

Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each in the Company

(the “Shares”) (Continued)

Long Positions in Shares (Continued)

Note 1: The 146,802,000 Shares were held in the name of Spector
Holdings Limited (“Spector Holdings"”) which is beneficially owned
as to 99.9% by Mr. Mon Chung Hung and as to the remaining
0.1% by Ms. Koo Di An, Louise. Therefore, Mr. Mon is deemed to
be interested in the Shares held by Spector Holdings. Each of Mr.
Mon and Ms. Koo is a director of Spector Holdings.

Note 2: Ms. Koo is the wife of Mr. Mon and is thus deemed to be

interested in the Shares in which Mr. Mon is deemed to be

interested.

Interest in Shares of Associated Corporation of the Company

Name of associated

EERFETHRAEBHEEZRG
HERORES 2#Em KR (&)

RRFFR0.107BT 2 EBR (KR
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BiFET © 1kt 146,802,000 A% 19 LA Spector Holdings
Limited ([ Spector Holdings |) & & &6 + %
AEEHRRELERBEBRE L ISR ESHE
H99.9% }0.1% » AL - HEEWEAES
Spector Holdings FT#§i& 10 2 #2s « mEE K
A%z 1159 ASpector Holdings 2 &% ©

MizF2 : BZLTAIZALEMET  HWEARZLEEW

BRERRERNROPEEER -

RAEATRBEEZRDZFR

Approximate %
of shareholding
in associated
corporation

Name of Director corporation Capacity HEEEEE
EspAg HEEE AR 514 ZREZADL
Mr. Mon Spector Holdings Beneficial owner 99.9%
wEE ERFFEA
Ms. Koo Spector Holdings Beneficial owner 0.1%
R+ BERFEAA

All the interests stated above represent long positions. Save as
disclosed above, as at 31st December 2020, none of the Directors
and chief executives of the Company had any interests or short
positions in any shares, underlying shares and debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning
of Part XV of the SFO) which were required to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8
of Part XV of the SFO or to be entered in the register referred to
therein pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO.

Other than those disclosed above, at no time during the year ended
31st December 2020 was the Company or any of its subsidiaries
a party to any arrangements to enable the Directors or chief
executives of the Company or any of their associates to acquire
benefits by means of acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the
Company or any other body corporate.
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Substantial Shareholders’ Interests in the
Share Capital of the Company

As at 31st December 2020, as far as known to the Directors, the
following person (other than the Directors and chief executives
of the Company) had an interest or short position in the Shares or
underlying Shares which would be required to be disclosed to the
Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of
the SFO or as recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company under section 336 of the SFO:
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Total

interests

Number of Shares as % of the

RoEE relevant

Personal Family Corporate Other Total issued share

Name interests interests interests interests interests capital

BRERIEEERA

E2EITRAE

HE BARER EQ et EERER HithEzs MR ZEDE

Spector Holdings 146,802,000 - - 146,802,000 73.79%
Limited (note 1)
(B5E1)

Note 1: Spector Holdings is owned as t0 99.9% by Mr. Mon and as to the ~ [ff#F 1 : Spector Holdings & LA RBZ T DRI A

remaining 0.1% by Ms. Koo.

All the interests stated above represent long positions. Save as
disclosed above, as at 31st December 2020, the Directors are not
aware of any other person who had an interest or a short position
in the Shares as recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company pursuant to section 336 of the SFO.

Management Contracts

No contracts concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company
were entered into or existed during the year.
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F ARSI R R o B EXREIN  R_F—
TEF-_A=1+—H  XRrREESLREED
E3B6HZMEMFE 2 ECMATREE: - EEILAR
BB EAEMA LR E RN 2 #EmRR -

EEEYN
AREE RN ERT IMEARTFAEE RN R s E ]
BEREKERBZEIENRITHAX -

99



60

Perennial International Limited B #B % E & R A A

Directors’ Report (Continued)
EEHE(E)

Directors’ Interest in Competing Business
None of the Directors has an interest in any business which
competes or is likely to compete with the business of the Group.

Business Review
Business review of the Group is set forth in the Chairman’s
Statement on pages 6 to 8 of this report.

Permitted Indemnity Provisions

At no time during the financial year and up to the date of this
Directors’ Report, there was or is, any permitted indemnity
provision being in force for the benefit of any of the directors of
the Company (whether made by the Company or otherwise) or an
associated company (if made by the Company).

Auditors

The consolidated financial statements have been audited by
PricewaterhouseCoopers who will retire at the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-appointment.

On behalf of the Board

Koo Di An, Louise
Chairman

Hong Kong, 23rd March 2021
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Shareholders of Perennial International Limited
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

Opinion

What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of Perennial International
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out
on pages 70 to 155, which comprise:

° the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31st
December 2020;

° the consolidated income statement for the year then ended;

° the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the
year then ended,;

° the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year
then ended;

° the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended; and

° the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which
include a summary of significant accounting policies.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group
as at 31st December 2020, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“"HKICPA") and have been properly prepared in
compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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Basis for Opinion (Continued)

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
the Code.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these
matters.

Key audit matters identified in our audit are summarised as follows:

° Valuation for land and buildings and investment properties

ERNER(F)

By
REEBEHAARRANELEHDERTA)
(ATBSEITRI]) - ROVELR HEE TEE
BERILEEALE E5 i

BRENEE

FARET FHEERERMANERALE - RSHAH
RAVTHRNEARSERNTIR - BLRHE
ERMEFERGAVHTREL L AS RRETTR
B o BT SHELERERHEFBNER

BERT T HB R ET SR AN T
o  IHRBFTRIREVMEMMGE

o Impairment of trade receivables

o BIHRKFEREE

Key Audit Matter
BRETEE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
RN ET A EEEARENSE

Valuation for land and buildings and investment
properties

THRETFRREMENGE

Refer to notes 2.7, 2.8, 4.2, 14(c) and 15 to the
consolidated financial statements.
BRI AMBEHRERNE2.7 - 28 4.2 14(c)&15 °

We obtained an understanding of the management’'s
internal control and assessment process of valuation for
land and buildings and investment properties and assessed
the inherent risk of material misstatement by considering
the degree of estimation uncertainty and level of other
inherent risk factors.

BT RREREBEN T METF RIREMENEEN A EDE
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We assessed the competence, capabilities and objectivity
of the valuers by verifying their qualifications, discussing
the scope of their work and reviewing the terms of their
engagements.
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We carried out procedures to test whether property-
specific standing data supplied to the valuer by
management reflected the underlying property records
held by the Group.
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Key Audit Matters (Continued)
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FRETEEGHE)

Key Audit Matter
BREETSE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BN ETNAEEERENSE

The Group owns land and buildings in Hong Kong,
Mainland China and Vietnam for office premises and
manufacturing plants respectively, and owns investment
properties in Hong Kong for investment purpose (together,
the “Properties”). These are classified as property, plant
and equipment and investment properties according
to their use and, their carrying values are HK$354.6
million and HK$43.0 million as at 31st December 2020
respectively. For the year ended 31st December 2020,
revaluation deficit of HK$0.2 million relating to land and
buildings classified as property, plant and equipment
and revaluation loss of HK$4.2 million relating to the
investment properties are recorded in the consolidated
income statement, revaluation deficit of HK$11.9 million
relating to land and buildings classified as property, plant
and equipment is recorded in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income.

EREERE  FRAMERBEES T REFHRIMAE
MAEREEREARESERAEREMEFERERE (S
BIZEME]) ZERBERESBRYE  BELREB
NREKEYME R_Z_ZEF+_A=+—RH  RHED]I
RB546EEB BT KA 0EERET - BHE_T_ZTF+_H
=T—BIFE  EEDEAYME  HEREED T RE
FELBMOCAEETRABKREMENEGLEIBIZAS
BLRGEABERRIEE  MEBSBERME  BERRERHB
Bt MEFEMEM11.98 8B TAIRGE 2EKERT

The valuations of these Properties are inherently subjective
due to, among other factors, the individual nature of each
property and its location.

HR (AP ERE)ZREYENERME REMEME - ZF
MENEEHRRFETZEML

The valuations of these Properties were carried out by an
independent professional qualified valuers.

ZEYENGETIRBLEE S ERMGEMETT

We assessed the reasonableness of the key assumptions
and inputs used by the valuers by performing market
research on comparable transactions available for
properties located in Hong Kong and the average cost
of construction and useful life for properties located in
Mainland China and Vietnam. Where the assumptions
applied by the valuers were outside our expected range or
otherwise unusual, we questioned the matters with the
valuers and management and obtained additional evidence
to support the explanations received.

HREBDE  RMUTSALREFEERSHIELE ¥
L ERAANFEERRRBENEEMN  HR R BEARE
NS - JAAIs TR SRR K F] 6 F R HAE A T Th 5 R
7 AHMAGER AN E 2RER2ENSIEN o MibER
FrA B R RB LR FITEA S E K HIREMEEER - HiM
ERtEMRERESMAREEWER T A ERERTEIN
BBRIERZF -

We concluded that the assumptions used in the valuations
were supportable in light of the available evidence.

ERAENEE  RARKGEEMANRRBEEE -
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Key Audit Matters (Continued)

FAEETTSEE(E)

Key Audit Matter
BRETSE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
RO ETNAEERERENSE

Properties in Hong Kong were valued using the direct
comparison approach, with reference to the sales prices
per square foot of comparable properties and adjusted
for key differences in key attributes such as location and
size. Factory buildings in Mainland China and Vietnam
were valued using depreciated replacement cost approach
with reference to the cost of construction per square
metre in the relevant locations, with allowance for accrued
depreciation as evidence by observed condition or
obsolescence present.

R BENZEMENERELEEETHE - EF2EAL
BMEBFARNEEBUREEAGENEERE(HIA
B ithBh R EAEAR/N) BN E MR R E AR o 50 B R R
RSN RIS THIE - 2208 2 §F ) KEERA
ARFEERRAASE -« Wit VRRBRENIRRRE
Btk ST B A -

The significance of the estimates and judgements involved
warrants specific audit focus in this area.
HRMEERERIS RO RAB+SEE - HEFER
BHERTEETRULEHE -
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FRETEEGHE)

Key Audit Matter
BREETSIE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BN ETNAEERERENSE

Impairment of Trade Receivables

B 7 B FEIRRE

Refer to Notes 2.11, 3.1(iv), 4.3 and 17 to the consolidated
financial statements for the disclosures of the related
accounting policies, judgements and estimates.
ERABEERBESTEUR - HETREE BRI EHRE
BizE2.11 ~ 3.1(v) ~ 4.3%17 °

As at 31st December 2020, the carrying amounts
of Group’'s trade receivables was approximately
HK$57.1 million, net of allowance for doubtful debts of
approximately HK$16.8 million as disclosed in note 17
to the consolidated financial statements, representing
approximately 26.8% of the current assets of the Group.

RZZEZTF+—A=+—H ' BSEBZEKFEERE
BARSINVABETT - HRGEMBmRERMT17ARE R
REHER16.8EEET h ERBRBEELN26.8% °

Management performed the impairment assessment of
trade receivables based on the information included but
not limited to the credit profile of different customers, the
ageing profiles, their knowledge about the customers,
market conditions and past settlement patterns.
Management also considered forward-looking information
that may impact the customers’ ability to repay the
outstanding balances in order to estimate the expected
credit loss for the impairment assessment.
ERERE(BFEETRN) TRAZFPHEERR  REKRE
M BEPHRE  mERARBEAEEEXSZERHES
ERNCRIBEITRER - ERENERAATETFEER
BRSO NRATIEM AR - AAFDRENANTEHREER
B8 -

We obtained an understanding of the management'’s
internal control and assessment process of impairment
of trade receivables and assessed the inherent risk of
material misstatement by considering the degree of
estimation uncertainty and level of other inherent risk
factors.

BT REEREE N E S EKEIRRE R A SHE B A TS R
2 WiBBERE AT TR EMEGEERBEZNREE -
G T EAEWAE B R o

We evaluated the outcome of prior period assessment of
impairment of trade receivable to assess the effectiveness
of management’s estimation process.

HFIEHE B REE SRR ETEOER - AFHEE
BREMFHRIZRIAR

We evaluated and tested the design and operating
effectiveness of the key management controls over
debt collection and the impairment assessment process,
in particular those over the identification of impaired
receivables and the calculation of the impairment provision.
BAFRHE BB A I M E R SR E R miR B s B IR B
IR RRET RIRVERC R - FERI= A BBl 2R (B e UK TR &
STERER FHRY RS o

We tested the accuracy of the ageing of trade receivables
on a sample basis by tracing to the respective invoices.
HAABHAERERN SR - MEOAEE 5 RUGRIERE R
R o

We assessed the appropriateness of the expected credit
losses provisioning methodology.

B TREEERBETENEE T -
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Key Audit Matters (Continued)

FAEETTSEE(E)

Key Audit Matter
BRETSE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
RO ETNAEERERENSE

We identified the impairment of trade receivables as a
key audit matter due to the significance of the balance
to the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
combined with the significant degree of judgements made
by the management in assessing the impairment of trade
receivables and determining the allowance for doubtful
debts.

B E S RUGIERES R REREFIE - TIHNER
HIFEMBRRERMEBEN - URBEEBRTEESE
WORIERUE & B T R AR A 1P 2 AR

We challenged the information used to determine the
expected credit losses by considering the cash collection
performance against historical trends, the level of credit
loss changes over time and the reasonableness of forward-
looking information.

HMBARELBEZERRWEER - FEEEKTER
MR LA RATEEERNE IR - HETEREEEEM
EANERREEE

We discussed with management the recoverability of
individually significant receivables, credit risk characteristics
and settlement profiles of customers, corroborating
management explanations by checking to the information
about contracted parties and subsequent settlements,
if any. For those unsettled receivables, we questioned
management on the reasons for the delay in collection of
these receivables and checked to any further actions taken
in recovering the long outstanding receivables in order to
assess whether any additional provision should be made.
HIFRERE R wmEREZNRBRIENATRERRE - BF
NEERBEFBRERIEN - AREBRETTARNER R
Hig#8E (A ) AEREIREBOHA - BN REERKZK
18 - B ME IR E S R HA U O 5% 5 FE W TR 8 R R %
&Y R BB R B BGRIE A PR ER BV (ol — 480 - AR
B EE— SEH A -

Based upon the above, we found that the estimation and
judgement made by management in respect of provision
for impairment of trade receivables was supportable by
the available evidence.

EREXFmt - BRMRAEEERE S ERFIEREREE
2 ffET R A B TS R RRE S o




Other Information

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises all of the information
included in the annual report other than the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is
a material misstatement of this other information, we are required
to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Directors and the Audit
Committee for the Consolidated Financial

Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and
fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine
is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of

the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. We report our
opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of
the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda and for no other purpose.
We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to
any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect
a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or
in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of
the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's internal
control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor’'s report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if
such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor’'s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a
going concern.

ZE MBS M HRAEN
=
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Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Consolidated Financial Statements

(Continued)

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. WWe remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate
threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee,
we determine those matters that were of most significance in
the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor’'s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Chan Kam Chiu, Raymond.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 23rd March 2021
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT
REBRRR
BE P TF It ALTE

2020 2019
—T=BF —TNF
Note HK$°000 HK$'000
BfaE FET FAT
Revenue Was 5 282,342 301,357
Cost of sales SHEMK A (229,573) (245,570)
Gross profit E7 52,769 55,787
Other income HAles 6 6,869 7,086
Distribution expenses DT (8,323) (7,305)
Administrative expenses TE R (51,825) (53,976)
Other operating expenses, net E At =B F 5 7 (3,468) (12,754)
Impairment loss on financial assets P EERERE 17 (15,719) (754)
Operating loss KB EE 8 (19,697) (11,916)
Finance costs VEER 9 (1,675) (2,468)
Loss before taxation BRAATETE (21,372) (14,384)
Income tax credit FristiE o 10(a) 2,141 1,186
Loss for the year attributable to i N/NET A
shareholders of the Company REEEE (19,231) (13,198)
Basic and diluted loss per share (cents) FRREAR L E#E
B () 11 (9.7) (6.6)

The above consolidated income statement should be read in  _Fili4R& IB2RREERBEMIM T —HTEI:E -
conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
AREEHEWE R

For the year ended 31st December 2020
HBE T _FF+ _A=1—HIFE

2020 2019
—E-EF —E-NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Loss for the year REEFEE (19,231) (13,198)
Other comprehensive income/(loss): Hib2mikas (BXK) :
ltem that will not be reclassified HigBresmost
subsequently to profit or loss ZiEmMIER
Revaluation deficit on land and buildings, TH REF 2 E(HESE
net of tax HIBRFHIE (9,920) (160)
ltems that may be reclassified to Higngeesmols
profit or loss ZE=MIAR
Exchange difference arising from NEPNSE R el
translation of financial statements of ZIERER
subsidiaries 15,907 (2,203)
Other comprehensive income/(loss) REEEMEEKES
for the year s 5987 (2,363)
Total comprehensive loss for the RATREEGAFEE
year attributable to shareholders FERETETE =S
of the Company (13,244) (15,561)

The above consolidated statement of comprehensive income iR & FIUES 3R FEE R BE T T 55— GRIE -
should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Perennial International Limited B #B % B & R A A

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
B B ISR &

As at 31st December 2020
R-F_ZFFf_H=+—H

2020 2019
(restated)
b e 222 —T-NF
(&%)
Note HK$°000 HK$'000
5t FET T
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets EMBEE
Property, plant and equipment L E N YN ] 14 419,948 421,571
Investment properties WEYE 15 42,980 47,200
Non-current deposits IEmENET S 652 430
Deferred tax assets FETIIBE E 10(b) 9,726 6,296
473,306 475,497
Current assets MENEEE
Inventories FE 16 117,352 110,061
Trade and bill receivables B S5 REWEIE &
e 17 58,642 81,163
Derivative financial instruments TEEmMITEA 18 2,592 495
Other receivables, deposits and EAbfEUGRIA « Rl &
prepayments INSELNE O 10,939 10,404
Taxation recoverable AT E R IR 777 711
Cash and cash equivalents RERReEEY 19 22,370 36,548
212,672 239,382

Total assets BB E 685,978 714,879
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position (Continued)

RAaPBMRRE (E)

As at 31st December 2020
RZF-ZZFFF+-H=+—H

2020 2019
(restated)
—ECEF —E—NF
(E5))
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
5t FET T
EQUITY R
Equity attributable to shareholders of NA IR (G A
the Company
Share capital (&N 20 19,896 19,896
Reserves (Gt 529,384 542,628
Total equity B 549,280 562,524
LIABILITIES aE
Non-current liabilities ERBEE
Lease liabilities HEBE 14 - 77
Deferred tax liabilities EIERIR AR 10(b) 40,289 43,835
40,289 43,912
Current liabilities nENEE
Trade payables E S e FIR 21 23,737 17,749
Other payables, accruals and HE M ERIFRIE - FERT
contract liabilities A RAHAE 21 22,630 18,971
Lease liabilities HEAE 14 77 451
Taxation payable FEIFRIR 4,238 2,837
Bank loans RITE 22 37,200 37,000
Trust receipt loans EFEBIRE R 22 8,527 31,435
96,409 - 1 _0_8_, K_ll_l:} )
Total liabilities w2 136698 - 162,356
Total equity and liabilities RiEmMEaE 685,978 714,879

The consolidated financial statements on pages 70 to 155 were  Z70F 1558 7 54 Eﬁﬂ%iﬁﬁy\_ T — —44& =
approved by the Board of Directors on 23rd March 2021 and were :+EE%§%$AH/EIF@‘%M

signed on its behalf.

MON Chung Hung

SIU Yuk Shing, Marco

=R AR
Director Director
EZE EZE
The above consolidated statement of financial position should be ARG B TS AR 2% HE S (R B BT B 5 — D4 BORE -

read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the year ended 31st December 2020
BE-—FE-_FTFEf _H=+—HIFE

Reserves
e
Land and
Exchange building Capital
Share Share fluctuation  revaluation  redemption Retained Total Total
capital premium reserve reserve reserve earnings reserves equity
1H#R
EX  BYEf EX
kx  ROEE  29EE fiE  EERE  REEA Btk s
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Tén THR Tén Tén THR Tén Téx THR
As at Tst January 2020 R-E-ZF-F-H 19,896 15,885 (785) 244,414 104 283,010 542,628 562,524
Comprehensive loss PAEX
Loss for the year RERER - - - - - (19231)  (19231)  (19231)
Other comprehensive 2 EkE/ (BX)
income/floss)
Revaluation deficitonland T RET 2 BEEE
and building - - - (11,934) - - (11,934) (11,934)
Deferred tax credited o~ ATAEMREE ZEEHA
revaluation reserve - - - 2,014 - - 2,014 2,014
Exchange difference arising ~ RfTESMEAEMESZ
from translation of EiEE
foreign operations - - 15,907 - - - 15,907 15,907
Total comprehensive income/  AEEB2EUE /(B%)
(loss) for the year - - 15,907 (9,920) - (19,231) (13,244) (13,244)
Asat 31st December 2020  M-E-EF+-A=1-H 19,896 15,885 15,122 234,494 104 263,779 529,384 549,280
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity (Continued)
ReEREER(E)

For the year ended 31st December 2020
HBE T _FF+ _A=1—HIFE

Reserves
fifi
Land and
Exchange building Capital
Share Share  fluctuation  revaluation  redemption
capital premium reserve reserve reserve
THE
EX  BFE[ EX

Retained Total Total
earnings reserves equity

As at 1st January 2019 R=E-nE-A-A

Comprehensive loss 2AEX

Loss for the year rEEER

Other comprehensive At2E(BR)
(loss)fincome

Revaluation surplus onland ~ THIREF 2 E B
and building

Deferred tax charged to ThEfEE CEEHE
revaluation reserve

Exchange difference arising R ESMHITEMEL 2
from translation of EiEE
foreign operations

Totel comprehensive loss ~ AEEE2EEX

for the year

As at 31st December 2019

RZZ-NETZR=1-H

Br RhEE  29AE B BEEE  (REET 25k R
HKSO00  HKSO00  HKSOOD  HKSOOD  HKSOOD  HKSO0  HKSO00  HKSI000
Thr Thr ThL Th Thr ThL ThL Thr
19896 15885 1418 24457 104 296208 598189 578085
- - - . - 318 (131%) (13199

- - - 181 - - 181 181

i - - (341) - - 341) (341)

- - 0203 - - 2 03 22

- - 0203 (160) - (3198 (51 (15561)
19896 15885 78 241 104 283010 G468 562524

The above consolidated statement of changes in equity should be — _EaltAR & %S B Bh 3R FEE [RIBE P T 55— GFRIRE -
read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH
REETRER

For the year ended 31st December 2020
R _FE_FFL _H=1—HIFE

FLOWS

conjunction with the accompanying notes.

2020 2019
—ECEF —ZE—hEF
Note HK$°000 HK$'000
BfaE FET FAT
Cash flows from operating activities EEITHNRERE
Net cash generated from/(used in) BEEL (FTA)A
operations FEE 24(a) 28,460 (3,220)
Hong Kong profits tax (paid)/refunded, net (1) REBBFIE
et (127) 183
Overseas income tax paid, net SADBINTIS R R (1,738) (1,446)
Interest paid X ATFE (1,675) (2,468)
Net cash generated from/(used in) eEEEELS(FrA)
operating activities K FIRE 24,920 (6,951)
Cash flows from investing activities BREZTHNRERE
Purchase of property, plant and equipment EEE Y12 - BE K& (16,416) (14,114)
(Increase)/decrease in deposits (), R ED
paid for additions of property, ¥ BEREET®
plant and equipment (452) 671
Interest received B A1) &, 27 98
Proceeds from sale of property, HEWE  BEE&E
plant and equipment FIECEN 24(b) 43 524
Net cash used in investing activities HEEEFTANFR S (16,798) (12,821)
Cash flows from financing activities METBNRESRE
Additions of bank loans FTIBIRITER 24(d 10,000 35,000
Repayments of bank loans EEBITER 24(d) (9,800) (34,800)
Net (repayment)/addition of trust SF(EE) FigET
receipt loans IWIEE R 24(d) (22,908) 6,701
Payments for principal portion of XHEAaBEReH D
the lease liability 24(d) (451) (364)
Net cash (used in)/generated mEEE(FTA),
from financing activities EfFRe (23159) ¢ 6,537
Net decrease in cash and cash RERASEEYZ
equivalents R (15,037) (13,235)
Cash and cash equivalents R—A—BZHek
at 1st January REEEY 36,548 49,996
Exchange difference on cash and ReRReEEM
cash equivalents bR 859 (213)
Cash and cash equivalents W+=—A=+—-H2
at 31st December HeRESEEY 19 22,370 36,548
The above consolidated statement of cash flows should be read in  _Eill4R &R E RS K EERBEM I cE— 0538 ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

General Information

Perennial International Limited (the “Company”) is an
investment holding company. The Company and its
subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) are principally engaged
in the manufacturing and trading of electric cable and wire
products.

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in
Bermuda. The address of its registered office is Clarendon
House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM11, Bermuda.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars (“HK$") unless otherwise stated.

Summary of Significant Accounting

Policies

The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation
of these consolidated financial statements are set out below.
These policies have been consistently applied to all the years
presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group
have been prepared in accordance with all applicable
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRS")
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance Cap. 622. They have
been prepared under the historical cost convention, as
modified by the revaluation of land and buildings and
investment properties and certain financial assets and
liabilities (including derivative instruments), which are
carried at fair value.

The preparation of consolidated financial statements
in conformity with HKFRS requires the use of
certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires
management to exercise its judgement in the process
of applying the Group's accounting policies. The areas
involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or
areas where assumptions and estimates are significant
to the consolidated financial statements are disclosed in
note 4.

e BB HRR

For the year ended 31st December 2020
BR _E_ZFFL _H=+—HIFE

—RER
EHEEMERADN AR ) BREERA
7 o AA A REHE A R (RTE A EE ) E
SR FREREEBRRESER ©

ARBRBREAMKZA—HBERAT °
H o+ it 9 = 52 A9 3 3k & Clarendon House, 2
Church Street, Hamilton HM11, Bermuda °

BRRAEAN  FEAVBRERALT
([BTTHEF

TERETHEREE

REU S A MIERMRARA 2 T B SR
RENTX - BB AERAI - WEBREM
ERNMEFENERER -

2.1 REEE
AEESA M EEREIRRE S
DNEEHEHFE BRSNS HRE £
([EBIBHREER ) REBCA R
FYE62ENBERTHRE - ZZ45
B BRERIRE LKA RR - W
D AEFBEH) £ KA RIS E B2 A
REFHBEERAE(BETETLR)
BEERIEE o
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Perennial International Limited B #B % B & R A A

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
REMBRERME(E)

For the year ended 31st December 2020
R _FE_FFL _H=1—HIFE

2. Summary of Significant Accounting 2. FESHEERME(E)
Policies (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued) 21 REEE(E)
New standards and amendments to standards A BB AN Y FET 2 Al | ZE RIS FT AR
adopted by the Group AEBER-Z-_TF-HA—HBxzi&
The following new standard and amendments to AR BFEE BB T RT 2R
standards have been adopted by the Group for the first KMZERHERT AN -
time for the financial year beginning on or after 1st
January 2020:
Amendments to HKFRS 3 Definition of Business
BB BHREERFEIR(EETA) FIEHER
Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8 Definition of Material

TGRS UREBEBSTEMNFESREFTA) EANER

Conceptual Framework for Financial Revised Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting
Reporting 2018
- N\FHBRERAER RISRT SRS SHER

Amendments to HKAS 39, HKFRS 7 and HKFRS 9 Hedge Accounting
BEGHERE395 - BB BEIREER Eapky g
E79R BB REERIFET (BRI A)

The adoption of the new and amended standards listed ?%T%%W\J:ﬁll%ﬁ%T{S@%@T%ETE%Q'J%T%@&ﬁHF'EEJ
above did not have material impact on the amounts E?E@Z%%ﬁﬂﬂﬁﬁ%éﬁ : I@iﬁﬁﬂT\
recognised in prior periods and are not expected to Y RNEFESCRREEEEATE °

significantly affect the current or future period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
IREMBHRERME(E)

For the year ended 31st December 2020
BR _E_ZFFL _H=+—HIFE

2. TESHBERBEGR)

2. Summary of Significant Accounting

Policies (Continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued) 2.1
New and amended standards not yet adopted
Certain new and amended standards have been issued
but are not effective for the financial year beginning on
1st January 2020 and have not been early adopted.

RBLEE(])

15 R BR AN B9 5T 5T B =4S 5T X B
ETEBEHEHAN - _TF—H—
B FB B R AR FTR] RAERT
AEBING AR EIR FIRAR o

Effective for annual
periods beginning

on or after

RT3 BES 2 &%

NWEFEEHEER
HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts 1st January 2023
AT wERERE175% RERE A Sl e =

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and
HKAS 28

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture

To be determined

N

o

BAUNBHREENE10RREASET HEEHEBENRREEDE M FE

AR B 2857 (BRI A) WEEHEIETE

Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 1st January 2021
2018-2020

BAUBHREENUEETA) 2 \FE_Z_TEFBUBHR T —F—H—H
HER 2 FEHE

Amendments to HKFRS 16 COVID-19 Related Rent Concession 1st June 2020

BAMBHREERFE 165 (BFTA) COVID-19t8REM & ER —E-FFHA—H

Amendments to HKFRS 3, HKAS 16 and  Narrow-scope Amendments 1st January 2022

HKAS 37

BEMBHMEEREIN - HAELFNER KEEF] —E-—F—H—H

F16RRBEB T ERIEITHRUSEIR)

Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current  1st January 2023
or Non-current

BAGTENE1RUSETA) HEESERREIIETE —T—_=%—F—H

The Group will adopt the new and amended standards
when they become effective. The Group has already
commenced an assessment of the related impact of
adopting the above new and amended standards, none
of which is expected to have a significant effect on the

S
2=

consolidated financial statements of the Group.

AT R AR

REEB R R] M ASAE AT LB A RS 3R
LI - RSB B R ERAAIA
I ERINAERIRE - TR
TEHREENGAMBRREKEXN
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Perennial International Limited B #B % B & R A A

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

REUBRRMEE)

For the year ended 31st December 2020
R _FE_FFL _H=1—HIFE

2. Summary of Significant Accounting

Policies (Continued)

2.2 Change in presentation of right-of-use

assets

In accordance with HKFRS 16 ‘Lease’, a leasee can
either present the right-of-use assets separately in the
statement of financial position or include within the
same line item as that within which the corresponding
underlying assets would be presented and disclose
which line items include those right-of-use assets.
The Group presented its right-of-use assets, except
for leasehold land in Hong Kong, separately in the
statement of financial position in previous year. In the
consolidated financial statement as at 31st December
2020, the Group presented its right-of-use assets within
the line items ‘Property, plant and equipment’, because
it is a common accounting practice adopted by market
players. In the opinion of the directors, this change
in the presentation enables the Group to provide
reliable and more relevant information on the financial
statements about its performance and financial position.

This change in presentation has been applied
retrospectively by restating the balances as at 1st
January 2019 and 31st December 2019.

Effect on the consolidated statement of financial
position:

2. TESHBERBEGR)

22 EREEEEZ®REE

REEEMHRELENE 165 H
B ABRAREMBIRARANERGZ
WEMEEE - ABSHEMAERHEREE
# T 2HOMBRER R XREEEZ
SEMREENEAR - AREEL—F
EOMBRARRANEB2REREE
E - N EENEE LRI c RZF
—EE+ A=+ BNEAMBR
= AKEEIMME - BERRE AR
TEREMEEE - HRENEHSESHE
FELERFEANGEN - EFRB - I
SRBEE A KB E KRR LI
Hﬁéﬁﬂﬁ%i&i’%ﬁfﬂ%ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ
HYE R o

W EREHEEBEIN T —NF—
A—BE-_ZT—NF+-_A=+—HZ
EERTB IR -

iR AMBGIRAROTE

As at
1st January Effect of change As at
2019, in presentation 1st January
as previously  of right-of-use 2019,
reported assets as restated
As at 1st January 2019 RZE-NE R-ZE-h&
Consolidated statementof R=-Z—HhFE—HF—H —H—H8: FRESE —B—H8:
financial position (extracted) %4 BEIRRE (%) WEE 2], EREEHTE KEG|
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets FRBEE
Right-of-use assets EREEE 26,696 (26,696) -
Property, plant and equipment  #1% - BE K% 402,067 26,696 428,763
As at
31st December Effect of change As at
2019, in presentation 31st December
as previously  of right-of-use 2019,
reported assets as restated
As at 31st December 2019 R=-Z—h & R-E—HE RZE-h&
Consolidated statementof +Z=H=+—H +=A=+—H" FRESEE +t=B=+—8"
financial position (extracted) #R& BB R & (FE) mEA 2 ERBSHTE =5
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets ERBEE
Right-of-use assets BREEE 26,496 (26,496) =
Property, plant and equipment  #1% - R K& & 395,075 26,496 421,571
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

2. Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

2.3

24

Principles of consolidation

Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured entities)
over which the Group has control. The Group controls
an entity when the Group is exposed to, or has rights
to, variable returns from its involvement with the entity
and has the ability to affect those returns through its
power to direct the activities of the entity. Subsidiaries
are fully consolidated from the date on which control is
transferred to the Group. They are deconsolidated from
the date that control ceases.

Intercompany transactions, balances and unrealised
gains on transactions between group companies are
eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated, unless
the transaction provides evidence of an impairment
of the transferred assets. Accounting policies of
subsidiaries have been changed where necessary to
ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the
Group.

Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost
less impairment. Cost includes direct attributable costs
of investment. The results of subsidiaries are accounted
for by the Company on the basis of dividend received
and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries
is required upon receiving a dividend from these
investments if the dividend exceeds the total
comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the period
the dividend is declared or if the carrying amount of
the investment in the separate financial statements
exceeds the carrying amount in the consolidated
financial statements of the investee’'s net assets
including goodwill.

A MEHmRME(E)

For the year ended 31st December 2020

BE T -_FTF+-H=1—HIFFE

2. FEEHBRBEE)

2.3

24

meRA

B A RIE AR E S H ARSI
FER(BEABILER) - 2AEEH
A2 R RE T AR F] & [ FR A LB 5k
ZEAEEHmNELD - WHEEBE
HREREINTERZENTER
- NEERAEFIZER - MEQRE
THEEEEAKE 2 HE2EEZE A
AR o B R RIEIESIRR L2 RE L
RaARR -

SERRRZENRS « EHERHH

S Wk T IASH o REIREBITT
DS - BRIFR X H B E B REEE
BEHBERE - MBARNSHBRED
HEERRREE - ARRENEEFTR
MBRER—2

B R

M R R RIR B R AR ESIR -
KA BHEERBIEIRENA - HiEAR
MRERARBIRED KRR EE R ES
BE o

i R R B T RAE BB A BRI 4R
EEWE - HEBLMEHRRNIRE
AREEBIBSRE M BHRRPRIRE QR
FEE(BEBE)NEREE  RIXAR
BUZERENREBREMBRRIRE
YERMERIF, °

81



82

Perennial International Limited B #B % B & R A A

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
REMBEHRERMEE(E)

For the year ended 31st December 2020
R _FE_FFL _H=1—HIFE

2. Summary of Significant Accounting

Policies (Continued)

2.5 Segment reporting
Operating segments are reported in a manner
consistent with the internal reporting provided to the
chief operating decision-maker.

2.6 Foreign currency translation
(i) Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of each
of the Group’'s entities are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment
in which the entity operates (the “functional
currency”). The consolidated financial statements
are presented in Hong Kong dollars, which
is the Company’s functional and the Group's
presentation currency.

(ii) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into
the functional currency using the exchange rates
at the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange
gains and losses resulting from the settlement
of such transactions and from the translation of
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies at year end exchange rate are
generally recognised in profit or loss.

All foreign exchange gains and losses are
presented in the consolidated income statement
on a net basis within other operating expenses,
net.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair
value in a foreign currency are translated using
the exchange rates at the date when the fair value
was determined. Translation differences on assets
and liabilities carried at fair value are reported as
part of the fair value gain or loss.

BIBRBE (&)

REERRERMZ
g

2.6 Hg@E

(ii)

NEEREREH
FIAEASEERS M BHRET
MIAEBHEEMEREEMAE
M REERENEHE (R
B E - e MBRERANAE
TLIERS - HBARRRMEE R
REBNZEHRER -

R 7 kA&

SNER ZIER ZEHERGBE LS
D EH - At ERX ZHEE A
REINE SN EEEER
BERFREZETREMES
BVSMNE BB — AR B HER -

FiAE R I ERRNGA Eak
PR b BT F AR R
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BRANEAEWIAINEEHERFE
SRR RB A ERE B A
ERME - WMAAEINRNEE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

2. Summary of Significant Accounting

Policies (Continued)
2.6 Foreign currency translation (Continued)
(iii) Group companies

The results and financial position of foreign
operations (none of which has the currency of a
hyperinflationary economy) that have a functional
currency different from the presentation currency
are translated into the presentation currency as
follows:

(i)  assets and liabilities for each statement of
financial position presented are translated at
the closing rate at the date of that statement
of financial position;

(i)  income and expenses for each income
statement and statement of comprehensive
income are translated at an average
exchange rate (unless this is not a
reasonable approximation of the cumulative
effects of the rates prevailing on the
transaction dates, in which case income and
expenses and translated of the date of the
transactions); and

(i) all resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising
from the translation of the net investment
in foreign entities, are recognised in other
comprehensive income.

2.7 Investment property
Investment properties are land and/or buildings that are
held to earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation
which include property interest held under operating
lease carried at fair value. Land held under operating
lease is accounted for as investment property when the
rest of the definition of an investment property is met.

Investment property is measured initially at its cost,
including related transaction costs.

A MEHmRME(E)

For the year ended 31st December 2020
BR _E_ZFFL _H=+—HIFE
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Perennial International Limited B #B % B & R A A

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
REMBEHRERMEE(E)

For the year ended 31st December 2020
R _FE_FFL _H=1—HIFE

2. Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

2.7

2.8

Investment property (Continued)

After initial recognition, investment property is carried
at fair value representing open market value determined
at each reporting date by external independent valuers.
Fair value is based on active market prices, adjusted, if
necessary, for any difference in the nature, location or
condition of the specific asset. If the information is not
available, the Group uses alternative valuation methods
such as recent prices on less active markets or
discounted cash flow projections. Changes in fair values
are recognised in the consolidated income statement
as part of a valuation gain or loss in ‘other operating
expenses, net'.

Subsequent expenditure is charged to the asset's
carrying amount only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow
to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. All other repairs and maintenance costs are
expensed in the consolidated income statement during
the financial period in which they are incurred.

Property, plant and equipment

(i) Right-of-used assets
Right-of-used assets consist of leasehold land in
Hong Kong measured at fair value, land use rights
in Mainland China and Vietnam stated at cost
less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses and leased property in Hong
Kong measured in accordance with accounting
policy as disclosed in note 2.9. The above right-
of-use assets are presented as the corresponding
underlying assets of the property, plant and
equipment.

Increases in the carrying amounts arising on
revaluation of leasehold land in Hong Kong are
credited to land and buildings revaluation reserve
in equity, except to the extent that it reverses a
revaluation decrease for the same asset previously
recognised in the consolidated income statement,
in which case the increase is credited to the
consolidated income statement to the extent
of the decrease previously charged. Decreases
that offset previous increases of the same asset
are charged against land and building revaluation
reserve directly in equity; all other decreases are
expensed in the consolidated income statement.

2. TESHBERBEGR)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

2. Summary of Significant Accounting

Policies (Continued)
2.8 Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

(i)

(iii)

Buildings

Buildings comprise of office in Hong Kong
and factories in Mainland China and Vietnam
which are shown at fair value, based on annual
valuations by external independent valuers, less
subsequent depreciation and impairment. Any
accumulated depreciation and impairment at the
date of revaluation is eliminated against the gross
carrying amount of the asset and the net amount is
restated to the revalued amount of the asset.

Increases in the carrying amounts arising on
revaluation of buildings are credited to land and
buildings revaluation reserve in equity, except to
the extent that it reverses a revaluation decrease
for the same asset previously recognised in the
consolidated income statement, in which case the
increase is credited to the consolidated income
statement to the extent of the decrease previously
charged. Decreases that offset previous increases
of the same asset are charged against land and
building revaluation reserve directly in equity; all
other decreases are expensed in the consolidated
income statement.

Other property, plant and equipment

Other property, plant and equipment, comprising
leasehold improvements, plant and machinery,
furniture and fixtures, office equipment, motor
vehicles and pleasure boats are stated at
historical cost less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses. Historical cost
includes expenditure that is directly attributable to
the acquisition of the items.

Construction-in-progress is stated at cost which
comprises construction costs, purchase costs and
other related expenses incurred in connection
with the construction of buildings, leasehold
improvements, plant and machinery for own use,
less provision for impairment losses, if any. On
completion, construction in progress is transferred
to the appropriate categories of property, plant and
equipment at cost less accumulated impairment
losses, if any.

A MEHmRME(E)

For the year ended 31st December 2020
BR _E_ZFFL _H=+—HIFE

2. TESHBERBEGR)
2.8 Y% - BENKEE)

(i)

(iii)
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Perennial International Limited B #B % B & R A A

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
REMBRERME(E)

For the year ended 31st December 2020
R _FE_FFL _H=1—HIFE

2. Summary of Significant Accounting

Policies (Continued)
2.8 Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

(iv)

Depreciation

Depreciation on leasehold land in Hong Kong and
buildings is calculated to write off their valuation
less accumulated impairment losses on a straight-
line basis over the unexpired period of the leases
or their estimated useful lives, whichever is
shorter. The principal annual rates used range
from 1.5% t0 4%.

Land use rights in Mainland China and Vietnam
are depreciated over the lease term on a straight-
line basis.

Other property, plant and equipment except
construction in progress are depreciated at rates
sufficient to write off their costs less accumulated
impairment losses over their estimated useful
lives on a reducing balance basis. The principal
annual rates are as follows:

Leasehold improvements 15%-20%
Plant and machinery 15%-20%
Furniture and fixtures 15%-20%
Office equipment 15%-20%
Motor vehicles 15%-20%
Pleasure boats 10%

No depreciation is provided for construction-in-
progress until they are completed and put into
production ready for their intended use, upon
which they will be transferred to property, plant
and equipment.

2. FEEHBRBEE)
2.8 Y% - BENKEE)

(iv)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

2. Summary of Significant Accounting

Policies (Continued)
2.8 Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

(v)

(vi)

Others

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's
carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset,
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will
flow to the Group and the cost of the item can
be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the
replaced part is derecognised. All other repairs and
maintenance are expensed in the consolidated
income statement during the financial period in
which they are incurred.

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end
of each reporting period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down
immediately to its recoverable amount if the
asset’s carrying amount is greater than its
estimated recoverable amount (note 2.10).

Gains and losses on disposals

Gains and losses on disposals are determined
by comparing the proceeds with the carrying
amount. These are included in the consolidated
income statement and are recognised within ‘other
operating expenses, net’. Where revalued assets
are sold, the amounts included in land and building
revaluation reserve are transferred to retained
earnings.

A MEHmRME(E)

For the year ended 31st December 2020
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2. TESHBERBEGR)
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(v)

(vi)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
REMBEHRERMEE(E)

For the year ended 31st December 2020
R _FE_FFL _H=1—HIFE

2. Summary of Significant Accounting

Policies (Continued)
2.9 Leases

(i)

The Group as a Lessee

The Group as a lessee recognizes a right-of-
use asset and a lease liability when a lease is
capitalized at the commencement date, except
for leases with a lease term of 12 months or less
(“short-term leases”) and leases of low-value
assets. Payments in relation to short-term leases
and leases of low-value assets are recognized as
an expense in profit or loss on a straight line basis
over the lease term.

The lease liability is initially measured at the
present value of lease payments payable with
reference to an expected lease term, which
includes optional lease periods when the Group
is reasonably certain to exercise the option to
extend or not to terminate the lease. In calculating
the present value of lease payments, the Group
uses the incremental borrowing rate at the lease
commencement date if the interest rate implicit
in the lease is not readily determinable. Lease
payments included in the measurement of the
lease liability are made up of fixed payments
(including in-substance fixed payments) less any
lease incentives receivable, variable payments that
depend on an index or a rate, amounts expected
to be payable under residual value guarantees and
payments arising from options reasonably certain
to be exercised. Variable lease payments that do
not depend on an index or a rate are not included
in the measurement of the lease liability and are
expensed in the period to which they relate.

The lease liability is subsequently measured by
increasing its carrying amount to reflect interest
on the lease liability (using the effective interest
rate method) and by reducing its carrying amount
to reflect the lease payments made. The lease
liability is remeasured (with a corresponding
adjustment made to the related right-of-use asset)
when there is a change in future lease payments
in case of renegotiation, changes of an index or
rate or in case of reassessment of options.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

2. Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

29

2.10

Leases (Continued)

(i) The Group as a Lessee (Continued)
The right-of-use asset is initially measured
at cost which comprises the initial amount
of the lease liability, any initial direct costs
incurred, the obligation to restore the asset,
and any lease payments made in advance of
the commencement date less any incentives
received. The right-of-use asset is subsequently
measured at cost less accumulated depreciation,
applying the depreciation requirements in HKAS
16 Property, Plant and Equipment and is subject to
impairment review whenever events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount
may not be recoverable.

(i) The Group as a Lessor
Lease payments from properties letting under
operating leases are recognized as rental income
over the lease term on a straight line basis.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life are tested
for impairment annually. Assets that are subject to
amortisation are reviewed for impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment
loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value
less costs to sell and value in use. Such impairment loss
is recognised in the consolidated income statement.
Non- financial assets other than goodwill that suffered
an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the
impairment at each reporting date.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
REMBEHRERMEE(E)

For the year ended 31st December 2020

oA
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2. Summary of Significant Accounting

Policies (Continued)
2.11 Financial assets

(i)

(ii)

Classification
The Group classifies its financial assets in the
following measurement categories:

o those to be measured subsequently at fair
value (either through other comprehensive
income (“OCI") or through profit or loss);
and

o those to be measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the entity's
business model for managing the financial assets
and the contractual terms of the cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and
losses will either be recorded in profit or loss
or OCI. For investments in equity instruments
that are not held for trading, this will depend
on whether the Group has made an irrevocable
election at the time of initial recognition to account
for the equity investment at fair value through
other comprehensive income (“FVOCI").

The Group reclassifies debt investments when
and only when its business model for managing
those assets changes.

Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial
assets are recognised on trade-date, the date on
which the Group commits to purchase or sell the
asset. Financial assets are derecognised when
the rights to receive cash flows from the financial
assets have expired or have been transferred and
the Group has transferred substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

2. Summary of Significant Accounting

Policies (Continued)
2.11 Financial assets (Continued)

(iii)

Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a
financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of
a financial asset not at fair value through profit or
loss (“FVPL"), transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset.
Transaction costs of financial assets carried at
FVPL are expensed in the consolidated income
statement.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments
depends on the Group's business model
for managing the asset and the cash flow
characteristics of the asset. There are two
measurement categories in which the Group
classifies its debt instruments:

o Amortised cost: Assets that are held for
collection of contractual cash flows where
those cash flows represent solely payments
of principal and interest are measured at
amortised cost. Interest income from these
financial assets is included in finance income
using the effective interest rate method.
Any gain or loss arising on derecognition is
recognised directly in consolidated income
statement and presented in other operating
expenses, net together with foreign
exchange gains and losses. Impairment
losses are presented as separate line item in
the consolidated income statement.

o FVPL: Assets that do not meet the criteria
for amortised cost or FVOCI are measured
at FVPL. A gain or loss on a debt instrument
that is subsequently measured at FVPL is
recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which it arises.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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2R P R (48 )

For the year ended 31st December 2020
R _FE_FFL _H=1—HIFE

2. Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

2.11

2.12

2.13

Financial assets (Continued)

(iv) Impairment
The Group assesses on a forward looking basis
the expected credit losses associated with its
debt instruments carried at amortised cost. The
impairment methodology applied depends on
whether there has been a significant increase in
credit risk.

Impairment on these financial assets are
measured as either 12-month expected credit
losses or lifetime expected credit losses,
depending on whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition. If a significant increase in credit risk of
a receivable has occurred since initial recognition,
then impairment is measured as lifetime expected
credit losses.

For trade receivables, the Group applies the
simplified approach permitted by HKFRS 9, which
requires expected lifetime losses to be recognised
from initial recognition of the receivables. See
note 3.1 (iv) for further details.

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net
amount is reported in the balance sheet where the
Group currently has a legally enforceable right to offset
the recognised amounts, and there is an intention to
settle on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the
liability simultaneously. The Group has also entered
into arrangements that do not meet the criteria for
offsetting but still allow for the related amounts to be
set off in certain circumstances, such as bankruptcy or
the termination of a contract.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on
the date a derivative contract is entered into and are
subsequently remeasured at their fair value. Assets
and liabilities are classified as current if expected to be
settled within 12 months; otherwise, they are classified
as non-current.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of
the derivatives are presented in the profit or loss within
‘other operating expenses, net’ in the period in which
they arise.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

2. Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

2.14

2.15

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Costs are assigned to individual items
on the first-in, first-out basis and are arrived at as
follows:

(i) Raw materials purchased for use in the
manufacturing process — invoiced price and
shipping cost.

(i)~ Work in progress and finished manufactured
goods — costs of direct materials, direct labour and
an appropriate proportion of production overheads.

(i) Finished goods purchased for resale — invoiced
price and shipping cost.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in
the ordinary course of business less applicable variable
selling expenses.

Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for
merchandise sold in the ordinary course of business. If
collection of trade and other receivables is expected in
one year or less (or in the normal operating cycle of the
business if longer), they are classified as current assets.
If not, they are presented as non-current assets.

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially
at the amount of consideration that is unconditional
unless they contain significant financing components,
when they are recognised at fair value. The Group holds
the trade receivables with the objective to collect the
contractual cash flows and therefore measure them
subsequently at amortised cost using effective interest
method. See note 17 for further information about
the Group's accounting for trade receivables and note
2.11(iv) for a description of the Group’s impairment
policies.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
REMBRERME(E)

For the year ended 31st December 2020
R _FE_FFL _H=1—HIFE

2. Summary of Significant Accounting

Policies (Continued)

2.16 Cash and cash equivalents
In the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and
cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and deposits
held at call with banks with original maturities of three
months or less.

2.17 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

2.18 Trade and other payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or
services that have been acquired in the ordinary course
of business from suppliers. Trade and other payables
are classified as current liabilities if payment is due
within one year or less (or in the normal operating cycle
of the business if longer). If not, they are presented as
non-current liabilities.

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method.

2.19 Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
stated at amortised cost; any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
value is recognised in the consolidated income
statement over the period of the borrowings using the
effective interest method.

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are
recognised as transaction costs of the loan to the
extent that it is probable that some or all of the facility
will be drawn down. The fee is deferred until the draw
down occurs. To the extent there is no evidence that it
is probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn
down, the fee is capitalised as a prepayment for liquidity
services and amortised over the period of the facility to
which it relates.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

2. Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

2.19

2.20

Borrowings (Continued)

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of
the liability for at least twelve months after the end of
the reporting period.

General and specific borrowing costs directly
attributable to the acquisition, construction or production
of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily
take a substantial period of time to get ready for their
intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those
assets, until such time as the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are charged to the
consolidated income statement in the financial period in
which they are incurred.

Employee benefits

(i) Employee leave entitlements
Employee entitlements to annual leave and long
service leave are recognised when they accrue to
employees. A provision is made for the estimated
liability for annual leave and long service leave as
a result of services rendered by employees up to
the end of the reporting period.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity
leave are not recognised until the time of leave.

(i) Bonus plans

The expected cost of bonus payment is
recognised as a liability and an expense when
the Group has a present legal or constructive
obligation as a result of services rendered
by employees and a reliable estimate of the
obligation can be made. Liabilities for bonus plan
are expected to be settled within twelve months
and are measured at the amounts expected to be
paid when they are settled.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
REMBEHRERMEE(E)

For the year ended 31st December 2020
R _FE_FFL _H=1—HIFE

2. Summary of Significant Accounting 2. FESHEERME(E)

Policies (Continued)
2.20 Employee benefits (Continued) 220 EERF(4E)
(iii) Retirement benefit costs (iii) BARERA

The Group operates several defined contribution
schemes.

A defined contribution plan is a pension plan
under which the Group pays fixed contributions
into a separate entity. The Group has no legal
or constructive obligations to pay further
contributions if the fund does not hold sufficient
assets to pay all employees the benefits relating
to employee service in the current and prior
periods.

For Hong Kong employees, the Group contributes
to Mandatory Provident Fund (“MPF") scheme in
accordance with Hong Kong Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance. Contributions to
the MPF scheme by the Group and employees
are calculated as a percentage of employees’
remuneration received. The Group's contributions
to MPF scheme are expensed as incurred. The
assets of the MPF scheme are held separately
from those of the Group in an independently
administered fund.

For employees in Mainland China and Vietnam,
the Group contributes to a defined contribution
retirement scheme managed by the local
municipal government in Mainland China and
Vietnam. The Group's contributions to the
retirement scheme are expensed as incurred
while the local municipal government in Mainland
China and Vietnam undertakes to assume that
the retirement benefit obligations of the qualified
employees in Mainland China and Vietnam.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

2. Summary of Significant Accounting

Policies (Continued)

2.21 Current and deferred income tax
The income tax expense or credit for the period is the
tax payable on the current period’s taxable income
based on the applicable income tax rate for each
jurisdiction adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets
and liabilities attributable to temporary differences and
to unused tax losses.

(a) Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on
the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of reporting period in
the countries where the Company and its
subsidiaries operate and generate taxable income.
Management periodically evaluates positions
taken in tax returns with respect to situations
in which applicable tax regulation is subject to
interpretation and establishes provisions where
appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to
be paid to the tax authorities.

(b) Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the
liability method, on temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and
their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial
statements. However, deferred income tax is not
accounted for if it arises from initial recognition
of an asset or liability in a transaction other than
a business combination that at the time of the
transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable
profit or loss. Deferred income tax is determined
using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of reporting
period and are expected to apply when the related
deferred income tax asset is realised or the
deferred income tax liability is settled.

The deferred tax liability in relation to investment
property that is measured at fair value is
determined assuming the property will be
recovered entirely through sale.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only
if it is probable that future taxable amounts will
be available to utilise those temporary differences
and losses.
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2. Summary of Significant Accounting

Policies (Continued)

221 Current and deferred income tax

(Continued)

(b) Deferred income tax (Continued)
Deferred tax liabilities and assets are not
recognised for temporary differences between the
carrying amount and tax bases of investments in
foreign operations where the company is able to
control the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences and it is probable that the differences
will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset
current tax assets and liabilities and when the
deferred tax balances relate to the same taxation
authority. Current tax assets and tax liabilities are
offset where the entity has a legally enforceable
right to offset and intend either to settle on a net
basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in
consolidated income statement except to the
extent that it relates to items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity.

2.22 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a
present legal or constructive obligation as a result of
past events, it is probable that an outflow of resources
will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable
estimate of the amount can be made. Provisions are not
recognised for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the
likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement
is determined by considering the class of obligations as
a whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood
of an outflow with respect to any one item included in
the same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the
management’s best estimate of the expenditures
required to settle the obligation present at the end
of the reporting period. The discount rate used to
determine the present value is a pre-tax rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value
of money and the risks specific to the liability. The
increase in the provision due to passage of time is
recognised as interest expense.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

2. Summary of Significant Accounting

Policies (Continued)
2.23 Revenue recognition

2.24

(i)

(i)

(iii)

Sale of goods

Revenue is recognised when control of the
products has transferred to the customers at
a point in time, being when the products are
delivered to the customer, the customer has full
discretion over the channel and price to sell the
products, and there is no unfulfilled obligation that
could affect the customer’s acceptance of the
products. Delivery occurs when the products have
been shipped to the specified location, the risks
of obsolescence and loss have been transferred
to the customer, and either the customer has
accepted the products in accordance with the
sales contract, the acceptance provisions have
lapsed, or the Group has objective evidence that
all criteria for acceptance have been satisfied.
As receivable is recognised when the goods
are delivered as this is the point in time that the
consideration is unconditional because only the
passage of time is required before the payment is
due.

Interest income
Interest income is recognised on a time proportion
basis using the effective interest method.

Operating lease rental income
Operating lease rental income is recognised on a
straight-line basis over the period of the lease.

Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair
value where there is a reasonable assurance that the
grant will be received and the Group will comply with all
attached conditions.

A MEHmRME(E)

For the year ended 31st December 2020
BR _E_ZFFL _H=+—HIFE
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Perennial International Limited B #B % B & R A A

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

REUBRRMEE)

For the year ended 31st December 2020
R _FE_FFL _H=1—HIFE

3. Financial Risk Management
3.1 Financial risk factors

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks: market risk (including foreign exchange risk,
price risk and interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity
risk. The Group’s overall risk management programme
focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets
and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the
Group'’s financial performance.

Management regularly manages the financial risks of
the Group.

(i)

Foreign exchange risk

The Group operates internationally and is exposed
to foreign currency risk arising from various
currency exposures, primarily with respect to
Renminbi (“RMB"), Vietnamese Dong (“VND")
and United States Dollar (“US$"”). Foreign
exchange risk arises from future commercial
transactions, recognised assets and liabilities and
net investments in foreign operations. In addition,
the conversion of RMB and VND are subject to
the rules and regulations of foreign exchange
control promulgated by Mainland China monetary
authority and Vietnam government respectively.

To manage the foreign exchange risk arising from
future commercial transactions and recognised
assets and liabilities, the Group enters into foreign
exchange forward contracts with external financial
institutions to partially hedge against such foreign
exchange risk.

Should RMB strengthened/weakened by 5%
(2019: 5%) during the year ended 31st December
2020 against the HK$, with all other variables held
constant, the impact of the loss after taxation
for the year would have been approximately
HK$993,000 higher/lower (2019: approximately
HK$344,000 lower/higher), mainly as a result of
foreign exchange losses/gains on translation of
RMB denominated receivables and payables.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

3. Financial Risk Management (Continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

Foreign exchange risk (Continued)

Should VND strengthened/weakened by 5%
(2019: 5%) during the year ended 31st December
2020 against the HK$/US$, with all other variables
held constant, the impact of the loss after taxation
for the year would have been approximately
HK$454,000 higher/lower (2019: approximately
HK$126,000 higher/lower), mainly as a result of
foreign exchange losses/gains on translation of
VND denominated receivables and payables.

Certain of the assets of the Group are
denominated in US$ but the foreign exchange risk
is considered not significant as HK$ exchange rate
is pegged to USS$.

The foreign exchange risk on financial assets and
liabilities denominated in currencies other than
RMB, VND and US$ are insignificant to the Group.

Price risk

The Group is exposed to fluctuations in the market
price of major raw materials such as copper rods
and chemicals to make plastic resins.

The Group is able to pass certain realised price
gains and losses on raw materials to certain
customers through price adjustments, which
can mitigate the price risk. The Group has not
used any derivative instruments to hedge such
economic exposures.

Interest rate risk

The Group's interest rate risk arises from bank
borrowings. Borrowings obtained at variable rates
expose the Group to cash flow interest rate risk
which is partially offset by cash held at variable
rates. Details of the Group's borrowings have
been disclosed in note 22 to the consolidated
financial statements.

The Group has not used any hedging arrangement
to hedge its exposure to interest rate risk.

The sensitivity analysis presents the effects on
the Group’s loss after taxation for the year as a
result of changes in interest expense on floating
rate borrowings. The sensitivity to interest rate
used is based on market forecasts available
at the reporting date and under the economic
environments in which the Group operates, with
other variables held constant.

A MEHmRME(E)

For the year ended 31st December 2020
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
REMBEHRERMEE(E)

For the year ended 31st December 2020
R _FE_FFL _H=1—HIFE

3. Financial Risk Management (Continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(iii)

(iv)

Interest rate risk (Continued)

Based on the analysis performed, the impact
on the loss after taxation of a 100 basis-
point decrease/increase in interest rate would
be a decrease/increase of HK$495,000 and
HK$663,000 for the years ended 31st December
2020 and 2019, respectively.

Credit risk

Credit risk arises from trade and bills receivables,
other receivables, and favourable derivative
financial instrument and deposits placed with
banks.

Risk management
Credit risk is managed on a group basis.

For the favourable financial derivatives and
deposits placed with banks and financial
institutions, only independently rated parties with
acceptable rating quality is accepted.

Risk control assesses the credit quality of the
customer, taking into account its financial position,
past experience and other factors. Individual risk
limits are set based on internal or external ratings
in accordance with limits set by the Group. The
compliance with credit limits by customers is
regularly monitored by the Group.

The Group has policies in place to ensure sales
are made to customers with appropriate credit
terms and the Group performs periodic credit
check with reference to credit rating performed by
external agents.

The Group has concentration of credit risk.
Sales made to the top 5 customers amounted
to approximately HK$188,356,000 (2019:
HK$208,311,000), representing 67 % (2019: 69%)
of total revenue for the year. The total accounts
receivable balance of these top 5 customers as at
31st December 2020 was HK$38,786,000 (2019:
HK$64,577,000).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

3. Financial Risk Management (Continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(iv)

Credit risk (Continued)

Risk management (Continued)

The Group has four types of financial assets that
are subject to the expected credit loss model:

. Bill receivables
° Cash at bank
° Trade receivables

o Other financial assets at amortised cost

Bill receivables and cash at bank

As at 31st December 2020, most of the bank
deposits are deposited with reputable banks in
Mainland China, Vietnam and Hong Kong. Most of
the bill receivables are issued from state-owned
banks in Mainland China. The credit quality of cash
at bank and bill receivables has been assessed by
reference to external credit ratings or to historical
information about the counterparty default rates.
The existing counterparties do not have default in
the past. Therefore, expected credit loss rate of
cash at bank and bill receivables is assessed to
be close to zero and no provision was made as at
31st December 2020.

Trade receivables

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified
approach to measures expected credit losses
which uses a lifetime expected loss allowance for
all trade receivables.

To measure the expected credit losses, trade
receivables have been grouped by invoice date
and based on shared credit risk characteristics.

The expected loss rates are based on the payment
profiles of sales over a period of 12 months before
31st December 2020 and the corresponding
historical credit losses experienced within this
period. The historical loss rates are adjusted to
reflect current and forward-looking information on
macroeconomic factors affecting the ability of the
customers to settle the receivables.

A MEHmRME(E)

For the year ended 31st December 2020
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
REMBRERME(E)

For the year ended 31st December 2020
R _FE_FFL _H=1—HIFE

3. Financial Risk Management (Continued) 3. B EREIE(E)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 BRREE(E)
(iv) Credit risk (Continued) (iv) FEEREE)
Trade receivables (Continued) ESEWE (&)
On that basis, the loss allowance of trade BIGEE RZZT_TFRE-F
receivables as at 31st December 2020 and 2019 —NWF+-_A=+—HBWESE
was determined as follows: WHIBE R EETLT ¢

By invoice date

RBEZAMH
0-3 4-6 Over

months months 6 months Total

0-318 A 4-6ER HEiB6MEA F
31st December 2020 —E_FEF+=-A

=E=—IH

Expected loss rate TEHIEEX 1.6% 1.3% 96.9%
Gross carrying amount IREBE-ES5EK

— trade receivables FIE(FHBIT)

(HK$'000) 54,502 2,957 16,395 73,854
Loss allowance (HK$'000) EE#EE(THET) 872 38 15,880 16,790
31st December 2019 —E—-hE+=AH

=+—8
Expected loss rate TEHISEX 0.5% 1.6% 3.0%
Gross carrying amount BRMEE-ES5EK

— trade receivables HIE(FHIT)

(HK$'000) 55,003 16,068 8,348 79,419
Loss allowance (HK$'000) E5#E#EE(FET) 254 250 250 754
The loss allowances for trade receivables as at R+ A=+—HESEWHIE
31st December reconcile to the opening loss 5 16 1 s B B A7) f 1R 4R S AR 40

allowances as follows: T
2020 2019
—ECEF —E-NF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET T
Opening loss allowance at W—B— BEAEERE

1st January 754 -
Increase in loss allowance RERB =R EEEE

recognised in profit or loss 3N

during the year 15,719 754
Exchange alignment P R 317 =

Closing loss allowance at R+t-A=+—BH=X
31st December EE R 16,790 754




Annual Report 2020 £ ¥}

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

3. Financial Risk Management (Continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(iv)

(v)

Credit risk (Continued)

Trade receivables (Continued)

Trade receivables are written off where there is no
reasonable expectation of recovery. Indicators that
there is no reasonable expectation of recovery
include, amongst others, the failure of a debtor to
engage in a repayment plan with the group.

Impairment losses on trade receivables are
presented as net impairment losses within
operating profit. Subsequent recoveries of
amounts previously written off are credited
against the same line item.

Other financial assets at amortised cost

Other financial assets at amortised cost are
considered to be low credit risk primarily because
historically they had no history of default and
the debtors had a strong capacity to meet its
contractual cash flow obligations in the near term.
Therefore, as at 31st December 2020 and 2019,
the directors of the Group were of the opinion that
no provision for loss allowance was necessary.

Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management implies
maintaining sufficient cash and making available
an adequate amount of committed credit facilities
with staggered maturities to reduce refinancing
risk in any year and to fund working capital, debt
servicing, dividend payments, new investments
and close out market positions if required. The
Group maintains significant flexibility to respond
to opportunities and events by ensuring that
committed credit lines are available. As at 31st
December 2020, the Group had available trade
and loan finance facilities of HK$193,040,000 of
which HK$45,727,000 was utilised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
REMBRERME(E)

For the year ended 31st December 2020
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3. Financial Risk Management (Continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(v) Liquidity risk (Continued)

The table below analyses the Group's financial
liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on
the remaining period at the end of the reporting
period to the contractual maturity date. The
amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual
undiscounted cash flows. Balances due within
12 months equal their carrying balances as the
impact of discounting is not significant.

gﬁ%ﬁwﬁ‘%’iﬂ(%ﬁ)

B Rk E X ()

(v) FEESERS(HE)
TRAMAEENSHUEHE - &
FRARBEROZI MR - AR iR e s
HRE A K38 B R R
IR « ERABBNSERS
MIERBRRSRE - ARRR
MR BT - BULTE128 A RE)
BB SR HLAREI(E -

On demand or Between
within 1 year 1to 2 years
BRERS—FR —EWE
HK$'000 HK$'000
T FHET
At 31st December 2020 R-ZE-EF+=-A=+—H
Trust receipt loans f:.uﬂﬁ)%féf?ﬁ 8,627 -
Bank loans RITER 37,200 =
Trade and other payables B 5 R H A B FIR 32,431 =
Lease liabilities HEEaE 77 =
At 31st December 2019 N-—ZE—hE+=-A=+—H
Trust receipt loans EEBIEER 31,435 -
Bank loans IRITER 37,000 =
Trade and other payables B 5 R HAFERFIR 24,086 =
Lease liabilities HEEE 457 74
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
IREMBHRERME(E)

For the year ended 31st December 2020
BR _E_ZFFL _H=+—HIFE

B EREE(H)

3. Financial Risk Management (Continued) 3.
32 EERRER

3.2 Capital risk management

The primary objective of the Group's capital
management is to safeguard the Group's ability to
continue as a going concern, maintain a strong credit
rating and a healthy capital ratio to support the business
and to enhance shareholder value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in light of changes in economic
conditions and business strategies. To maintain or
adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the
dividend payments to shareholders, return capital to
shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce
debts. The Group's capital management objectives,
policies or processes were unchanged during the years
ended 31st December 2020 and 2019.

Except for the compliance of certain financial covenants
for maintaining the Group’s banking facilities and
borrowings and loans, the Group is not subject to any
externally imposed capital requirements. The Group
complied with the financial covenants attached to
borrowings and loans as at 31st December 2020 and
2019.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the gearing
ratio. This ratio is calculated by dividing total borrowings
to total equity.

The gearing ratios at 31st December 2020 and 2019
were as follows:

AEFEESEENTIZAER - BEEA
SEFELE - BRRIFVEETHRM
RROBDLE  UHEEBERR
RITBIR(EE

7R 5 B [ P A A AR L RO B N P SR R M
REBMABRESRE  AKEAHE
MR TRCREVRE - BITHIAR - BESUE
BER AKENESEERRF  BXR
FEFREBE_ZT_ZTFR_FT-NF
T-A=+—BLFEGENE -

@Lﬁ#:Fﬁﬁézyé A MERF AR B AR

TRE MEREFIN - REBWES
Eﬂ%‘ﬁﬁmﬁﬂﬁ’]é%%ﬁiﬁﬁ%ﬂ RE
ER_Z_EFR_FT-NLF+A
=+ —BESFERME R e B 522
o

ARBAIFERLEERAAK - st
SRR AR AR A s st 5

BE_Z_ZTHFER_T-AF+_A
=t EﬁirﬁhttfﬁDT

2020 2019

— ? —= f'i :%*jli

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHExT FHET

Total borrowings RIER 45,727 68,435
Total equity R 549,280 562,524
Gearing ratio EiRE® 8.3% 12.2%
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31st December 2020
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3. Financial Risk Management (Continued)
3.3 Fair value estimation

The carrying amounts of the Group's financial assets
and liabilities including cash and cash equivalents, trade
and bill receivables, other receivables and deposits,
derivative financial instruments, trade payables, other
payables and accruals, lease liabilities and short-term
borrowings approximate to their fair values due to their
short-term maturities. The fair value of financial liabilities
for disclosure purposes is estimated by discounting
the future contractual cash flows at the current market
interest rate that is available to the Group for similar
financial instruments, unless the discounting effect is
insignificant.

See notes 14 and 15 for disclosures of the property,
plant and equipment and investment properties and note
18 for disclosure of the derivative financial instruments
that are measured at fair value and classified by level of
the following fair value measurement hierarchy at 31st
December 2020 and 2019:

1. Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities (Level 1).

2. Inputs other than quoted prices included within
level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that
is, derived from prices) (Level 2).

3. Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based
on observable market data (that is, unobservable
inputs) (Level 3).

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active
markets is based on quoted market prices at the end
of reporting date. The quoted market price used for
financial assets and liabilities is the current bid price.
These instruments are included in level 1.

3.

B E b E R (&)
3 DAMEME

AEBMBEENVHEABENREER
EREMRSEEY - BHRUGAEN
EWEE - BB BER RS - 14
SRMTER - BHENFR - EMENR
ERERX - HEREREHER
HEEFH - AMEERERELD - A
ERBEREZMBRBNARENALSE
B AR AELE R T AR IR TS R,
ARKEG RS RENIERT - BRIFERS
BEETK-

RZE_ZEFR_FT—NF+=A
=+—8 ZRA/RENERETIAR
B 2B BENYE  BRERZER
WEMEZIRE - URPTESRTIAY
WEE - BRI TE14 21550 &Y
FF18 ¢

1. MEEEEMSTHEREEXE
B2 CREHE)RBE(F—R) -

2. BREREREE-ROREI @A
R E & (B ER) HEE(H
BROTE) ER A BEMSEEE
ZAEERA(E =) -

3. EEXBBZHEIFENAE
EmGEECGIERSRE) (£=
) e

EERMZEENSRTAZ ARER
BHREMERBNTISREIIR - A%
BRANPBEENBBENTISRES
ERERE - RSTASIASE MR-
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

3. Financial Risk Management (Continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded
in an active market is determined by using valuation
techniques. These valuation techniques maximise the
use of observable market data where it is available and
rely as little as possible on entity specific estimates. If
all significant inputs required to fair value an instrument
are observable, the instrument is included in level 2.

If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on
observable market data, the instrument is included in
level 3.

Critical Accounting Estimates and

Judgements

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are
based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the
future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,
seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year are discussed below.

4.1 Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in several
jurisdictions. Significant judgement is required in
determining the worldwide provision for taxation.
There are many transactions and calculations for which
the ultimate tax determination is uncertain during the
ordinary course of business. The Group recognises
liabilities for anticipated taxes based on estimates of
whether additional taxes will be due. Where the final tax
outcome of these matters is different from the amounts
that were initially recorded, such differences will impact
the current tax and deferred tax provisions in the period
in which such determination is made.

A MEHmRME(E)

For the year ended 31st December 2020
BR _E_ZFFL _H=+—HIFE

B EREE(E)

3.3 ARfEME ()
BREEERMSEENEGRMTANAR
ENRGEERNEE - ZFEERNE
ENRABEmSEE(E)  ZED
REE AT AR Wt E RS
TENAREMRHNAEERBA S
BRE eI AIASZ & -

i —IA ZIRE A AL IFRE A ER
mSEE - AZERTAIAFT=H -

B ST b5t & M

BB & s AT - WRBBELSR
MEMEZETHE - BREGBBRLTHE
SHARREMHEENTEA -

AR B R R - S E T
fEE(MEER)  RORRAREE R
A RARESRTENBEENEENA
ErRREE L EAREN B R
e o

4.1 Fr8®i

AEE T B S (E RS B A TS
B o EETZERERER  TEEL
BAHY - EEEEBBIZP - 5%
SR BHREHBEET S TETH
AEBREG 2 EEMNEING R -
MIBBIERRAE - ERROFIRE
RHESVRESETRN - HEEEE
240 1 T HAR 0 2 HURH T RO ST R T
# o
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Perennial International Limited B #B % B & R A A

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
REMBRERME(E)

For the year ended 31st December 2020
R _FE_FFL _H=1—HIFE

4. Critical Accounting Estimates and

Judgements (Continued)

4.2 Estimated fair value of investment
properties, leasehold land and buildings
The fair value of investment properties, buildings
and leasehold land and building in Hong Kong are
determined at the end of each reporting period by
independent professional valuers. The fair value of
investment properties and leasehold land and buildings
in Hong Kong are determined on an open market value
basis by reference to comparable market transactions.
The fair value of buildings in Vietnam and Mainland
China are determined on depreciated replacement
cost basis. The market approach of valuation is
subject to few comparable market transactions while
the depreciated replacement cost approach is based
on estimation of current construction cost by the
Surveyors.

4.3 Impairment of trade receivables

The Group makes provision for impairment of trade
receivables based on assumptions about risk of default
and expected loss rate. The Group uses judgement in
making these assumptions and selecting the inputs to
the impairment calculation, based on the Group’s past
history, existing market conditions as well as forward
looking estimates at the end of each reporting period.

4.4 Provision for inventories

Significant judgement is exercised in the assessment
of the net realisable value of its inventory, which is
the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of
business, less estimated costs of completion and selling
expenses. In making its judgement, management
considers a wide range of factors such as the age of
the inventory items and the assessment of the results
of the subsequent sales performance of the items.
Management reassess the provision at the end of the
reporting period.

4. BARETHEETRAE(E)

4.2

4.3

4.4

BErREYR  HEL BRI
FHARE

BREYE BT RUNEBNHEE LM
RETFHAREREREHRABLE
EAHEMEE - REMERMLURE LD
HEL W RETHRRELERALERT
BRSO NFHAMBEEET © (R HE
RABEAENETOAABRTEER
RASEEE BEMSAET W HEAT L
BhiER5 - MTEEERAETER
R SRS AR R A o

B2 BW A 2 RERE

NS BIR RS R 40 R K AR IR R
MR - 5 KM R E
B o AREED SRR R
st E 0B ABIRE - REAEEAE
AR - RE WS HAR OB TR KA
A EHE A T -

FERE
REHEEEZ IR IHERAEHER
HIER A B S5 e fhaT S (ER A b5
ST ER MAHE ST o RMEH HERE -
EEEEEREZAR  MEEHEAZE
BN ETHB REHERGE 2R - B
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

4. Critical Accounting Estimates and

Judgements (Continued)

4.5 Estimated useful lives of property, plant
and equipment
The Group’s management determines the estimated
useful lives and related depreciation charges for its
property, plant and equipment. This estimate is based
on the historical experience of the actual useful lives
of the property, plant and equipment of similar nature
and functions. It could change significantly as a result
of technical innovations. Management will increase the
depreciation charge where useful lives are less than
previously estimated lives, or it will write off or write
down technically obsolete or non-strategic assets that
have been abandoned or sold.

Revenue and Segment Information

The Group is principally engaged in the manufacturing
and trading of electric cable and wire products. Revenue
recognised during the year is as follows:

A MEHmRME(E)

For the year ended 31st December 2020
BR _E_ZFFL _H=+—HIFE

4. BARETHEETRAE(E)

45 Y% -  BMERERE 2T AL
FFH
AEBEEEETNE  BERREL
it Al E A F AR ERX - itk
AERSARRUEE REZY
% BELRBZERAERFHZE
SLAESR - RIREREBI R M BB RN
B o BIRERIBINTERS - WAl (ER
FHER 2 AIEE 2 FH - M
ﬁiﬁa%%itﬁ%Z%@ﬁﬁﬂz#%%ﬁ
= o

Wz 2 2 BB E Y
AEBEBEUNERERERIERER
£75 - FABRZKGET ¢

2020 2019

—EIEF —E-NF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FEx FAET

Sale of goods — at a point in time SHE — 7 F AR 2 282,342 301,357

The Chief Executive Officer (the chief operation decision
maker) has reviewed the Group's internal reporting and
determines that there are five reportable segments, based
on location of customers under the electric cable and wire
products business, including Hong Kong, Mainland China,
America, Europe and Other countries. These segments are
managed separately as each segment is subject to risks and
returns that are different from others.

THAAE(BEFEEARE ) CHEAKER
MImEMEEEERREREREL TRIE
BEEMEMERENE - BFREE  FEX
BE -~ 2 BUMREMEER - %E 0 S EE
i N B3R A B D JR B 2 FE IR o
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Perennial International Limited B #B % B & R A A

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
AV BEmEMEE(E)

For the year ended 31st December 2020
BE-—FE-_FTFEf _H=+—HIFE

5. Revenue and Segment Information 5. WHERSIHER (E)

(Continued)
The segment information for the reportable segments for TECEERIE-NFHREI AR EE
2020 and 2019 are as follows: T
Revenue Total
(external Segment segment Capital
sales) results assets expenditure Depreciation
Wiz
(ShERSEE) PHEE BIVEE EREX wE
2020 2020 2020 2020 2020
—ECBF —ECBE —ECEF —ECEF —ECEF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT FTER FET FTERT TERT
Hong Kong B 80,101 (17,707) 135,755 735 5,809
Mainland China B A RE 39,794 (1,042) 302,067 690 11,163
America M 159,168 1,577 94,300 - -
Europe BUM 530 16 172 - -
Other countries HibBR 2,749 99 100,978 15,443 3,033
Reportable segment &2 &P 282,342 (17,057) 633,272 16,868 20,005
Unallocated costs AOEEEHR (2,640)
Operating loss REEE (19,697)
Revenue Total
(external Segment segment Capital
sales) results assets  expenditure  Depreciation
W
(HNEPSHE) DEEE B EE CENGE e
2019 2019 2019 2019 2019
—E-nE O ZENEFE  ZENEF ZE-hE ZENF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHIT FHIT FHT FHL FHL
Hong Kong B 85,432 (7,668) 176,593 1,614 6,195
Mainland China A B A BE 41,508 (2,555) 309,245 609 12,431
America e 171,754 686 93,495 = =
Europe BUM 445 (41) 118 = =
Other countries HiBIR 2,218 (158) 81,932 13,326 2,377
Reportable segment ¥R 225 301,357 (9,736) 661,383 15,449 21,003
Unallocated costs AOEEH (2,180)

Operating loss REEE (11,916)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Revenue and Segment Information
(Continued)

A reconciliation of total segment assets to the Group's total
assets.

REMBHRRME(E)

For the year ended 31st December 2020
BE—F _FF+-_A=1—HIFE

ko ERE R ()

BOREERANREREENLR -

2020 2019

—ECEF —E-hEF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHERT FBT

Total segment assets BB E 633,272 661,383
Investment properties WEMZE 42,980 47,200
Deferred tax assets RIEFIIREE 9,726 6,296
Total assets BEE 685,978 714,879

Unallocated costs represent corporate expenses.

Revenue of approximately HK$$151,130,000 (2019:
HK$153,484,000) are derived from two (2019: two) major
customers contributing 10% or more of the total revenue.
These revenues are attributable to the America segment
(2019: America segment).

AOEEMEARZM °

I 25 47 151,130,000 8 L ( =T — L4 -
153484000,%7t)x57ﬁ§ﬂﬁ%(_§ bt
& W%)Iggﬁ(fw@uﬁ £10% 3% LA
%I ;z:r;u&z =HREEMNDHB(ZE—NF :
/|/_\_L

2020 2019
—F-BHF —TNF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHExT T

Customer A ZEA 76,437 80,484
Customer B ZFEB 74,693 73,000

151,130 153,484
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

RABRERMEE)

For the year ended 31st December 2020
BE-—FE-_FTFEf _H=+—HIFE

6. Other Income 6. Hftliz
2020 2019
—ECEF —T-NF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FBT FET
Scrap sales RERHSHE 714 3,169
Interest income FEWA 27 98
Rental income from investment REZEDE 2 BB
properties 1,106 892
Government subsidy BN #EEh 2,589 423
Compensation and storage EEME  2HEREBRRA
income and freight charges
received from customers 1,463 990
Other income from customers HEipRFEUA 970 1,514
6,869 7,086
7. Other Operating Expenses, Net 7. HttKEM%FEE
2020 2019
—E-EF —ZE-NF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FHT
Revaluation (deficit)/surplus of BFEGH(EER), /B
buildings (221) 138
Loss on revaluation of investment &Y EELHEKL
properties (4,220) (8,090)
Charitable donations ZE1BR (905) (1,465)
Net gain/(loss) on derivatives PTES R T BRI
financial instruments (%) 3,690 (1,083)
Net exchange losses HNESFIBR (614) (996)
Gain/(loss) on disposal/write-off of &, HEWE « FE K
property, plant and equipment B WEs (BXR) 3 (57)
Other expenses HEmAx (1,201) (1,201)
(3,468) (12,754)




Operating Loss

Operating loss is stated after charging/(crediting) the
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

EE—

8. REEIE

REMBHRRME(E)

For the year ended 31st December 2020
FoFEF A=+ —ALFEE

REBREHR/ GEATHIRIER

following:
2020 2019
—ECEF —T-NEF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FExT FiBT
Depreciation e 20,005 21,003
Auditor’s remuneration ZE A &
- Audit services — F&FHEE 1,436 1,648
- Non-audit services — JEFEETIEE 1,121 1,076
Cost of inventories HFERA 148,564 148,684
Net exchange losses HNEEEFIB K 614 996
Lease payments for short-term EHREEERAENHAEMNK
and low-value leases 29 113
Direct expenses for investment ARG 2 EEEERYT
properties 219 211
Provision/(reversal of provision) ERTFERE, (BEHE)
for slow-moving inventories 154 (705)
Staff costs (including directors’ BINA(BIEESHE)
emoluments) (note 12) (MH5E12) 77,935 93,002
Finance Costs 9. MKEH
2020 2019
—ECEF =&
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Finance expenses on HEBBEsHBHAXZ
lease liabilities 1 21
Interest expenses on RITERZF B
bank borrowings 1,664 2,793
Less: finance costs capitalised B BEREENENMEI B ER
on qualifying assets - (346)
Net finance cost 758 ) F R 1,675 2,468

Note: For the year ended 31st December 2019, the capitalisation

rate used to determine the amount of borrowing costs to
be capitalised in construction-in-progress was the weighted
average interest rate applicable to the entity’s borrowing during

the year of 3.68%.

B EE

HEZT—

NET_A=+—BLFE &

EERTRENBENMCERRAREMAZE
MR BFRNEREFER Z NEFHF
* . 533.68% °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
REMBEHRERMEE(E)

For the year ended 31st December 2020
R _FE_FFL _H=1—HIFE

10. Taxation

(a)

Hong Kong profits tax provided at the two-tiered rate
of 8.26% for the first HK$2 million of the estimated
assessable profits for one of the Group’'s Hong Kong
subsidiaries for the year and 16.5% on the remaining
estimated assessable profits for the year (2019: 8.25%
for the first HK$2 million and 16.5% for the remaining).

Taxation on overseas profits has been calculated on
the estimated assessable profits for the year at the
applicable rates of taxation prevailing in the jurisdictions
in which the Group operates.

US corporation is subject to two level of taxes.
Corporation is taxed on its earnings, and when the
corporate earnings are distributed to the shareholders
as dividend, the shareholders need to pay tax on the
dividend received. Corporate income tax is imposed
at the federal and state level on all entities treated as
corporation. The federal corporate tax rate is 21% while
the state corporate tax rate is varied by states.

The corporate income tax of the People’s Republic of
China is provided at 25% based on the assessable profit
for the year less allowable losses brought forward, if
applicable.

The subsidiaries established and operated in Vietnam
were subject to corporate income tax at a rate of 20%
(2019: 20%). In accordance with the applicable tax
regulations, a subsidiary is subject to a lower tax rate
of 10% for fifteen consecutive years, commencing
from the first year of making revenue. In addition, the
subsidiary is entitled to full exemption from corporate
income tax for the first four years from the earlier of (i)
the year when profit is generated for the first time or (ii)
the fourth year of making revenue; and a 50% reduction
in corporate income tax for the next nine years, which
is offered by the Vietham Government and is stipulated
in the subsidiary’s investment license. Perennial Cable
(Vietnam) Co., Ltd. is entitled to the full exemption from
corporate income tax starting from the financial year
ended 31st December 2019.

10. HiH

(a)

ANEE—BESHBRARANERE (T
FE R B % A EY & 2,000,000/ 7T R FE
T & B 5T FE SR B i K 99 5132 8.25%
}16.5% B/ 4 B B R EH IR B A TS
H(ZZF—NF : 52,000,000/ 7T A
8.25% N FI#RIA16.5%) ©

5 T2 BB CRIE R AR
0l B BT ) AR R 1T
HAREE -

KB RRFHEARR - RAIBLEEF
B BEXRBMNESKED KT
R BORBACDRBE B - ARG
RAHI TR BB IRE H S B E R
EFH - MABEEHRERR21% - M
BB RILINDTE

FREE A REMBEFRERTIEREN
JERRTR i B R A B e S 1B (RiE R ) 1%
25%H4R °

R R ERKTE R R ZAEIE20%
(ZZ—HNE 20% ) T R Bm 2
FriSHi - RIBEABIBEER - fIBA
RBBEANRGEFREETAFIK
BIEME10%EF - dbod - BOEER
MEFH ) EERZHENEFE(HRE
EAEE)ERTENFEA - ZHBRARE
BEHR BN EMESR  WRE
BNFERNZA0NDEMESRRE -
TARBEBNS T @ WiKZHEB AR
B3I &R A B AT BH © Perennial Cable
(Vietnam) Co., Ltd. B BH —_Z—Ah
F+-A=1+—HIMBRFERRBEH
NN TS ©



10. Taxation (Continued)

(a)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

REMBHRRME(E)

For the year ended 31st December 2020
BE—F _FF+-_A=1—HIFE

10. Bi1E ()

(Continued) (@ (&)
The amount of taxation (credited)/charged to the Gt A,/ frer A B R 2 BiEE -
consolidated income statement represents:
2020 2019
—E-FF —ZE-NF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET FA&T
Hong Kong profits tax BRENEH 77 163
Overseas taxation BN IR 2,446 1,670
Under-provision/(over-provision) FHEETR, (BEREE)
in prior year 298 (2)
Deferred tax relating to the TRHEENEER
origination and reversal B0 2 RERIE
of temporary differences (FFEE10(b))
(note 10(b)) (4,962) (3,017)
(2,141) (1,186)

The taxation on the Group's loss before taxation differs
from the theoretical amount that would arise using the RAEBMEREMFE 2Bt =

R SR [B1 A RARE 1 B 5 18 2 TR R AR R

profits tax rate of Hong Kong as follows: L=/ N
2020 2019
bt 222 —T-NEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FBT
Loss before taxation BrEL AT 1R (21,372) (14,384)
Calculated at a taxation rate of BHIE16.5%
16.5% (2019: 16.5%) —ZT—NF :165%)
STEZHIE (3,526) (2,373)
Effect of different taxation rates TRMRER 2 2 (33) 1,307
Income not subject to taxation R AR WA (985) (3,318)
Expenses not deductible for A2
taxation purposes 2,022 3,156
Under-provision/(over-provision) FRIBET R (HBRERME)
in prior year 298 (2)
Utilisation of previously ERERARERZ
unrecognised deferred tax assets BIETRIEE E (18) (38)
Tax losses for which no deferred RERBEETRIEE =
tax assets were recognised 2 BT E 101 82

Taxation credit

FHIETA (2,141) (1,186)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
AV BEmEMEE(E)

For the year ended 31st December 2020
BE-—FE-_FTFEf _H=+—HIFE

10. Taxation (Continued)

10. Bi1E (%)

(b) The movements of deferred tax (assets)/liabilities b) AFERBEFEELHE(EE) 8
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial BIR B FENEFHNT -
position are as follows:
Revaluation Tax Provisions
surplus  depreciation and others Tax losses Total
BB BERE BEREM HEER pak]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T T THT T
At 1st January 2020 RZZ=Z5-F—H 48,817 (4,740) (3,470) (3,068) 37,539
Credited to the consolidated SANGABER
income statement (39) (994) (1,063) (2,866) (4,962)
Credited to revaluation reserve st AEfGRE (2,014) - - - (2,014)
At 31st December 2020 W-E-%%
+-A=1+-H 46,764 (5,734) (4,533) (5,934) 30,563
At 1st January 2019 RZZ-NE—F—H 48,442 (3,695) (3,133) (1,399) 40215
Charged/(credited) to I YAG NG
the consolidated Bak
income statement 34 (1,045) (337) (1,669) (3,017)
Charged to revaluation reserve  HIBR Efb R 341 - - - 341
At 31st December 2019 R-E-N&
+ZA=t-H 48817 (4,740 (3,470) (3,068) 37,539

Reconciliation to the consolidated statement of financial

position is as follows:

PATN AL B 7455 FR ¥R T A B 2 IR SRR TR A

Deferred tax assets
Deferred tax liabilities

ERETRIREE
ERERIAERE

RO
2020 2019
—ETHF —ET-NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
9,726 6,296
(40,289) (43,835)

(30,563) (37,539)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

10. Taxation (Continued)

(b)

(Continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for tax loss carry-
forwards to the extent that the realisation of the related
tax benefit through future taxable profits is probable.
The Group did not recognise deferred tax assets of
HK$720,000 (2019: HK$638,000) in respect of losses
amounting to HK$4,314,000 (2019: HK$3,792,000) that
can be carried forward against future taxable income.
As at 31st December 2020, tax losses for which no
deferred tax assets were recognised amounting to
HK$252,000 (2019: 344,000) will expire in 5 years,
and the remaining tax losses of HK$4,062,000 (2019:
HK$3,448,000) has no expiry date.

Deferred tax liabilities of HK$6,857,000 (2019:
HK$4,575,000) have not been recognised for the
withholding tax and other taxes that would be payable
on the unremitted earnings of certain subsidiaries.
Such amounts are permanently reinvested. Unremitted
earnings totalled HK$68,573,000 at 31st December
2020 (2019: HK$45,748,000).

(b)

A MEHmRME(E)

For the year ended 31st December 2020

BE T -_FTF+-H=1—HIFFE

10. HIE (&)

(&)

B EEERABELERBEERN
HEE - RREBRAEELERNRKE
R Tt v ) T B 3R A A8 B R TS 2 i
R o ANEE B4 BL O] 45 8 DA E R 2R
JERR A Uk 25 Y E5 184,314,000/ 7T (=
T — N5 ¢ 3,792,000 7T ) HERIEIE
FRIBEE720,0008 T (T — hF :
638,000/87C) c R=_ZE_FF+_A4
=t+—H  KERELEHBEEE TS
518 /R 5 252,000/ T ( — T — 14 -
344,000/870) SR AFAENHE - T
2 TS 184,062,000 T (ZE—Ah
F : 3,448,000/ 70) WAEEIEFA -

RNEBIATRE THE R REKER
2 F 8 F S B9 FE I B AN H I8
IR FE R T B 156,857,000/ T ( —F
— N+ 4,575,000 7T ) ° EARE
RENEBERAMIKEE - R_T =
BE+-_A=+—HHKRERREF
4 68,673,000 L ( —F— N &F :
45,748,000567T) °

119



120

Perennial International Limited B #B % B & R A A

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

RABRERMEE)

For the year ended 31st December 2020
BE-—FE-_FTFEf _H=+—HIFE

11. Loss Per Share

The calculation of basic loss per share is based on the Group’s
loss for the year of HK$19,231,000 (2019: HK$13,198,000)
divided by the weighted average number of 198,958,000
(2019: 198,958,000) ordinary shares in issue during the year.

In both 2020 and 2019, diluted loss per share is the same as
basic loss per share due to the absence of dilutive potential
ordinary shares during the reporting period.

11. BREE

BOEE -

EEREABEER -

FREXRNEBDIREAEEAFEEFE
19,231,000/8 7t (== — L4 : 13,198,000
B BRUFABEEITEBR 2 INEFHE
198,958,000 J% ( — = — JL4F : 198,958,000

R-ZE-ZFER_ZT-NF  BRHREHHE
RAEBEEEL AR  HEREEEIRR

12. Staff Costs (Including Directors’ 12. ET A (BIEESHE)

Emoluments)

2020 2019
—E-EF —E—hF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FExT FHET
Wages, salaries and fringe benefits T& - Zrfil & ZEHNEEL 73,883 87,229
Social security costs HERERA 3,068 4,707

Pension costs — contribution to RIREKA — 8 &S EIEE 2 3k
MPF scheme 428 428
Others Hith 556 638
77,935 93,002
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

13. Benefits and Interests of Directors and

Key Management

(a) Directors’ emoluments
Emoluments paid or receivable in respect of person’s
services as a director or other services in connection
with the management of the affairs, whether of the
Company or its subsidiary undertaking are set out

13.

REMBHRRME(E)

For the year ended 31st December 2020
HBE T _FF+ _A=1—HIFE

EERTEEBABZEINR

R

(a) EEHEN
ENEEAATSRENBRAREERE
HEMREREREBNRE ALY
B ok E KA S BB -

below:
Contributions Other
Discretionary to MPF benefits
Name of directors Fees Salary bonuses scheme (iii) Total
wEe Hith @R
Espg ik £k [k FTEIMR (iii) BE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET THER TR THET THET TR
For the year ended
31st December 2020
HE-Z-®F
TZA=T-HLEE
MON Chung Hung (i) - 3,660 380 - 236 4,276
RIRIEG)
KOO Di An, Louise - 1,320 110 - 211 1,641
BEEZ
SIU Yuk Shing, Marco - 672 - 18 - 690
RIBK
MON Wai Ki, Vicky - 355 30 18 - 403
hEE
MON Tiffany - 1,080 90 18 364 1,552
RmER
LAU Chun Kay (i) 180 - - - - 180
SIREAI)
LEE Chung Nai, Jones {ii) 84 - - - - 84
FRE()
CHUNG Kit Ying (ii) 120 - - - - 120
g2 ()
384 7,087 610 54 811 8,946
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
AV BEmEMEE(E)

For the year ended 31st December 2020
BE-—FE-_FTFEf _H=+—HIFE

13. Benefits and Interests of Directors and 13. EENFTEEEAEZ2R@A R

Key Management (Continued) R (E)
(a) Directors’ emoluments (Continued) (a) EEEHM(E)
Contributions Other
Discretionary to MPF benefits
Name of directors Fees Salary bonuses scheme (iii) Total
BiES HinEF
- ik i) BiFRe BEISS (iii) a5
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TH THT THT TET
For the year ended
31st December 2019
BE-_Z-NF
TZAZ+-HLEE
MON Chung Hung i} - 4,560 - - 197 4,757
FIRIE()
KOO Di An, Louise - 1,320 - - 175 1,495
iy
SIU Yuk Shing, Marco - 672 - 18 - 690
=714
MON Wai Ki, Vicky - 355 - 18 - 373
RER
MON Tiffany - 608 236 18 350 1,212
RER
LAU Chun Kay (i) 180 - - - - 180
ZIREL ()
LEE Chung Nai, Jones (i) 84 - - - - 84
FRE()
CHUNG Kit Ying (i) 120 - - - - 120
SERE (i)
384 7,515 236 54 722 8,911
(i) Chief Executive Officer (i) TTEARE,
(il Independent non-executive directors (i) BYUIERITES
(i)  Other benefits include commission and insurance (i) HaEMNBEEEES MR -
premium.
During the year, no emolument paid or receivable in TATE N E S5 = 2 (T I 0 42 LS BN 3k JrE Lk
respect of a person accepting office as a director (2019: ME(ZTE—NE: B)ULRREESW
nil) and no director waived any emoluments (2019: nil) BZiMe (=T hF : |8 BBEOE

or compensation for loss of office (2019: nil). B(ZE—NF : &)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

13. Benefits and Interests of Directors and
Key Management (Continued)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

(f)

Directors’ retirement benefits
None of the directors received or will receive any
retirement benefits during the year (2019: nil).

Directors’ termination benefits
None of the directors received or will receive any
termination benefits during the year (2019: nil).

Consideration provided to third parties for
making available directors’ services

During the year ended 31st December 2020, the Group
did not pay consideration to any third parties for making
available directors’ services (2019: nil).

Information about loans, quasi-loans
and other dealings in favour of directors,
controlled bodies corporate by and
connected entities with such directors

During the year ended 31st December 2020, there is
no loans, quasi-loans and other dealing arrangements
in favour of the directors, or controlled body corporates
and connected entities of such directors (2019: nil).

Directors’ material interests in
transactions, arrangements or contracts
No significant transactions, arrangements and contracts
in relation to the Company’s business to which the
Company was a party and in which a director of the
Company had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any
time during the year (2019: nil).

REMBHRRME(E)

For the year ended 31st December 2020

BE_F_FF+-_A=1—HUFE

13. EERFEEEAEZEBIR
xS (1E)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

(f)

EERRNER
FA - BEEFCWHBBCERER
(ZZ—-h&F: |-

EEMALER
FA - BHEEFCPSRER LEERR
BRr(=E—nE: &) -

MRERHEEEREMRAE=F1
HEEE
BHE_ZT-_ZTF+_A=+—HI*F
& - AREEE B IERE SR ST
FZFHNEE(CE—NF &) -

B - i Ai% E=REGEER
FEERAXaACER EERHH
WRB(ZF—NF &) -

jtifg_
WEBAARRERMARAERES
—HAARBEERER(THREESK

BB EARD (RAFFRINF
REARENEARS » RHEREH
(ZZ—NF:8|)-
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
AV BEmEMEE(E)

For the year ended 31st December 2020
BE-—FE-_FTFEf _H=+—HIFE

13. Benefits and Interests of Directors and 13. EENFTEEEAEZ2R@A R

Key Management (Continued) (|
(g) Five highest paid individuals (g) EuBRESHMAL
In 2020 and 2019, the five individuals whose RZBE_ZTFR_FT—NF - AR
emoluments were the highest in the Group included SEEsFMALRE=U(ZZ—N
three (2019: three) directors whose emoluments F=)EE ZNEEZMEDE
are reflected in the analysis presented above. The REXDH - XEELNFEKRMRAU
emoluments payable to the remaining two (2019: two) —Z—NF W) ATHIFRENN T ¢
individuals during the year are as follows:
2020 2019
—EIEF —E-NF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET THET
Basic salaries, other allowances HEAFH ¢ AR EEY
and benefits in kind lEes 1,969 2,057
Discretionary bonuses [ Epsn 73 110
Pension costs — contribution to BIRKA — BFESFEIEL
MPF scheme 2R 36 32
2,078 2,199
The emoluments fell within the following bands: WEMESE TEE -
Number of individuals
AEHE
2020 2019
—EIERF —E-NEF
Nil — HK$1,000,000 £ 21,000,000/ 7T 1 1
HK$1,000,001 — HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 L&

1,500,00078 7C 1 1
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

13. Benefits and Interests of Directors and

Key Management (Continued)

(h) Key management compensation
Key management includes all directors presented
above and three (2019: five) senior management. The
compensation paid or payable to key management for

REMBHRRME(E)

For the year ended 31st December 2020
HBE T _FF+ _A=1—HIFE

1. EERFTEEBAEBZENR

R ()

(h) TESEASSEM
TEEBABBEMABES N =I(Z
Z—NF: A SHEEE - MEE
BIE A B HEAEBIRBHE Nk E

employee services is shown below: SEan T -

2020 2019
—T=BF —TNF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FExT T

Basic salaries, other allowances EAF ¢ EMEMEEY
and benefits in kind I 10,912 11,622
Discretionary bonuses HERE 692 394

Pension costs — contribution to RIRE A — 8 FE R 8IE T
MPF scheme 2R 108 123
11,712 12,139

The emoluments of senior management (excluding
directors) are within the following bands:

SREREZME(TRIEER)E TS
#E :

Number of individuals

AEHE
2020 2019
—EEHF —E—hE
Nil — HK$1,000,000 L% 1,000,000/ 7T 2 4
HK$1,000,001 — HK$1,500,000 1,000,008 T2
1,500,000/ 7T 1 1
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
REMBRERME(E)

For the year ended 31st December 2020
BE-—FE-_FTFEf _H=+—HIFE

14. Property, Plant and Equipment

14. M1 - BERZRE

Right-of-use Furniture
assets  Buildings Leasehold  Plant and and Office Motor  Pleasure  Construction
(notea)  (notec) improvements machinery fixtures equipment  vehicles hoats in progress Total
fepEgE Be
(Hf3ta) (Hfskc) HELE HEREE GAREE BLERG ot i 4 HRIR a5
HK$'000  HKS'000 HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
T T T T T TEn T T T TEx
Netbook valueat ~ R=F=FF
IstJanuary 2020 —f-AZ
FEFE 131,216 262,289 4312 12,382 677 4131 2,687 38M - 421,571
Addition AE - - - 854 - 476 N - 14,944 16,645
Disposalsfwrite-off  (HE /i - - - (35) - (5) - - - (40)
Depreciation e (4,929) (9,057) (1,175) (2,782) (158) (937) (580) (387) - (20,005)
Revaluation Bf (12,392) 27 - - - - - - - (12,155)
Exchange e
adjustment m 12,653 26 385 - 56 42 - - 13932
Netbookvalueat ~R=E-FF
31stDecember  TZA=T-H
2020 LEESE 114,665 266,122 3,163 10,804 519 321 2,520 3484 14,944 419,948
At31stDecember RE-TE
2020 tZA=t-R
At cost A 34,484 - 15616 95,579 5219 15,549 7,388 14421 14944 203,200
Atvaluation-2020 fEE-=2=%% 88,520 266,122 - - - - - - - 354,642
Accumulated ZENE
depreciation (8,339) - (12,453) (84,775) (4,700) (11,822) (4,868) (10,937) - (137,894)
Net book value EEFE 114,665 266,122 3,163 10,804 519 3121 2,520 3,484 14,944 419,948




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

REMBHRRME(E)

14. Property, Plant and Equipment

For the year ended 31st December 2020
HBE T _FF+ _A=1—HIFE

Annual Report 2020 4F %R

14. ¥)3% - BB K&K (&)

(Continued)
Right-of-use Fumiture
assets  Buildings Leasehold  Plantand and Office Motor ~ Pleasure  Construction Total
(note a) (notec) ~ improvements  machinery fixtures  equipment vehicles boats inprogress  (restated)
fomEaE BT Fe]
(Mita) (M) HEXE BRRER GAREE BAZRE ol i g1 (&)
HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
TiEr T TEr T T Fin TEr T Tér  Thr
Netbook valueat ~ R=Z—/\F
31stDecember  TZA=1—-HZ
2018 KA - 336253 2193 12,446 708 4,285 3,004 4279 38809 402,067
Reclassified fom ~ RAVEABERSES
land use rights F165RATH
upon adoption of ~ FREEHE
HKFRS 16 162,156 (125,460) - = = = = - - 266%
Net book value at 1st R=E—-AF—F—H
January 2019 LEEFE 152,156 210,793 219 12,446 708 4,285 3,0% 4,279 38809 428763
Addition AE 892 - - 5,058 - 669 409 - 8,421 15,449
Disposalsiwrite-off & /s - - - (377) - 28 (176) - - (581)
Depreciation ik (5,432) (8,070) (1,100) (4,633) (25) (705) (630) (408) - (21,003
Revaluation ff [16338) 16,65 - - - - - - - 317
Transfer &% - s 2,894 - - - - - 47.378) -
Exchange AR
adjustment (62) (1573) 325 (112) (6) (84) (10) - 148 (1.374)
Netbook valueat ~ RZF—-NF
31stDecember  tZA=1-AZ
2019 EFE 131216 262,289 4,312 12,382 677 4137 2,687 3871 - s
At31stDecember N =F-hE
2019 T-A=1+-H
At cost A 33,604 - 15,19 91,634 5,041 14,659 6,920 14,421 - 181473
Atvaluation-2019  RBE-=F—1E 104720 262,289 - - - - - - - 367,009
Accurulated 2iEiE
depreciation (7,108) = (10,882) (79,262) (4364 (10522 (4,233) 10,550) - (126911)
Net book valug FEE 131216 262,289 4312 12,382 677 4137 2,687 3871 - s
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

2R P R (48 )

e K

For the year ended 31st December 2020

HE_F_FF+_A=1+—"HUFE

14. Property, Plant and Equipment

(a)

14. ¥)3% - BB K&K (&)

(Continued)
Right-of-use assets (a) FRAEEE
Leasehold Land use
land in rights in Leased
Hong Kong Overseas property Total
LREBK SLRAEIMNG )
HE+i £ R HEME wE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FExT FExT FExT
Net book value at RZZE=ZTF—H—HZ
1st January 2020 B FE 104,720 25,938 558 131,216
Depreciation e (3,808) (675) (446) (4,929)
Revaluation gy (12,392) - - (12,392)
Exchange adjustment I - 770 - 770
Net book value at RZTZTF+_H
31st December 2020 =+—HZEREFE 88,520 26,033 112 114,665
At 31st December 2020 RZZTTF
t-A=t+—~
At cost N - 33,592 892 34,484
At valuation — 2020 HE-—Z—T=FF 88,520 - - 88,520
Accumulated depreciation REHE - (7,559) (780) (8,339)
Net book value BREE(E 88,520 26,033 112 114,665
Leasehold Land use
land in rights in Leased
Hong Kong Overseas property Total
R EER MBI \
MET L ERE HEmE k]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’'000 HK$'000
FAT FAT FAxT FAxT
Net book value at R=T—NF+=A
31st December 2018 =+—HZEEFE - - - -
Reclassified from land use rights ~ #RANE BB 53R & 28|
upon adoption of HKFRS 16 1695188 T A
EEHOE 125,460 26,696 - 152,156
Net book value at R_ZF—NF—A—H
1st January 2019 2 BREFE 125,460 26,696 = 162,156
Addition NE = - 892 892
Depreciation e (4,402) (696) (334) (5,432)
Revaluation Eih (16,338) - = (16,338)
Exchange adjustment R - (62) - (62)
Net book value at R-ZZF-NF+_H
31st December 2019 =+—HBZERmFE 104,720 25,938 558 131,216
At 31st December 2019 RZZE—NFE+=A
=+—8
At cost AN - 32,712 892 33,604
At valuation — 2019 HE-——F—NF 104,720 - - 104,720
Accumulated depreciation REFE - (6,774) (334) (7,108)
Net book value BREFE 104,720 25,938 558 131,216
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

REMBHRRME(E)

For the year ended 31st December 2020
BE T _FFL _A=1—HIFE

14. Property, Plant and Equipment 14. ¥¥ - BENRE (&)

(Continued)

(b) Leases (b) HE&E \
This note provides information for leases where the Group is a A FREEARESEAEFAANEENE
lessee. o
() Amounts recognised in the consolidated statement of () RAEEVERARPERNSE

financial position
The consolidated statement of financial position shows FREMBRARBTRUATERBESH
the following amounts relating to leases: KRR :
2020 2019
g 823 —TNF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FExT FHET
Right-of-use assets EREEE
— Leasehold land in Hong Kong —(RBEANEETH 26,033 25,938
- Land use rights in overseas — (RSN b 5 R 88,520 104,720
— Leased property —HEME 112 558
114,665 131,216
Lease liabilities HEAE
— Current —BNHA 77 451
— Non-current — JEBNHEA - 77
77 528
(i)  Amounts recognised in the consolidated income (i) NEEEEZRPERNSEE
statement
The consolidated income statement shows the following MABRRBARATEHEESHENS
amounts relating to leases: :
2020 2019
g 822 —ZT—hF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Depreciation charge of right-of-use FRESERERX
assets
— Leasehold land in Hong Kong —(URBANHEETH 675 696
- Land use rights in overseas — (RSN b 5 A 3,808 4,402
— Leased property —HEME 446 334
4,929 5,432
Interest expense (included in FERX(FFABIEER)
finance costs) 11 21

Expenses relating to short-term leases (EHHEEREEEHAEN
and low value leases (included in R X (FFATERIX)
administrative expenses) 29 113
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
AV BEmEMEE(E)

For the year ended 31st December 2020
BE-—FE-_FTFEf _H=+—HIFE

14. Property, Plant and Equipment
(Continued)

(c) Leasehold land and buildings in Hong Kong and factories
in Mainland China were revalued on the basis of buildings
in open market value by direct comparison approach or/
and depreciated replacement cost approach, by Centaline
Surveyors Limited, an independent firm of chartered surveyor.
Factories in Vietnam were revalued on the basis of open
market value by depreciated replacement cost approach by
VAS Valuation Co., Ltd. (formerly known as CBRE Vietnam Co.,
Ltd.), an independent firm of chartered surveyor. The following
tables analyse the land and buildings carrying at fair value, by
valuation techniques.

Fair value hierarchy

14. ¥)3% - BB K&K (&)

() MRBFBNHEEL M RIEFTRABRARENT
B BEAEMFRAEMITAR A
REFARMEZEEFEAEELEAR
RITEEBRAEZEMR - RZE—NEFE+=
A=+—8 ' RSN A B
£ A 7TVAS Valuation Co., Ltd. (B1#8CBRE
Vietnam Co., Ltd.) 2 AR {E 2 EEF A
WEEERAEER - L TIERIIEFAG
BRI AR BARN T RIETF -

DNREER

Fair value measurements at
31st December 2020 using
—2-2F+-A=+-HEAUT

BWANARERE

Quoted prices Significant
in active other Significant
markets for observable unobservable
identical assets inputs inputs
HREEE BEAKEAM BAW
SEERTISHRE ABE@A FABREHA
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
(B-%) (£=8) (B=8)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FERT FET

Recurring fair value measurements & FEARETE
Leasehold land or/and buildings: ME s, REF :

—in Hong Kong — MR EE
—in Mainland China — LA BIARE

—in Vietnam — IR

- - 100,400
- - 212,020
- - 42,222
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

REMBHRRME(E)

For the year ended 31st December 2020
BR _E_ZFFL _H=+—HIFE

14. Property, Plant and Equipment 14. ¥¥ - BENRE (&)

(Continued)
(¢) (Continued) (c) (&
Fair value hierarchy (Continued) DNABEBR(E)

Fair value measurements at

31st December 2019 using
—E-NE+ZRA=+—HEANT
BARANERE
Quoted prices Significant
in active other Significant
markets for observable unobservable
identical assets inputs inputs
HREER BRHEM EUN:D
ERTISRRE ATEBREBA TrAIEEBA
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
(B—&) (B=f) (B=#)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FHET
Recurring fair value measurements & EM4EAREE
Land or/and buildings: T, RIETF -
—in Hong Kong — RIREE = = 117,430
—in Mainland China — RLRA AR BIARE - - 205,865
—in Vietnam — (IR - = 43,714
The Group's policy is to recognise transfer into and transfer NEF 7 HERNRNENER s SHIRES
out of fair value hierarchy levels as of the date of the event or B)HHiMERE Ak E LA REELR -
change in circumstances that caused the transfer.
There was no transfer among levels 1, 2, and 3 during the RERNE— « —R=H 2 N EeEis o
year.
As one or more of the significant inputs is not based on AR —IEE ZIEE K AT IER B EEm
observable market date, the property, plant and equipment of B WAEEYYE  MERSESEE

the Group is categorised as level 3. B o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

RABRERMEE)

For the year ended 31st December 2020
BE-—FE-_FTFEf _H=+—HIFE

14. Property, Plant and Equipment

(Continued)

(c) (Continued)

Fair value measurements using significant unobservable

14. ¥)3% - BB K&K (&)

() (&)

MAEAFTAEEBANDAERE

inputs (Level 3) (=)
31st December 2020
“E-EHE+ZA=t-H
Leasehold Factories in
land in  Buildings in Mainland Factories in
Hong Kong  Hong Kong China Vietnam Total
NREBMN UREBZ LR LA
AELH BF AEZIK ZIK e
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FTER FET FET FTER FET
At 1st January 2020 R-ZE-ZTF—H—H 104,720 12,710 205,865 43,714 367,009
Depreciation e (3,808) (462) (7,497) (1,098) (12,865)
Revaluation (deficit)/ Sh(E4),/ B
surplus (12,392) (368) 990 (385) (12,155)
Exchange adjustment b - - 12,662 (9) 12,653
At 31st December RN_ZE_ZTF
2020 +=-HA=+—H 88,520 11,880 212,020 42,222 354,642
Revaluation surplus/ ERABRRN Ei
(deficit) for the year I E R SFER P
included in the RANFE 2 Efh
consolidated B/ (Bi)
income statement
under ‘other
operating expenses, net’ - - 139 (360) (221)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

14. Property, Plant and Equipment
(Continued)

(c)

(Continued)
Fair value measurements using significant unobservable
inputs (Level 3) (Continued)

A MEHmRME(E)

For the year ended 31st December 2020
BR _E_ZFFL _H=+—HIFE

14. ¥)% - BEKR&RE(E)

() (&
MAEATTEEHANDAENE
(E=#) (&)

31st December 2019
—E-AF+=-B=+—H

Leasehold Factories in
land in Buildings in Mainland Factories in
Hong Kong Hong Kong China Vietnam Total
UREEE UREEZ (NG AL
HETH BF ABEZ TR Z T FEES
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTAT FHT FAT FAT FAT
At 1st January 2019 RZZ—-NE—A—H 125,460 13,610 197,183 = 336,253
Transfer from BERIEEY
construction-in-
progress - - - 44,484 44,484
Depreciation e (4,402) (478) (6,805) (787) (12,472)
Revaluation (deficit)/ = (E4L) /Bt
surplus (16,338) (422) 17,063 14 317
Exchange adjustment b 5 - - (1,576) 3 (1,573)
At 31st December RZZ—NEF
2019 +=ZA=+—~H 104,720 12,710 205,865 43,714 367,009
Revaluation surplus for ~ fEARA BRI Eib
the year included EERFRR P
in the consolidated BRRFEEZ
income statement, EHAK
under ‘other
operating expenses,
net' - - 138 - 138
Valuation processes of the Group AEENKER

The Group's leasehold land and buildings were valued at
31st December 2020 and 2019 by independent professional
qualified valuers who hold recognised relevant professional
qualifications and have recent experience in the locations and
segments of the land and buildings valued. For all leasehold
land and buildings, their current use equates to the highest and
best use.

The Group's finance department considered and discussed the
valuations performed by the independent valuers for financial
reporting purposes, including all key inputs to the valuations
and property valuations movements as compared to the prior
year. The fair values of the properties have been determined
by Centaline Surveyors Limited and VAS Valuation Co., Ltd.
(formerly known as CBRE Vietnam Co., Ltd.)

ANEBMAE i RIEFHBE L B EGERD
T -TFR-_FT-NF+-_A=+—H
HE - WEHERMBSERERIEEERE -
W PTG ER i MAEF R M BB A R
HiEs - ITARE T RIET - HBATA
FRENESSM&EFR -

AEBMU SR IEIRE B E B GE
M EETE B KR - BIEYEED
FBEEZEZHARDEGERELFELELRT
R - WEVENAAEE BT EAIZE
1TABR A B KEVAS Valuation Co., Ltd. (AT
CBRE Vietnam Co., Ltd.)EE °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued

e K

R P R (48

For the year ended 31st December 2020
BE-F-FTF+-A=+—HLFE

= __

14. Property, Plant and Equipment
(Continued)

(c)

(Continued)

Valuation techniques

For leasehold land and buildings in Hong Kong, the valuation
was determined using the direct comparison approach with
reference to comparable transactions available in the relevant
market. Sales prices of comparable properties in close
proximity are adjusted for differences in key attributes such
as property size. The most significant input into this valuation
approach is price per square foot.

For factories in Mainland China and Vietnam, the valuations
were determined using depreciated replacement cost approach
with reference to the cost of construction per square metre in
the relevant locations, with allowance for accrued depreciation
as evidence by observed condition or obsolescence present.
These inputs include:

Cost of construction

Cost per square metre to completion estimated by the valuer
using direct market comparables and taking into account the
useful life and size of the property and its facilities as at 31st
December 2020 and 2019.

Estimated depreciation

Deducting all sources of depreciation by straight-line method
over the useful life, including physical deterioration and
functional and economic obsolescence and adjusting by the
physical condition of the building.

There were no changes to the valuation techniques during the
year.

Information about fair value measurements using
significant unobservable inputs (Level 3) as at 31st
December 2020

14. ¥)% - BEKR&RE(E)

(c)

(%)

fhE I
UREBNEE T RETHHESERR
iSRRI SFIMER L BOERETE © 4
AT EMEEE T 2R (HlnY
FHE)WEZERIEHAE - HtHEENR
BRBAREFIIREES o

AL BIARE & #irg ) TRt {E - 2E 18R
WS 2 BT R ER AT R EEERA
EETE - Wat ARIBESRBIMALKRER
Rz EFHTERE - ZFBARSE

%N
HEMR-_ZE_EFR_ZFT—NF+=A
=+ BEREEMS LB AT LAY
¥ RHEBERNEAFH BB G OEE
FARERARA o

fHEtInEE

FE A B A I E 1 ) {5 A F HA AR & 3R

IREATE - BIEEREREMINEE N RS £
MIRRE - WIRBFERRMIEH AR -

PRI mEE) -

R-B-EE+-_A=+—-BEREALRT
BREANAAETENER(E=ZR)

Relationship of unobservable

Description Valuation technique Unobservable inputs inputs to fair value
i pul fhAEH 9 TR A TABEEAHAABENRER
Factory in Heyuan, Depreciated Average cost of construction of The higher the estimated cost per
Mainland China replacement cost RMB1,700 (2019: RMB1,650) square metre to completion,
7 7 HR B A B AT R B approach per square metre the higher the fair value.
TR MEFEXRNE FHREERARTETRARE BEFKEREFRARR - 20

1,700t(ZZE—NF : ARK

1,6507T)

Estimated depreciation over the
remaining useful lives of 41 and
47 (2019: 42 and 48) years for

Bl -

The higher the estimated
depreciation, the lower the fair
value.

EEHTENS - AAERE -

different construction phase of

buildings

BET T RIZEREERAANERF
HIP+—F RO+ 5 (= F
—NEF - WA+ FRE+AF)

flEtiTE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
IREMBHRERME(E)

For the year ended 31st December 2020
BR _E_ZFFL _H=+—HIFE

14. Property, Plant and Equipment 14. ¥¥ - BENRE (&)

(Continued)
(¢) (Continued) () (&)
Information about fair value measurements using 73*‘_ EFE+=-HA=+—H FﬁEtZ:EI
significant unobservable inputs (Level 3) as at 31st Eﬁﬁﬂkﬂ’]@fcﬁﬁiﬂ’ﬂﬁﬂ( =& (&)
December 2020 (Continued)
Relationship of unobservable
Description Valuation technique Unobservable inputs inputs to fair value
gl fh B 9l TR EE@EA FRBE@AHAABENRER
Factory in Shenzhen, Depreciated Average cost of construction of The higher the estimated cost per
Mainland China replacement cost 3,850 (2019: RMB3,850) per square metre to completion,
A7 AR B A B R 1| B approach square metre the higher the fair value.
TR MEFEXRE FHREERARTFEITRARE ST KEREFTRARR - 20
3.850TL(ZE—NF : AR BEES -
3,8507T)

The higher the estimated

Estimated depreciation over the depreciation, the lower the fair

remaining useful lives of 25 and  value.

37 (2019: 26 and 38) years for  fAFHTEMS - ASEBIK o

different construction phase of

building
1RIE TR RV AT B F

HO—_+RFR=TtF(=F

—NF  ZHRERETNF)

fhEtinE
Factory in Vietnam Depreciated Average cost of construction of The higher the estimated cost per
7 A8 A TR replacement cost US$258 (2019: US$267) per square metre to completion,
approach square metre the higher the fair value.
MEFERRE FEREBAARET T R258ETT  BFAKEKMETRASR - 2R
(ZZ—h%F : 2675%7T) BEHE o
Estimated depreciation over the ~ The higher the estimated
remaining useful lives of 39 depreciation, the lower the fair
years (2019: 40) and 24 years value.

(2019: 25 years) respectively HEHTEYS - AARERIE -
DREAERAFRN =T NF

(Z2—N&F : m+F)R=+mDm

F(ZZ—NF : Z+EF)EE

e
Leasehold land and Direct comparison Sales prices, HK$13,484 (2019: The higher the sales price per
buildings in Hong approach HK$15,771) per square foot of square foot of a comparable
Kong BEELEBOE a comparable property in close property in close proximity, the
1_LB’\§/ MHEE & proximity higher the fair value.
BT MR EMEIHEBRETH B HR 2 MOARE Y HE B
R13,48478 7L (—F—fL4F : e AREBS o

15,7717%7T)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

RABRERMEE)

For the year ended 31st December 2020
R _FE_FFL _H=1—HIFE

14. Property, Plant and Equipment

(Continued)

14. ¥)% - BEKR&RE(E)

15.

(d)

(e)

(f)

The net book value of these leasehold land and buildings
would have been HK$$141,243,000 (2019: HK$140,215,000)
had they been stated at cost less accumulated depreciation on
the historical cost basis.

At 31st December 2020, the net book value of leasehold
land and office located in Hong Kong, which were pledged
as security for the Group's bank borrowings amounted to
HK$100,400,000 (2019: HK$117,430,000).

Included in the total depreciation expenses, amounting to
HK$13,986,000 (2019: HK$14,053,000 and HK$6,019,000
(2019: HK$5,920,000) were charged to cost of sales and
administrative expenses, respectively.

Investment Properties

(d) WZFHEHELWEREFHIRELKAZE
EURAERRERNEIR - BIZERE

SE(EFE A141,243,0008 T ( — T — L5 -
140,215,000 7T) °

) R=ZZ=_ZTF+=-_A=+—H" K@
7F {E 100,400,000 T (=T — L &F ¢

117,430,000/ 70) 2R BB 2 AE L &
WAE - BIEAAEBRITER IR -

(f) #AFrEHEF13986000%8 T (=—F—
F : 14,053,000 %8 7T ) 7T A & K AR &
6,019,000/ 70 ( = F — J14F : 5,920,000/
O AT -

15. IREWHE

2020 2019
—E-EF — &
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET FA&T
At fair value BARE

Opening balance at 1st January R—A— B Z V% 47,200 55,290

Revaluation loss charged to the BiraERRNR2
consolidated income statement Eﬁ?ﬁﬂi (4,220) (8,090)
Closing balance at 31st December R+ A=+—HBZHRep5E 42,980 47,200

(a)  Amounts of (i) rental income and (i) direct operating (@) PEREER&RERH)ESBA KK
expenses from the investment properties, which were ﬁ%%ZE&?&%%Sﬁ@%ﬁﬁ%UE@WE\
recognised in the consolidated income statement, are 6N M FESHEE -
disclosed in note 6 and 8 respectively.

(b) As at 31st December 2020, the carrying amount of b) RZEZZFF+-A=+—0H" KA
investment properties pledged as security for the {8 % 25,850,000 78 7T (ZF — /L4
Group's bank borrowings amounted to HK$25,850,000 27,100,000/ 7T) 21 EWZE - EEAR
(2019: HK$27,100,000). REBRITRERZER -

(c) As at 31st December 2020 and 2019, the Group has no ©0 RZZE_TEER-_ZE-NF+A
unprovided contractual obligations for future repairs and =B~ ZFE@jiﬂﬁEl??:Zéﬁﬂ%&
maintenance. REBBEZABBENER -

(d)  For the minimum lease payments receivables on leases (d) ﬁﬁ%ﬁ‘ﬁﬁﬁ%%fﬂ SR 2 IEEER

of investment properties, refer to note 25(b).

K B2HKTE25(0) °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

15. Investment Properties (Continued)

(e)

The Group’s investment properties are held within
a business model whose objective is to consume
substantially all of the economic benefits embodied in
the investment properties through sale. The Group has
measured the deferred tax relating to the temporary
differences of these investment properties using the
tax rate and the tax bases that are consistent with the
expected manner of recovery of these investment
properties.

Investment properties were revalued on the basis of
open market valued by direct comparison approach by
Centaline Surveyors Limited, an independent firm of
chartered surveyors, as at 31st December 2020 and
2019. The revaluation gains or losses are included in
‘other operating expenses, net’ in the consolidated
income statement. The following table analyses the
investment properties carried at fair value, by valuation
techniques.

Fair value hierarchy

REMBHRRME(E)

For the year ended 31st December 2020
HBE T _FF+ _A=1—HIFE

15. REW*(])

(e)

RAAEEREME 2B - 5HEKH
EMHEFBREBIEMEAREEF
@ o ARBEEEREZFREMEEY
WESDA Bz RERBE  TEHH
SZEREMEZERER SN ZRTEH
g .

RZE_ZEFR_ZT—NF+=A
=1+—H  REVEHRBY FEGERM
REBERMITAR AR ARMEZE
EFERERLEBCAEM - EEEIETYET
AGEEER T HEtg L 75 |
A o TRIIEFBEERIMTATIEAR
BEARNEWE -

DIREEBR

Fair value measurements at

31st December 2020 using
—B-BFt-A=1-H
ERAUTHMANALETE

Quoted prices Significant
in active other Significant
markets for observable unobservable
identical assets inputs inputs
HREER BEARMNHEAM DN
SERTIENRE AEEHA FABEBA
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
Description it (E—#) (E=#) (B=8)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET TR THER
Recurring fair value REERREFTE
measurement
Investment properties REME - - 42,980
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
REMBRERME(E)

For the year ended 31st December 2020
R _FE_FFL _H=1—HIFE

15. Investment Properties (Continued)
(f)  (Continued)
Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

15. REWE (&)

6 (@) -
DAERBRGE)

Fair value measurements at
31st December 2019 using
—F-AF+-A=+-H
FAUATHANAREIE

Quoted prices Significant
in active other Significant
markets for observable unobservable
identical assets inputs inputs
HREET ERMEM E-WN:()
AR IS RE AEEHA TR EREE A
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
Description it (B—4) (B=%) (B=4)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAET FAT FET
Recurring fair value REMARETE
measurement
Investment properties REME - - 47,200

The Group's policy is to recognise transfer into and
transfers out of fair value hierarchy levels as of the date
of the event or change in circumstances that caused
the transfers.

There were no transfers between levels 1, 2 and 3
during the year.

As one or more of the significant inputs is not based on
observable market date, the investment properties of
the Group are categorised as level 3.

Valuation processes of the Group
See note 14(c) for valuation processes of the Group.

Valuation techniques

The valuation of investment properties was determined
using the direct comparison approach with reference
to comparable transactions available in the relevant
market. Sales prices of comparable properties in close
proximity are adjusted for differences in key attributes
such as property size. The most significant input into
this valuation approach is price per square foot.

There were no changes to the valuation techniques
during the year.

AEE 2 BRENEHER 2 FFIR
BEHAMERBASIELINER

FANE—  ZREP2HEHEER o

AR — A 2 IHE K AW SRR IR A] &
EMBEE - BAREREMELIER
FE=M -

AEEMNEERE
H2 BN 140 A KRB BEREZS

.

B E M
BREMENBHESEREH S A LR
SFMRERLBUAEE - AT
MENEBEC T 2HE(FIMYEE
BNEREHAE - HUEEENR
EXGARTFHRAER

A ERITERED -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

REMBHRRME(E)

For the year ended 31st December 2020
HBE T _FF+ _A=1—HIFE

15. Investment Properties (Continued) 15. REWHE(E)
(f)  (Continued) nH (&
Information about fair value measurements R-ZE-_EFE+-HA=+—H
using significant unobservable inputs FERAEAFTITHRGANDA
(Level 3) as at 31st December 2020 EBEfENER(E=ZH)

Relationship of unobservable

Description Valuation technique  Unobservable inputs inputs to fair value
#f5 fER TURZHARE FUBRRRABEEL L EZBR
Land and buildings in Direct comparison (1) Sales prices, HK$4,827 (2019: The higher the sales prices per square
Hong Kong approach HK$5,061) per square foot foot of a comparable property in
MREBZ THRET BRI of a comparable property in close proximity, the higher the fair
close proximity value
MORENZHEBRETS BIARBOEENZEHEBRY
R4,827TET(ZE-NE : = AREES
5,061/7T)

(2) Sales prices, HK$14,263 (2019
HK$16,736) per square foot
of a comparable property in
close proximity

MAERMEHEEERETR
R14,2638TL(ZF—N& -
16,736/ L)
16. Inventories 16. &
2020 2019
— ? —= qi :%@—j—ti
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET T
Raw materials R 45,778 31,235
Work in progress TR 13,803 16,720
Finished goods BURK 64,242 68,008
123,823 115,963
Provision for inventories FERE (6,471) (5,902)
117,352 110,061
The cost of inventories recognised as expenses and included FERARERSERILYIATHEE KA
in “cost of sales” amounted to HK$148,564,000 (2019: E’Jﬁ%ﬁiz%14$,5§4,000/%75(_ 71$
HK$148,684,000). Provision (2019: reversal of provision) for 148,684,000 7L) - T EEE(ZZFE— N
inventories of HK$154,000 (2019: HK$705,000) was included F : [@ # ) 154,000 7% T ( 7? jL F
in “cost of sales” in the consolidated income statement. 705,000 ) EFF ARG BRKIHEHE X

NI
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
AV BEmEMEE(E)

For the year ended 31st December 2020
BE-—FE-_FTFEf _H=+—HIFE

17. Trade and Bill Receivables 17. EZRIWREREBEREE
2020 2019
— 7 —%= qE :gijlvfﬁ
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Up to 3 months BNHEfZ= =& A 54,502 55,003
4-6 months {E A =7~ @A 2,957 16,068
Over 6 months B~ E A 16,395 8,348
Trade receivables, gross (note (a)) B 5 W F AR (5E @) 73,854 79,419
Loss allowance EiE R (16,790) (754)
Trade receivables, net B 5 W E IR F 5 57,064 78,665
Bills receivables e E I 1,578 2,498
58,642 81,163
(a) At 31st December 2020, the aging analysis of gross @ WRZZE=ZF+-_A=+—H ZB5E
trade receivables is based on invoice date. WakTE s Z BRE TR IE R ZEH o
T o
(b) Trade and bill receivables are denominated in the (b) BIEWFIEREREZEA T SE:t
following currencies: & :
2020 2019
—E-EF —E—NF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FEx FiBT
HK$ BT 11,685 25,527
RMB ARE 6,879 8,808
US$ ETT 40,078 46,828
58,642 81,163
(¢) The carrying value of trade and bill receivables ) BIREUGEREKERE RmERL
approximate their fair values due to their short term DAERHEERGEH -
maturities.
(d) Information about the provision of loss allowance of the d FAHEBZEUGESERERAESEER
trade receivables and the Group’s exposure to credit FREERRAERT25ME3.16v)

risk can be found in note 3.1(iv).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

REMBHRRME(E)

For the year ended 31st December 2020
BR _E_ZFFL _H=+—HIFE

18. Derivative Financial Instruments

18. fT&E €M I A

2020 2019
—BC-RF —E-NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FBT
Financial assets at fair value through A EFFABZ B AREE
profit or loss and included in the HREMBHRRARBREEERN
Group's consolidated statement of WEEE
financial position as current assets
Foreign exchange forward contracts ~ JNMERIFE 4] 2,592 495

The Group has certain outstanding foreign exchange forward
contracts with external reputable banks with long positions
in RMB and VND for hedging its purchase transactions
and operating expenses denominated in RMB and VND.
The fair value of the foreign exchange forward contracts is
determined by using valuation techniques. The valuation
techniques maximise the use of observable market data
where it is available and rely as little as possible on entity
specific estimates. As all significant inputs regarded to fair
value on instruments are observable, the instruments are
included in level 2.

The notional principal amounts of the outstanding foreign
exchange forward contracts at 31st December 2020 were
approximately US$7,800,000 (2019: US$4,000,000).

19. Cash and Cash Equivalents

AKEEINPEBR G ZIRITAEE T HAMRE
TZINERMIGH) - FRARE RBREE K
B RERENARRE LB EHERRE
R5 PBERX - SNERMB N Z ARETY
RRASEXNERE - HEXNEEF M #
EMBEER(E)  SEELERBEERBZBE
et - MR ETAZAREMFEZMEE
R ARABRYIE - AZETAIAR
ol =

NR-B-BE+-_A=+—0 " HRBITZ
INER G #) 2 B3 A RE47/57,800,0003
TT(ZZF— N4 : 4,000,00057T) °

19. RERAEEEY

2020 2019

—ECEE —ZT—NF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FHET

Cash at banks and in hand RITREFRE 22,370 36,548
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
AV BEmEMEE(E)

For the year ended 31st December 2020
R _FE_FFL _H=1—HIFE

19. Cash and Cash Equivalents (Continued)
The maximum exposure to credit risk at the end of the
reporting period of the Group is cash at banks amounting to

19. RERAEEE/EYWE)

RIFERARAEEZAEERRERITRES
/522,134,000 70 (—Z— 14 : 36,206,000

HK$22,134,000 (2019: HK$36,206,000). BIT) °

2020 2019
223 —EF-NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHExT T

Denominated in: HEER
HK$ BT 6,724 7,294
RMB ARE 1,410 13,450
US$ ETT 13,529 15,453
Other currencies HEipEkk 707 351
22,370 36,548

Included in the balance are bank balances and cash
deposited in Mainland China and Vietnam of approximately
HK$1,207,000 and HK$402,000 (2019: HK$13,450,000 and
HK$213,000), respectively, which are mainly denominated
in RMB and VND and are subject to the exchange control

SREE B IR BKkE MR 2 IRTTHEH IR
STERD B4 41,207,000 7T . 402,0007%5
TT(=—Z— 14 : 13,450,000/ 7T %213,000
BL) EEBUARKERUEEAEEEN
IS PR A R B R BE & iR U B e 2 INE B

restrictions imposed by the governments in Mainland China IR R o
and Vietnam.
20. Share Capital 20. g7
No. of shares HK$'000
f&rgi= T
Authorised JETERRA
At 1st January 2019 and RZZE-NE—HA—HBK
31st December 2019 and 2020, —E-NFER T FF
ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each +=—A=+—8"
HRRE(EO0.108 T2 ik 500,000,000 50,000
Issued and fully paid BB REERAR
At 1st January 2019 and RZFE-—hF—A—H8K
31st December 2019 and 2020, “E-NFRE-FF
ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each +=—A=+—8"
SHRAE0. 10757 2 T Bk 198,958,000 19,896
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REMBHRRME(E)

For the year ended 31st December 2020
HBE T _FF+ _A=1—HIFE

21. Trade Payables and Other Payables, 21. E 5 E{ R E K H it FE 3 &

Accruals and Contract Liabilities

H - EARXRENAE

2020 2019
—EIEF —E—h4E
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Trade payables (note (a)) S A (5T (@) 23,737 17,749
Other payables and accruals HAb BN RIB R ERTF X 21,706 18,971
Contract liabilities (note (b)) ERBE(MED) 924 =
Total (notes (c) and (d)) #RFE(FsE(c) & (d)) 46,367 36,720
(a) At 31st December 2020, the ageing analysis of trade @) MNZZT_TF+-_H=+—H EBFE
payables based on invoice date is as follows: NRIBEBRBEEZABRROTIT ¢
2020 2019
—ECEF —E-hEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
Up to 3 months BNEf= =1 A 23,668 15,709
4-6 months o fE A = 7518 A - 1,907
Over 6 months A7 E A 69 133
23,737 17,749
(b) The balance represents non-refundable receipt in b) HEHREAERAZERNERNABITEL
advance for outstanding performance obligation of BN ALRETRWFIE - IR Z A KIE
goods delivery to customers. Due to the short-term MHME - FREFAORRGEHRER
nature of the trading contracts, the entire contract T —{EHA R S 7R o
liabilities balance at the year end would be recognised
into revenue in the next period.
(c) Trade payables and other payables and accruals are (c) B 5N ZRIA K E A 508 K et FA
denominated in the following currencies: SATYIESEE
2020 2019
—ECERF —E—h
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
HKS BT 11,455 9,409
RMB AR 24,767 17,773
Us$ e 8,890 6,463
Other currencies Hav ¥ 1,255 3,075
46,367 36,720
(d)  The carrying value of trade payables and other payables (d) EFEMFBNEMENRIENERH

and accruals approximate their fair values due to their

short term maturities.

MZEHREEERAREROREES

Hp o

143



144

Perennial International Limited B #B % B & R A A

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

RABRERMEE)

For the year ended 31st December 2020
BE - FE_FF+-_HA=1—HIFEF

22. Borrowings 22. B

2020 2019
—_ 7 —= ﬂE = 7j-l_,£ﬁ
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHExT TFET

Current liabilities REERE
Trust receipt loans IR E R 8,527 31,435
Bank loans RITER 37,200 37,000
Total borrowings BIEK 45,727 68,435

Total borrowings included secured liabilities of HK$38,527,000
(2019: HK$56,435,000), which are secured by certain land
and buildings and investment properties of the Group
(notes 14 and 15). The borrowings of HK$45,727,000 (2019:
HK$68,435,000) are also supported by guarantees given by
the Company and certain subsidiaries.

(@)  The maturity of borrowings in accordance with the
repayment schedule (without taking into account the
repayment on-demand clause) is as follows:

Mg e A A (538,627,000 L (= F
ijE 56,435,000/ 70 ) U NEE R E T+
H RAEF R E Y EER AR (14 %15) ©
45,727,000 L (= ZF— L4 : 68,435,000/
TO)EERIN AR T R A THE A AR e
R o

(a) BIEEREME(LEEEZKEE
B EREEBENT

Bank loans Trust receipt loans
RITEXR EREBBEN
2020 2019 2020 2019
—v—vﬁ :E@—j‘LﬁE ——\'—7$ :%_j-la¢
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET TAT THER TAT
Within 1 year 1ER 37,200 29,800 8,527 31,435
Between 1 and 15824

2 years - 7,200 - -
37,200 37,000 8,527 31,435

(b) The average effective interest rates per annum as at

b) R-T-_FTFE+-_A=1+—HBHFHE

31st December 2020 are as follows: BREFIZEMT -
2020 2019
—F-%F —TNF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET T
Trust receipt loans EEIEER 3.10% 3.41%
Bank loans RITER 2.78% 3.79%

(c)  Borrowings are mainly denominated in HK$.

(d)  The carrying value of borrowings approximates their fair
values.

() MERETENETHEE -

(d) fEREREEREEQAERLD -
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IREMBHRERME(E)

For the year ended 31st December 2020
BR _E_ZFFL _H=+—HIFE

23. RERETHEMTA
SHMIAZ SHEECEAN TIIER :

23. Financial Instruments by Category
The accounting policies for financial instruments have been
applied to the line items below:

Financial
instruments
Financial at fair value
instruments at through profit
amortised cost or loss
R BRAARBERA
JlRzemMIAE BRMEEMIA
HK$'000 HK$'000
THT THT
31st December 2020 —E-EF+=-F=+—H
Assets as per consolidated NRGREMBRRRZEE
statement of financial position
Trade and bill receivables H 5 ek IE R U= R 58,642 =
Derivative financial instruments TEEmITE = 2,592
Other receivables and deposits HEMEREIERE] S 5,749 =
Cash and cash equivalents RENREEEY 22,370 =
86,761 2,592
Liabilities as per consolidated JIIRGEMBRRRZ2EE
statement of financial position
Trade payables B 5 M GRIA 23,737 =
Other payables H e FRIE 8,694 =
Lease liabilities HEBE 77 =
Bank loans RITER 37,200 -
Trust receipt loans ErEBUEER 8,527 =
78,235 -
31st December 2019 —E-hAEFE+=-A=+—H
Assets as per consolidated JIIRGEMBRARZEE
statement of financial position
Trade and bill receivables B 5 FE U GRIE I eI = 1k 81,163 =
Derivative financial instruments MTESMIA - 495
Other receivables and deposits HEMEWEIERE] S 5,919 =
Cash and cash equivalents ReRReEFEEY 36,548 =
123,630 495
Liabilities as per consolidated JIRGRERBRRRZERE
statement of financial position
Trade payables E 5 W RIA 17,749 =
Other payables EAb BT FRIA 6,337 =
Lease liabilities HEBE 528 =
Bank loans RITERK 37,000 -
Trust receipt loans EFEUBUEER 31,435 =

93,049
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For the year ended 31st December 2020
BE-—FE-_FTFEf _H=+—HIFE

24. Notes to the Consolidated Statement 24. ZRERERERM T
of Cash Flows
(a) Reconciliation of loss before taxation (a) BEELX (FFANSZEELH
to net cash generated from/(used in) BRBiA IJEE 82 ¥R
operations
2020 2019
—ECEF = —NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Loss before taxation bR A ESIE (21,372) (14,384)
Interest income AEWA (27) (98)
Interest expense B 1,675 2,468
(Gain)/loss on disposal/write-off ~ H& M DE  WE
of property, plant and equipment K& (Uizs) 185 (3) 57
Loss on revaluation of "EMESHEX
investment properties 4,220 8,090
Revaluation deficit/(surplus) of ~ EFEEE (B)
buildings 221 (138)
Depreciation of property, plant % - BB M REITE
and equipment 20,005 21,003
Provision for impairment loss BEEBERE 15,719 754
Provision/(reversal of provision) 18R F&#E,~
for slow-moving inventories ([E1%%) 154 (705)
Operating profit before working ~ &E& & &2 &2
capital changes il 20,592 17,047
- Inventories -FE (5,387) (19,213)
— Trade and bill receivables and - & 5 EWFTE &
other receivables, deposits FEU IR & B Ath
and prepayments JEWRIE « F] &
SSEENE/CE 7,060 9,088
— Derivative financial -TESRMIT A
instruments (2,097) (495)
— Trade payables and other -BoRNFIERE
payables and accruals L FE - FRE K
FEEHFIX 8,292 (9,647)
Net cash generated/(used in) BEEYS/ (A&
operations FIRE 28,460 (3,220)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

REMBHRRME(E)

For the year ended 31st December 2020
BE—F _FF+-_A=1—HIFE

24. Notes to the Consolidated Statement 24. SR EREXRME(E)
of Cash Flows (Continued)

(b) Analysis of disposal of property, plant and (b) HEWXE  BERZED N
equipment
In the consolidated statement of cash flows, proceeds EGREReRERA  HEVME BE
from sale of property, plant and equipment comprise: REBETSRELE
2020 2019
—ECEF —E-NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FBT
Net book value RESHE 40 581
Gain/(loss) on disposal/write-off of ﬁ’i/ﬁlﬂﬁﬁﬁ’f%% =
property, plant and equipment s, (B518) 3 (57)

Proceeds from sale of property, HEWE - ME&

plant and equipment RABPTE R 43 524
(c) Non-cash investing and financing activity (c) FRELERRMETE
A non-cash investing and financing activity relating to HIWEFREEESERBAZIFRSIRENR
acquisition of a right-of-use asset is disclosed in note B EF AW 14155 ©

14.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
AV BEmEMEE(E)

For the year ended 31st December 2020
BE-—FE-_FTFEf _H=+—HIFE

24. Notes to the Consolidated Statement 24. SR EREXRME(E)

of Cash Flows (Continued)

(d) Analysis of changes in cash flows from (d) BETHMESRESRELH D
financing activities #r

Bank loans Trust receipt loans Lease liabilities
RITEN ERRBER HERE
2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000
TR TERT TR TET TERT THET

At 1st January R—H—H 37,000 36,800 31,435 24,734 528 -
Recognition of RNEBP RS
lease liabilities %R 1657 R
on adoption of MERE
HKFRS 16 - - - - - 892
Additions NE 10,000 35,000 46,934 105,181 - -
Repayments E (9,800) (34,800) (69,842) (98,480) (451) (364)
At31stDecember W+ -—A=+—H 37,200 37,000 8,527 31,435 71 528
25. Commitments 25. &L
(a) Capital commitments (a) EAEE
At 31st December 2020, the Group had the following RZZEZZEF+=A=+—H ' A5H
capital commitments for property, plant and equipment: BLATYIZ - B R 2 EAFSE -
2020 2019
— 7 —%F ﬂE :g—nf‘f
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FHET

Contracted but not provided for 2 5] 4B KRB 2,561 -




25.

26.

27.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Commitments (Continued)

(b) Commitments under operating lease as
lessor
At 31st December 2020, the Group had future
aggregate minimum rental receivables under non-
cancellable operating leases as follows:

REMBHRRME(E)

For the year ended 31st December 2020
HBE T _FF+ _A=1—HIFE

25. i (#8)
(b) LA AEE M A

RZE_EF+_A=+—8 ' ~5£E
AT EHEN BB 2 RIEREKR
TAEFTEREMNT ¢

Land and buildings

TR iEF
2020 2019
—EEHF —E-NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET T
Within one year —FR 1,444 920
Between one year and two years —&F EmMF 1,169 1,797
2,613 2,717

Financial Guarantees and Pledge . I IER R I

At 31st December 2020, the Group had the following banking
facilities, of which approximately HK$173,040,000 (2019:
HK$173,040,000) were secured by legal charges over certain
land and buildings and investment properties of the Group
with a total carrying value of approximately HK$126,250,000
(2019: HK$144,530,000).

E/\ TZ_TFE+_A=+—H AEEEMN
TERITRLE » H A #9173,040,0005% 7T ( —
T — AL : 173,040,000/ 7T ) A AR EE BRE
B4 #£49126,250,0008 0 (Z B — N F -
144,530,000 70 ) 2 /5 T L RIEF RIEE
YIS FTIEZ = E IR MR o

2020 2019
b e 32 —E-hF
HK$’000 HK$ OOO
Trade and loan finance facilities BH5NERRE 193,040 185,040
Forward exchange contract line RHINEGHREE 62,024 62,312
Ultimate Holding Company 27. RRER DT
The Directors of the Company regard Spector Holdings RN EEREELBERETHESTMKR Y

Limited, a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands,
as being the ultimate holding company and Mr. Mon Chung
Hung as being the ultimate controlling party.

Spector Holdings Limited Jh & AR 42R% A & K

iR e A A ERARIEHITT
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
REMBRERME(E)

For the year ended 31st December 2020
R _FE_FFL _H=1—HIFE

28. Subsidiaries 28. ft/E A 7]
The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries at 31st RZZEZZF+_A=+—H ' ARaHFH
December 2020. THEEWBAR :
Place of Issued and fully paid
incorporation/ share capital/registered
Name establishment capital/charter capital Principal activities Interest
BRARARRE/
£ /R AER/ AR TEEK Bi
2020 2019
It ik
Shares held directly
EREERR
Perennial Holdings Global Limited ~ British Virgin Islands Ordinary US$1 Investment holding 100% 100%
ABRAHES LI RERR
Shares held indirectly
BEEARG
Ever Peak Development Limited ~ Hong Kong Ordinary HK$3 Property holding 100% 100%
KREEERAR (9 LRERET RENE
Glitter Wire & Cable Company Hong Kong Ordinary HK$500 Investment holding 100% 100%
Limited 3 ERRE00ET RERK
RESHEEERAA
Non-voting deferred
HK$2,000,000
ERRERTRR
2,000,000
New Technology Cable Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1,000 License holding 100% 100%
MERERAR (55 L1008 FRMR
Non-voting Deferred
HK$10,000,000
ERRERTRN
10,000,000%7
Perennial Cable (H.K.) Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2,000,000 Trading of electric cables, 100% 100%
BHER(55)ERAR &% Li81%2,000,0007 wires, wire hamess and
accessories

HEER 85 #A4R
R
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

A MEHmRME(E)

For the year ended 31st December 2020
BR _E_ZFFL _H=+—HIFE

28. BB (&)

Place of Issued and fully paid
incorporation/ share capital/registered
Name establishment capital/charter capital Principal activities Interest
BRTRATRE/
£i HR/ R ifEs/HTER IEEH
2020 2019
il s
Shares held indirectly (Continued)
BEEERG(R)
Perennial Cable Limited British Virgin Islands Ordinary US$1 Investment and property 100% 100%
EAEGERAR RBRIES LERIET holding
RERENE
Perennial Cable (Shenzhen) o, Mainland China Registered capital Manufacturing of electric 100% 100%
Limited (wholly owned foreign ~ REIAE: HK$65,000,000 cables, wires and wire
enterprise) (note (a) #Hf 4 765,000,000%7 hamness
EEER(MARAR (2% HEER BERAAKR
BiasMe) (M)
Perennial Plastics (H.K.) Limited ~ Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 Trading of plastic resins and 100% 100%
BEEB(ER)BRLAA S LRERAT compounds
BEBBAMBIERI AN
Perennial Cable (BVI) Limited British Virgin Islands Ordinary US$50,000 Investment holding 100% 100%
EHEREVIERAT BRI LBR500005 T RERR
New Technology Cable Pte. Singapore Ordinary SGS$2 License holding 100% 100%
Limited inote (d) (zE(@) 30K LERTIET FEMR
Shinka KK. (note (e) (FiizE(e)) ~ Japan Ordinary JPY10,000,000 License holding 100% 100%
BE £180110,00000087T FRR
Perennial USA Inc. United States of Ordinary US$1 Trading of electric cables, 100% 100%
(note (b)) America LERIET wires, wire harness and
G XA accessories
EEER B8 HLBR
Rif
Shenzhen Welldone Trading Co, ~ Mainland China Registered capital Trading of electric cables, 100% 100%
Limited (note (a)) R HK$1,000,000 wires, wire harness and
MIERETEEHERAA SHRE,000,00057 accessories

(Rfitlal)

REES &5 AaBR
Rt

1591
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
AV BEmEMEE(E)

For the year ended 31st December 2020
R _FE_FFL _H=1—HIFE

28. Subsidiaries (Continued) 28. B A E) (&)
Place of Issued and fully paid
incorporation/ share capital/registered
Name establishment capital/charter capital Principal activities Interest
BRTRARRE/
£i HR/ R ifEs/HTER IEEH B&
2020 2019
il s
Shares held indirectly (Continued)
BEEERG(R)
Shenzhen Perennial Plastics and ~ Mainland China Registered capital HK$40,000,000 Manufacturing and sale of 100% 100%
Metal Co, Limited (note (al) ~ REIARE FHFEA 40,000,000 electric cables, wires,
MIESEEREER AR wire hamess and
(Fi3k(a)) accessories
WERHEES B
BRRRRAM
Shenzhen Perennial Plastics Co, ~ Mainland China Registered capital HK$10,000,000 Manufacturing and sale 100% 100%
Limited (note (2] HEAR FHRE10,000,00057 of plastic resins and
AEEEBERAR (i) compounds
BERHELBRERR
a4
Heyuan Perennial Plastics and Mainland China Registered capital RMB65,000,000  Manufacturing and sale of 100% 100%
Metal Co, Limited (note (c)) ~ REIARE FHE A AR 65,000,000 electric cables, wires,
MRESEBRLERAR wire hamess and
Pz (c)) accessories
WERHESE &5 4
AERRAM
Perennial Cable (Vietnam) Co., Vietnam Charter capital US$8,000,000(2019:  Manufacturing and sale of 100% 100%
Limited (note (f) (&£ () i 596,200,000 electric cables, wires,
HERG 0000005751 wire hamess and
£:6,200,000%7) accessories
SERHESE &R 4
ARRRE
New Technology Cable (Vietnam)  Vietnam Charter capital VND577,750,000 License Holding 100% -
Limited (note (f) (FizE() i (2019: ni) BAER
FTATER577,750,0008 8% (=%
—NVE - E)
The legal form of all the above companies is limited liability LR R RBRATERE -

company.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

28. Subsidiaries (Continued)
Save as noted below, the above companies operate
principally in Hong Kong instead of their respective places of
incorporation/establishment, except for:

(@) Perennial Cable (Shenzhen) Co., Limited, Shenzhen
Welldone Trading Co., Limited, Shenzhen Perennial
Plastics and Metal Co., Limited and Shenzhen Perennial
Plastics Co., Limited are in Shenzhen, the People's
Republic of China.

(b)  Perennial USA Inc. is in the United States of America.

(c) Heyuan Perennial Plastics and Metal Co., Limited is in
Heyuan, the People’'s Republic of China.

(d)  New Technology Cable Pte. Limited is in Singapore.

(e)  Shinka K.K. is in Japan.

(f)  Perennial Cable (Vietnam) Co., Limited and New
Technology Cable (Vietnam) Limited (“NTC (Vietnam)”)
are in Vietnam. NTC (Vietnam) was incorporated in
Vietnam on 14th September 2020.

A MEHmRME(E)

For the year ended 31st December 2020
BR _E_ZFFL _H=+—HIFE

28. (B AT (&)
MRLATREERASN - il AR 7 @B T E A
EAMIEE BRI, /B2

(@) BRELKCRIDARAF  FYINESKZE
BEREHERARF  NEHLBL S
BRRARAYIEHRLEBAR A BN
i ARAMBIRYIT -

(b)  Perennial USA Inc.fiZAZEE

() REMBZBRASARAFLNTEA
REFMBAIRT °

(d  New Technology Cable Pte. Limitedfiz
FRETAN o

(e) Shinka K.KfZFABEZ o

(fy ~ Perennial Cable (Vietnam) Co., Limited
X New Technology Cable (Vietnam)
Limited([NTC (Vietnam) )R #iEg o
NTC (Vietham)R—ZE-_ZEFEH A +1X
B AL -

153
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AV BEmEMEE(E)

For the year ended 31st December 2020
BE-—FE-_FTFEf _H=+—HIFE

29. Statement of Financial Position and

29. ARRHBRARRFEHEEE

Reserve Movement of the Company *®
Statement of Financial Position B AR R =
2020 2019
—EBCEF —E-NF
Note HK$°000 HK$'000
B st FET FBT
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets IEmMENEE
Investments in subsidiaries BRI B AR ZIE 62,738 62,738
Current assets MENEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries U B A FIFIE 58,633 59,282
Other receivables, deposits HEmpEWsiE ~ 5Tek
and prepayments TERIR 160 145
Cash and cash equivalents RERBEEEY 146 179
58,939 59,606
Total assets 1B E 121,677 122,344
EQUITY =
Equity attributable to PiN/NC Y g e
shareholders of the Company
Share capital &N 19,896 19,896
Other reserves HAh (a) 78,537 78,537
Retained earnings REB &N (a) 22,608 23,205
Total equity Rk 121,041 121,638
LIABILITIES afE
Current liabilities mEAE
Other payables and accruals Eth A FRIE R BT RS 636 706
Total liabilities meE 66 706
Total equity and liabilities BERNRBAE 121,677 122,344

The statement of financial position of the Company was
approved by the Board of Directors on 23rd March 2021 and
was signed on its behalf.

ARBZHBRARARR T - —F=H
“H=HREFSHELRREE -

MON Chung Hung SIU Yuk Shing, Marco

iR BB
Director Director
EE EZE
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REMBHRRME(E)

For the year ended 31st December 2020
HBE T _FF+ _A=1—HIFE

29. Statement of Financial Position and 29. KA R MBR AR EFEEES

Reserve Movement of the Company *=(E\)
(Continued)
(a) Reserve Movement (a) fREEE
Contributed Capital
Share surplus redemption Total other Retained
premium (note) reserves reserves earnings Total
BB -
RADRE (iE) RERE SHORE - REEF e

HK$'000 ~ HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TBT TAT TATL THAT TAT TATL

At 1st January 2020 R-Z-Z4F

—H—H 15,885 62,548 104 78,537 23,205 101,742
Total comprehensive  AEEZ2EEE
loss for the year B - - - - (597) (597)

At31stDecember ~ H-Z-TF
2020 +=-R=+-H 15,885 62,548 104 78,537 22,608 101,145

At 1st January 2019 =T —N4F

—H—H 15,885 62,548 104 78,637 23,615 102,152
Total comprehensive  AEE 2 HEE
loss for the year kA - - - = (410) (410)

At31st December ~ WZZE—h%F

2019 +=A=+—AH 15,885 62,548 104 78,637 23,205 101,742

Note: The contributed surplus of the Company arose when fizx : ADFZHARBREARDTZEITHE
the Company issued shares in exchange for the shares BAR B BR AR R RD EE B
of subsidiaries being acquired in connection with the AEXSGARAT EMATEMAANE
reorganisation of the Group prior to its listing on The U BE 2 Mt B A & 2 A% {0 1 &=
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, and represents g BERARARIETRG 2EE
the difference between the nominal value of the HENERBARIZEEFEZE
Company'’s shares issued and the value of net assets B BEFRE—N/N\—FRaE
of the subsidiaries acquired. Under the Companies Act (&(&3T) » ABBAHD IR TR
of 1981 of Bermuda (as amended), the contributed R EAKBECZER BARBRT
surplus is distributable to the shareholders. At Group BN BAEEBENB AR ZFEE
level, the contributed surplus is reclassified into its ARERS ©

component reserves of the underlying subsidiaries.

30. Approval of the Consolidated Financial 30. ZZ&5 B EHRET2H#E

Statements
The consolidated financial statements were approved by the HAMBEHRRER=E-_—F=A=-+=H
Board of Directors on 23rd March 2021. EEEedtE -
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
Bt 35 #E1E

2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
—EEf T NEF ZE-N\F ZT—+F ZZT—RE
Operating results REEE(THET)
(HK$'000)
Revenue Wz 282,342 301,357 355,744 364,401 359,035
Operating (loss)/profit me(B8),mF (19,697) (11,916) 1,726 26,461 19,873
(Loss)/profit for the year ~ ANEE (E51E) /5 7F (19,231) (13,198) (1,760) 19,283 14,622
Financial position BT (FET)
(HK$"000)
Net current assets MENBEFE 116,263 130,939 133,146 169,387 139,996
Shareholders’ funds BRES 549,280 562,524 578,085 562,417 504,470

Per share data (HKS$ cent) &RE#E (GEl)
(Loss)/earnings per share — &% (E518) /B F|

basic and diluted —ERREE (9.7) (6.6) (0.9) 9.7 73
Dividend per share (interim &AL E (FE K

and final dividend) AEARE) - - - - 2
Key Statistics TER
Inventory turnover (days)  FEEE(KE) 181 149 17 118 112
Debtors’ turnover (days)  FEMRERIE®E (KE) 0 104 88 81 85
Creditors’ turnover (days)  JE{JEREEE (KE) 46 39 38 40 48
Acid-test ratio (%) RENEL (%) 98.9% 119.3% 138.1% 174.6% 160.3%
Working capital (%) EIEED(%) 220.6% 220.7% 220.1% 285.6% 242.2%
Total liabilities/total capital 428 (& /428 F

employed (%) B (%) 24.9% 27.1% 26.8% 23.2% 26.3%
Return on capital employed & & AREH =

(operating profit/ (R F/

shareholders’ funds) (%)  IRERES)(%) (3.6%) (2.1%) 0.3% 4.7% 3.9%
Return on average total 48 E R

assets (profit after (BB HER,

taxation/average total FHBEE) (%)

assets) (%) (2.7%) (1.8%) (0.2%) 2.9% 2.3%
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